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PART I
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statementd.sédtements other than statements of historicafancluding statements regarding
our future financial condition, business strategygl plans and objectives of management for futueraons, are forward-looking statements.
Terminology such as “believe,” “may,” “might,” “obgtive,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “iend,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,”
“predict,” “potential,” or the negative of thesertes or other similar expressions is intended tatifie forward-looking statements. We have
based these forward-looking statements largelyusrcorrent expectations and projections about &uewents and financial trends that we
believe may affect our financial condition, resufoperations, business strategy and financiadlsieehese forward-looking statements are
subject to a number of known and unknown risksamzrtainties that could cause our actual reswltifter materially from those expresset
implied in our forward-looking statements. Suclksiand uncertainties include, among others, thietsdlin Part 1, Iltem 1A. “Risk Factors” of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K and elsewhere is thport, such as but not limited to:

e our immature industry and relatively new businessiet;
» our dependence on Internet search companies &xtalititernet visitors

» our dependence on a small number of large cliedar dependence on a small number of clientcadstifor a majority of our
revenue

» changes in regulatory and legislative environméfieicing our business or our clie’ businesses
» our ability to successfully manage any recent auriacquisitions
» our ability to attract and retain qualified emplegeand key personnt
» our ability to enhance and maintain our client aaddor relationships
e our ability to return to growth and to manage sgutwth effectively;
» our ability to accurately forecast our operatingutes and appropriately plan our expen:
« our ability to develop new services and enhancesnamd features to meet new demands from our cji
e our ability to raise additional capital in the frgyif needed
» general economic conditions in our domestic anémtl future international marke!
e our ability to compete in our industry; a
» our ability to protect our intellectual propertghis.
Except as required by law, we undertake no obbgetto update publicly any forward-looking statensefotr any reason to conform these

statements to actual results or to changes inxpeatations. Given these risks and uncertaintesgjers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such forward-looking statements andjuagify all of our forward-looking statements bye#ie cautionary statements.

Item 1. Business
Our Company

QuinStreet is a leader in vertical marketing andlimenline. We have built a strong set of capaedito engage Internet visitors with
targeted media and to connect our marketing clieiitstheir potential customers online. We focussenving clients in large, information-
intensive industry verticals where relevant, taedanedia and offerings help visitors make inforrakbdices, find the products that match their
needs, and thus become qualified customer prosfurabsir clients. Our current primary client vedis are the education and financial services
industries. We also have a presence in the bustnedsssiness technology, home services and headthiedustries.
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We generate revenue by delivering measurable oniax&eting results to our clients. These resukstypically in the form of qualified
leads or clicks, the outcomes of customer prospedimitting requests for information on, or to batacted regarding, client products, or their
clicking on or through to specific client offersh@se qualified leads or clicks are generated franmearketing activities on our websites or via
third-party publishers with whom we have relatiapshClients primarily pay us for leads that they convert into customers, typically in a
call center or through other offline customer asdigin processes, or for clicks from our websitest they can convert into applications or
customers on their websites. We are predominasily pn a negotiated or market-driven “per lead"par click” basis. Media costs to gener
qualified leads or clicks are borne by us as a ebptoviding our services.

Founded in 1999, we have been a pioneer in thelg@went and application of measurable marketingherinternet. Clients pay us for
the actual opt-in actions by prospects or custoittersresult from our marketing activities on the@half, versus traditional impression-based
advertising and marketing models in which an adsertpays for more general exposure to an advarésé We have been particularly focu
on developing and delivering measurable marke&@sglts in the search engine “ecosystem”, the grdigt of the Internet for most of the
visitors we convert into qualified leads or clidks our clients. We own or partner with verticahtent websites that attract Internet visitors
from organic search engine rankings due to theityusmhd relevancy of their content to search engisers. We also acquire targeted visitor:
our websites through the purchase of pay-per-cticlePC advertisements on search engines. We comaptesearch engine companies by
building websites with content and offerings that eelevant and responsive to their searchersbaicreasing the value of the PPC search
advertising they sell by matching visitors witherfhgs and converting them into customer prosgectsur clients.

Market Opportunity
Change in marketing strategy and approach

We believe that marketing approaches are changitydgets shift from offline, analog advertisingdiaeto digital advertising media
such as Internet marketing. These changing appesaate fundamental, and require a shift to fundsatigmew competencies, including:

From qualitative, impression-driven marketing to afytic, data-driven marketing

We believe that the growth in Internet marketingrisbling a more data-driven approach to advegtiSihe measurability of online
marketing allows marketers to collect a significantount of detailed data on the performance of tharketing campaigns, including the
effectiveness of ad format and placement and esponses. This data can then be analyzed andaisagrove marketing campaign
performance and cost-effectiveness on substanghltiyter cycle times than with traditional offlimeedia.

From account management-based client relationshtpsesults-based client relationships

We believe that marketers are becoming increasifogiysed on strategies that deliver specific, mesdse results. For example,
marketers are attempting to better understand hew marketing spending produces measurable obgsctiuch as meeting their target
marketing cost per new customer. As marketers asope results-based approaches, the basis of ciltionships with their marketing
services providers is shifting from being more actananagement-based to being more results-oriented

From marketing messages pushed on audiences to retink messages pulled by self-directed audiences

Traditional marketing messages such as televigidradio advertisements are broadcast to a brodidraze. The Internet is enabling
more self-directed and targeted marketing. For gtanwhen Internet visitors click on PPC searcheatisements, they are expressing an
interest in and proactively engaging with informatabout a product or service related to that abesnent. The growth of self-directed
marketing, primarily through
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online channels, allows marketers to present nargeted and potentially more relevant marketingsagss to potential customers who have
taken the first step in the buying process, whigh in turn increase the effectiveness of markesgshding.

From marketing spending focused on large media bugsnarketing spending optimized for fragmented need

We believe that media is becoming increasinglyrfragted and that marketing strategies are changiaddpt to this trend. There are
millions of Internet websites, tens of thousand#/bich have significant numbers of visitors. Whikés fragmentation can create challenges for
marketers, it also allows for improved audiencensagtation and the delivery of highly targeted méngemessages, but new technologies and
approaches are necessary to effectively manageetiraglgiven the increasing complexity resultingnironore media fragmentation.

Increasing complexity of online marketing

Online marketing is a dynamic and increasingly clexp@dvertising medium. There are numerous onliveoels for marketers to reach
potential customers, including search enginesrrieteportals, vertical content websites, affilintgworks, display and contextual ad networks,
email, video advertising, and social media. Werrgfghese and other marketing channels as medih &f these channels may involve
multiple ad formats and different pricing modelsyifying the complexity of online marketing. Welieere that this complexity increases the
demand for our vertical marketing and media sesvthee to our capabilities and to our experienceamiag and optimizing online marketing
programs across multiple channels. Also marketetlsagiencies often lack our ability to aggregateraifys from multiple clients in the same
industry vertical, an approach that allows us teec@ wide selection of visitor segments and previtbre potential matches to Internet visitor
needs. This approach can allow us to convert nraegriet visitors into qualified leads or clicksrrdargeted media sources, giving us an
advantage when buying or monetizing that media.

Our Business Model

We deliver cost-effective marketing results to olients, predictably and scalably, most typicafiyttie form of a qualified lead or click.
These leads or clicks can then convert into a custr sale for the client at a rate that resultsrn acceptable marketing cost to them. We get
paid by clients primarily when we deliver qualifiezads or clicks as defined in our agreements. @& the costs of media, thus our programs
must deliver a value to our clients and a medildyi@ margin on our media costs, that providesund financial outcome for us. Our general
process is:

« We own or access targeted me(

*  We run advertisements or other forms of marketimgsages and programs in that media to creatervisgponses or clicks throu
to client offerings

* We match these responses or clicks to client effsrior brands that meet visitor interests or nesatsyerting visitors into qualified
leads or clicks; an

* We optimize client matches and media yield suchwhachieve desired results for clients and a dduwmancial outcome for ut

Media cost, or the cost to attract targeted Inteviggtors, is the largest cost input to producihg measurable marketing results we de
to clients. Balancing our clients’ cost and coni@rbjectives, or the rate at which the leadslioks that we deliver to them convert into
customers, with our media costs and yield objestivepresents the primary challenge in our busimestel. We have been able to effectively
balance these competing demands by focusing omedra sources and capabilities, conversion optitieizaand our mix of offerings and
client coverage. We also seek to mitigate medi&risls by working with third-party
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website publishers predominantly on a revenue-gbases; media purchased on a non-revenue-share limsrepresented a minority of our
media costs and of the Internet visitors we conweot qualified leads or clicks for clients.

Media and Internet visitor mix

We are a client-driven organization. We seek tote of the largest providers of measurable margetsults on the Internet in the client
industry verticals we serve by meeting the needdiefts for results, reliability and volume. Maggithose client needs requires that we
maintain a diversified and flexible mix of Internasitor sources due to the dynamic nature of @tiredia. Our media mix changes with
changes in Internet visitor usage patterns. Wetadahose changes on an ongoing basis, and ateetprely adjust our mix of vertical media
sources to respond to client or vertical-specificlanstances and to achieve our financial objesti@enerally, our Internet visitor sources
include:

» websites owned and operated by us, with contenbéfadngs that are relevant to our clie’ target customer:
» visitors acquired from PPC advertisements purchasemajor search engines and sent to our web:

» revenue sharing agreements with t-party publishers with whom we have a relationsiig @whose content is relevant to «
client¢ target customer:

» email lists owned by third parties and warrantedddy their owners to comply with the C-SPAM Act;
« email lists owned by us, and generated on a-in basis from Internet visitors to our websitesi
» display ads run through online advertising netwarkdirectly with major websites or porta

Conversion optimization

Once we acquire targeted Internet visitors from @ingur numerous online media sources, we seekroert that media into qualified
leads or clicks at a rate that balances clientite®tith our media costs or yield objectives. Warsby defining the segments and interests of
Internet visitors in our client verticals, and byywding them with the information and product offiggs on our websites and in our marketing
programs that best meet their needs. Achievingmabée client results and media yield then requirggoing testing, measuring, analysis,
feedback, and adaptation of the key componentsiofmernet marketing programs. These componeutade the marketing or advertising
messaging, content mix, visitor navigation pathx amd coverage of client offerings presented, andtgf-sale conversion messaging — the
content that is presented to an Internet visitanediately prior to converting that individual iredead or click for our clients. This data
complexity is managed by us with technology, dafsorting, marketing processes, and personnel. Wlevbahat our scale and more than ten-
year track record give us an advantage, as man#gsgomplexity often implies a steep experie-based learning curve.

Offerings and client coverage

The Internet is a self-directed medium. Internsiters choose the websites they visit and theiinemavigation paths, and always have
the option of clicking away to a different webgiteweb page. Having offerings or clients that matehinterests or needs of website visitors is
key to providing results and adequate media yi@ld. vertical focus allows us to continuously revése improve this matching process, to
better understand the various segments of visitodsclient offerings available to be matched, anersure that we enable Internet visitors to
find what they seek.
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Our Competitive Advantages
Vertical focus and expertise

We focus our efforts on large, attractive clientrked verticals, and on building our depth of meali@ coverage of clients and client
offerings within them. We have been a pioneer wetlping vertical marketing and media on the Iné¢rand in providing measureable
marketing results to clients. We focus on clientoware moving their marketing spending to measerabline formats and on information-
intensive client verticals with large underlying niet opportunities and high product or custometiiiie values. This focus allows us to utilize
targeted media, in-depth industry and client knolgks and customer segmentation and breadth ot dféerings, or coverage, to deliver
results for our clients and greater media yield.

Measurable marketing experience and expertise

We have substantial experience at designing anlkbyleag marketing programs that allow Internet \ds# to find the information or
product offerings they seek, and that can deligenemically attractive, measurable results to dients, cost-effectively for us. Such results
require frequent testing and balancing of numer@ugbles, including Internet visitor sources, mbcontent and of client and product
offerings, visitor navigation paths, prospect dfizdtion, and advertising creative design, amorgers. The complexity of executing these
marketing campaigns is challenging. Due to ouresaald more than ten-year track record, we haveessfudly executed thousands of Internet
marketing programs, and we have gained signifieaperience managing and optimizing this completdtyneet our clients’ volume, quality
and cost objectives.

Targeted media

Targeted media attracts Internet visitors who alatively narrowly focused demographically or ieithinterests. Targeted media can
deliver better measurable marketing results foralients, at lower media costs for us, due to hightes of conversion of Internet visitors into
leads or clicks for targeted offerings and, ofdue to less competition from display advertisers. Wdve significant experience at creating,
identifying, monetizing, and managing targeted raeti the Internet. Many of the targeted media ssufer our marketing programs are
proprietary or more defensible because of our timamership of websites in our client verticalsy aaquisition of targeted Internet visitors
directly from search engines to our websites, amdegclusive or long-term relationships with megiaperties or sources owned by others.
Examples of websites that we own and operate iecidridWideLearn.com and Schools.com in our edaoatlient vertical;
CardRatings.com, MoneyRates.com, Carlnsurance.bwutance.com and Insure.com in our financial ses/client vertical; Internet.com in
our business-to-business technology client vertisboutLawns.com and OldHouseWeb.com in our hasmevices client vertical; and
ElderCarelink.com in our healthcare client vertical

Proprietary technology

We have developed a core technology platform acmhamon set of applications for managing and opimgizneasurable marketing
programs across multiple client verticals at scake primary objectives and effects of our techgwe are to achieve higher media yield,
deliver better results for our clients, and mofficiitly and effectively manage our scale and claxify. We continuously strive to develop
technologies that allow us to better match Intewstors in our client verticals to the informaticclients or product offerings they seek at
scale. In so doing, our technologies can allowousirhultaneously improve visitor satisfaction, e&se our media yield, and achieve higher
rates of conversions of leads or clicks for ouemis — a virtuous cycle of increased value forrimeé visitors and our clients and competitive
advantage for us. Some of the key applicationsiirtechnology platform are:

» an ad server for tracking the placement and pedana of content, creative messaging, and offermmgsur websites and on thc
of publishers with whom we worl

» databas-driven applications for dynamically matching contexffers or brands to Internet visit’ expressed needs or intere:
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» aplatform for measuring and managing the perfooeart tens of thousands of PPC search engine @&luagrtampaigns

» dashboards or reporting tools for displaying opegaaind financial metrics for thousands of ongaimarketing campaigns; an

» acompliance tool capable of cataloging and fittgrtontent from the thousands of websites on wbistmarketing progran
appear to ensure adherence to client branding lingdeand to regulatory requiremer

Approximately one-third of our employees are engisefocused on building, maintaining and operatingtechnology platform.

Client relationships

We believe we are a reliable source of measurdfdgtere marketing results for our clients. We eadar to work collaboratively and ir
data-driven way with clients to improve our restittsthem. We believe our high client retention digtoric per client growth rates are due to:

» our close, often direct, relationships with mosbof large clients
» our ability to deliver measurable and attractivieime on investment, or ROI, on clie’ marketing spendin¢

» our ownership of, or exclusive access to large artsoof, targeted media inventory and associatexttiet visitors in the clier
verticals on which we focus; ai

e our ability to consistently and reliably deliverda quantities of qualified leads or clicl

We believe that our high client retention ratesnbmed with our depth and breadth of online mediaur primary client verticals,
indicate that we are becoming an important marlgetimannel partner for our clients to reach thedspective customers.

Client-driven online marketing approach

We focus on providing measurable Internet markeding media services to our clients in a way thatgats and enhances their brands
and their relationships with prospective customéhe Internet marketing programs we execute arigdes to adhere to strict client branding
and regulatory guidelines, and are designed tohraic clients’ brands and offers with expressedasusr interest. We have contractual
arrangements with third-party website publishersrtsure that they follow our clients’ brand guideB, and we utilize our proprietary
technologies and trained personnel to help ensurgbkance. In addition, we believe that providiegevant, helpful content and client offers
that match an Internet visitor’'s self-selectedrest¢ in a product or service, such as requestifogritation about an education program or
financial product, makes that visitor more liketydonvert into a customer for our clients.

We do not engage in online marketing practices sscépyware or deceptive promotions as we belleafethese do not provide value to
Internet visitors and can undermine our clientgrigls. A small minority of our Internet visitors cbaour websites or client offerings through
advertisements in emails. We employ practices smenthat we comply with the CAN-SPAM Act governimgsolicited commercial email.

Acquisition strategy and success

We have successfully acquired vertical online mizmkeand media companies, including vertical webbitsinesses, marketing services
companies, and technologies. We believe we cagriatie and generate value from acquisitions dueitscale, breadth of capabilities, and
common technology platform.

«  Our ability to monetize Internet media, coupledhagtient demand for our services, provides us witfarticular advantage
acquiring targeted online media properties in flentverticals on which we focu
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Scale

Our capabilities in online media can allow us tograte a greater volume of leads or clicks, ancefbee create more value, th
other owners of marketing services companies that laggregated client budgets or relationst

We can often apply technologies across our busivaase to create more value than previous ownktiseotechnology

We are one of the largest Internet vertical mangetind media companies in the world. Our scalevallas to better meet the needs of
large clients for reliability, volume and quality service. It allows us to invest more in technaésgthat improve media yield, client results and
our operating efficiency. We are also able to invesre in other forms of research and developmediyding determining and developing n
types of vertical media, new approaches to engagelggite visitors, and new segments of Internétoris and client budgets, all of which can
lead to advantages in media costs, effectivenedslinering client results, and then to more groeutial greater scale.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to be one of the largest and most ssfeemarketing and media companies on the Inteamet eventually in other digitized
media forms. We believe that we are in the eadges of a very large and long-term business oppitytlOur strategy for pursuing this
opportunity includes the following key components:

Focus on generating sustainable revenues by pnogitdieasurable value to our clien

Build QuinStreet and our industry sustainably bjdngng ethically in all we do and by providing gityalcontent and websit
experiences to Internet visitor

Remain vertically focused, choosing to grow throdgpth, expertise and coverage in our current tlisticals; enter new clier
verticals selectively over time, organically andaiigh acquisitions

Build a world class organization, with b-in-class capabilities for delivering measurablerketing results to clients and high
yields or returns on media cos

Develop and evolve the best technologies and phatfor managing vertical marketing and media on lifternet; focus ol
technologies that enhance media yield, improventliesults and achieve scale efficienci

Build, buy and partner with vertical content websithat provide the most relevant and highest gusisitor experiences in tf
client and media verticals we serve; ¢

Be a clien-driven organization; develop a broad set of mediarses and capabilities to reliably meet client de:

Our Culture

Our values are the foundation of our successfuhless culture. They represent the standards weegtriachieve and the organization we
continuously seek to become. These have been @ingprinciples since our founding in 1999. Outues are:

PerformanceWe lead and take ownership of results and growth KMbw that results drive our success. We are indideir

pursuit. We take responsibility and a “whateveaakes” approach to getting things done, and dagte.riVe seek input to make the
best decisions possible, but we also act decisiV&l ask for help rather than missing commitmentsiaking excuses. We are
committed to our personal and professional devetyrand to that of our colleagues. Our growth grthvesCompany

Open Communication$Ve respect our colleagues and deal with one anoftely, honestly and non-hierarchically in an
atmosphere of mutual trust and in pursuit of commstoetch goals. We assur
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noble intentions. We have an obligation to dissemnt may probler-solve with anyone, anywhere in the organizatioamgttime in
the pursuit of the best solutions. We are mindfubbtes and of the need to keep each other infortnedvoid discourtesy, chaos and
unintended consequences. We avoid surprises. da#siand performance rule, not rank and reporitieg.| We support decisions
once made, and move forwa

* High StandardsWe hold each other and ourselves to the highestiatds of performance, professionalism and perdmetavior.
We act with the highest of ethical standards. Wivelea strong full-time commitment to our work. Véee as flexible as possible in
work timing and place to maximize retention of Hest people. We tolerate and forgive mistakes véawl them as opportunities to
learn and grow. We do not tolerate patterns oftiEtthvior or poor performanc

» TeamworkWe deal with one another openly, honestly anc-hierarchically in an atmosphere of mutual trust esgpect and i
pursuit of common stretch goals. We have an ohitigab dissent in an effort to reach the best answ&'e smooth the way for
effective, dynamic team discussions by demonstyatare and concern for each individual in all of imtieractions. We support
decisions, once mad

» Customer EmpathWe strive every day to better understand and gatieithe needs of all of our customers, includirents,
visitors, publishers, and other business partW¢esleverage these insights into better resultdérigustomer satisfaction and
competitive advantag

» Prioritization. We work on what is most important to achieving Camypobjectives next. If not clear, we discuss araluste
competing demands. We are decisive about what Weetido. We stop working on things that no longdequately advance the
business

» Urgency.We worry constantly about making enough progresst, nough, and that the systems, products andgonsghat we
touch are working correctly so that we do not ltisee. We know our goals and measure our progregartbthem daily

* ProgressWe are pioneers. We generate hypotheses and meilstods based on facts and analysis, as well agion. We know
that there will be failures in the pursuit of rajpicbgress. We learn from failures on short cyctee and iterate our way to succe

» Agility. We prize creativity and flexibility. We innovatertstantly. We embrace new ideas and approachegastopities tc
improve our performance or work environment. Wepaddten and quickly to changing client, market aodhpetitive dynamics.
We resist pride of authorship; it limits progrédge actively benchmark and work to understand anpl@rinternal and external
best practices and succes:

* RecognitionWe are a meritocracy. Advancement and recognitierearned through contribution and performancdudicg
helping others to achieve and nurturing the besh@my culture. We celebrate each other’s victaaies efforts. We abhor office
politics and never take an action just to advamtkinterest or se-promotion.

* Fun.We believe that work, done well, can and shouléuipe We strive to create an upbeat, supportiverenment and try not to
take ourselves too seriously. We do not have tone@égativism, pessimism or nay sayi

Clients

In fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, no client aisep more than 10% of annual net revenue andopu2® clients accounted for 54%,
62% and 65% of net revenue, respectively. Sinceservice was first offered in 2001, we have devetba broad client base with many multi-
year relationships. We enter into Internet marlgetiantracts with our clients, most of which areazdable with little or no prior notice. |
addition, these contracts do not contain penalbyipions for cancellation before the end of thetrat term.
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Sales and Marketing

We have an internal sales team that consists ofagtegs focused on signing new clients and accoamamers who maintain and seek to
increase our business with existing clients. Olesspeople and account managers are each focuseg@anticular client vertical so that they
develop an expertise in the marketing needs otlhemts in that particular vertical.

Our marketing programs include attendance at tshdes and conferences and limited advertising.

Technology and Infrastructure

We have developed a suite of technologies to marniagpeove and measure the results of the markgtingrams we offer our clients. \
use a combination of proprietary and third-partfiveare as well as hardware from established teadgyVvendors. We use specialized software
for client management, building and managing welsiacquiring and managing media, managing out-gharty publishers, and the matching
of Internet visitors to our marketing clients. Wavk invested significantly in these technologied plan to continue to do so to meet the
demands of our clients and Internet visitors, tyéase the scalability of our operations, and ecdamanagement information systems and
analytics in our operations. Our development teamrk closely with our marketing and operating tedmdevelop applications and systems
that can be used across our business. In fiscas P42, 2011 and 2010, we spent $21.1 million,Z24llion and $19.7 million, respectively,
on product development.

Our primary data center is at a third-party co-tmracenter in San Francisco, California. All oétbtritical components of the system are
redundant and we have a backup data center in kgas/ Nevada. We have implemented these backuemsysind redundancies to minimize
the risk associated with earthquakes, fire, powss,ltelecommunications failure, and other eveey®ihd our control.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of trade secret, trademark copyright laws in the United States and ojimésdictions together with
confidentiality agreements and technical measurg@sdtect the confidentiality of our proprietarghis. We also currently have two patent
applications pending in the United States and soed patents. To protect our trade secrets, wea@ucess to our proprietary systems and
technology and enter into confidentiality and intiem assignment agreements with our employees ansuttants and confidentiality
agreements with other third parties. QuinStreatrisgistered trademark in the United States aner gainisdictions. We also have registered
unregistered trademarks for the names of many ofvebsites and we own the domain registration®fmrmany website domains.

Our Competitors

Our primary competition falls into two categoriestvertising and direct marketing services ageneied,online marketing and media
companies. We compete for business on the basisiomber of factors including return on marketimgenditures, price, access to targeted
media, ability to deliver large volumes or predigees of customer prospects, and reliability.

Advertising and direct marketing services agencies

Online and offline advertising and direct marketgggvices agencies control the majority of thedarlient marketing spending for which
we primarily compete. So, while they are sometim@scompetitors, agencies are also often our diafe compete with agencies to attract
marketing budget or spending from offline formgtte Internet or, once designated to be spent grtlinee spent with us versus the agency or
by the agency with others. When spending onlinenpaigs spend with QuinStreet and with portals, rotrebsites and ad networks.
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Online marketing and media companies

We compete with other Internet marketing and mediapanies, in many forms, for online marketing tetdgMost of these competitors
compete with us in one vertical. Examples includaiBRate in the financial services client vertiaadl &lalyard Education Partners in the
education client vertical. Some of our competitadso comes from agencies or clients spending djredth larger websites or portals,
including Google, Yahoo! and Microsoft.

Government Regulation

Advertising and promotional information presentedisitors on our websites and our other markedictivities are subject to federal and
state consumer protection laws that regulate uafairdeceptive practices. There are a varietyaté stnd federal restrictions on the marketing
activities conducted by telephone, the mail or ma, or over the internet, including the Telemdirkg Sales Rule, state telemarketing laws,
federal and state privacy laws, the CAN-SPAM Aai] ghe Federal Trade Commission Act and its accolipg regulations and guidelines.

In addition, some of our clients operate in re@dandustries, particularly in our financial sers¢ education and medical verticals. In
education client vertical, our clients are subjedhe U.S. Higher Education Act, which, among othéngs, prohibits incentive compensation
in recruiting students. The Department of Educaissned regulations on incentive compensation, gnodimer matters, repealed all safe
harbors regarding incentive compensation whichtedisinder the prior regulations, including the dafebor for Internet-based recruiting and
admissions activities. The regulations state thghpent for contact information or consumer “clickis’ not constitute incentive compensation
for purposes of the Higher Education Act providealt there is no commission, bonus or other incermiasyment based directly or indirectly
upon success in securing enroliments. Notwithstamttie foregoing, these regulations could impaet tve are paid for leads by clients in our
education client vertical and could also impact education clients and their marketing practicesaddition, the same regulations impose s
liability on educational institutions for misrepeggations made by entities, like us, who contrétt the institutions to provide marketing
services. As a result, our clients have demandddwenhave agreed to be subject to increased limitsof liability in our contracts as well as
indemnification for actions by our third-party pighlers. Other regulations, such as the regulatorigiainful employment,” restrict Federal
financial aid to students in programs where certi@bt-to-income ratios and loan default rates atesatisfied, could limit our clients’
businesses and, therefore, ours.

In our financial services vertical, the U.S. Realdfe Settlement Procedures Act, or RESPA, reguthtepayments that may be made to
mortgage brokers. While we do not engage in thigiies of a traditional mortgage broker, we acelised as a mortgage broker in 23 state
our online marketing activities. Our insurance hess is also highly regulated and we are a licemsenlance agent in all fifty states.

In our medical client vertical, our medical devared supplies clients are subject to state and dédeti-kickback statutes that prohibit
payment for referrals. While we believe our matghirfi prospective customers with our clients andntia@ner in which we are paid for these
activities complies with these and other applicablgulations, these rules and regulations in masgs were not developed with online
marketing in mind and their applicability is notalys clear.

The rules and regulations are complex and may biestto different interpretations by courts oretjovernmental authorities. We
might unintentionally violate such laws, such laway be modified and new laws may be enacted ifitoee. Any such developments (or
developments stemming from enactment or modificatibother laws) or the failure to anticipate aataly the application or interpretation of
these laws could create liability to us and resuftdverse publicity.
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Employees

As of June 30, 2012, we had 673 employees, whiokisted of 207 employees in product developmenteaigiheering, 62 in sales and
marketing, 50 in general and administration and iB5@perations. None of our employees is represienyea labor union.

Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchangen@ission (“SEC"), including annual reports on FattiK, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any mofitiags required by the SEC. We make availab&efof charge on our website via the
investor relations page on www.quinstreet.com ounual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports onnkd0-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and all amendments to those reports as soon asadayg practicable after such material is electaly filed with or furnished to the SEC. We
also webcast our earnings calls and certain ewvemtsost with members of the investment communitpwninvestor relations page. The
content of our website is not intended to be inocaiged by reference into this report or in any otieport or document we file and any
reference to this website is intended to be antiveatextual reference only.

The public may read and copy any materials wesfite the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Roof0atF Street, NE, Washington,
DC 20549. The public may obtain information on tiperation of the Public Reference Room by calllmg $EC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC
maintains an Internet site (http://www.sec.gov} ttantains reports, proxy and information statemeand other information regarding issuers
that file electronically with the SEC.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
The name of and certain information regarding eddbur current executive officers as of June 3@,28re set forth below.

Name Age Position

Douglas Valent 52 Chief Executive Officer and Chairmi

Bronwyn Syiek 48 President and Directt

Kenneth Haht 45 Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Offic
Scott Mackley 39 Executive Vice Presidel

Nina Bhanay 39 Chief Technology Office

Kenneth Siege 54 General Counsel and Senior Vice Presit

Douglas Valenthas served as our Chief Executive Officer and mermbeur board of directors since July 1999 and@asChairman and
Chief Executive Officer since March 2004. PrioiQainStreet, Mr. Valenti served as a partner at Rosel Capital, a venture capital firm, for
five years; at McKinsey & Company as a strategyscttant and engagement manager for three yedespater & Gamble in various
management roles for three years; and for the Nla8Sy as a nuclear submarine officer for five yehts.holds a Bachelors degree in Industrial
Engineering from the Georgia Institute of Techngloghere he graduated with highest honors and waged the Georgia Tech Outstanding
Senior in 1982, and an M.B.A. from the Stanforddii@e School of Business, where he was an ArjaleMdcholar.

Bronwyn Syiekas served as our President since May 2012 and eveshbur board of directors since January 201buasresident and
Chief Operating Officer from February 2007 to M&@12, as our Chief Operating Officer from April 20@4February 2007, as Senior Vice
President from September 2000 to April 2004, ag\Heesident from her start date in March 2000 mte$eber 2000 and as a consultant to us
from July 1999 to March 2000. Prior to joining Ms. Syiek served as Director of Business Develograad member of the Executive
Committee at De La Rue Plc, a banknote printingsealrity product company, for three years.
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She previously served as a strategy consultaneagdgement manager at McKinsey & Company for feary and held various investment
management and banking positions with Lloyds Bank@harterhouse Bank. She holds an M.A. in NatBca&nces from Cambridge
University in the United Kingdom.

Kenneth Hahrhnas served as our Chief Financial Officer and C@ieérating Officer since May 2012 and Chief FinahGfficer since
September 2006. Prior to joining us, Mr. Hahn sérae Chief Financial Officer of Borland Softwarer@aration, a public software company,
from September 2002 to July 2006. Previously, Mahi served in various roles, including Chief Finah©fficer, of Extensity, Inc., a public
software company, for five years; as a strategysaant at the Boston Consulting Group for threargpand as an audit manager at Price
Waterhouse, a public accounting firm, for five yedfe holds a B.A. in Business from California 8tdniversity Fullerton, summa cum laude,
and an M.B.A. from the Stanford Graduate Scho®wdiness, where he was an Arjay Miller Scholar. Mahn is also a Certified Public
Accountant (inactive), licensed in the state ofif0aia.

Scott Mackleyas served as our Executive Vice President sinbeuey 2007, as Senior Vice President from Deceribé4 to February
2007, as Vice President from June 2003 to Deceb@4, as Senior Director from February 2002 to RO@S8, as Director from October 2000
to February 2002 and as Senior Manager, Networkdgement from May 2000 to October 2000. Prior toijaj us, Mr. Mackley served at
Salomon Brothers and Salomon Smith Barney, in uarioles in their Equity Trading unit and InvestinBanking and Equity Capital Markets
divisions over four years. He holds a B.A. in Ecmies from Washington and Lee University.

Nina Bhanaphas served as our Chief Technology Officer sindg 2009, as our Senior Vice President of Engineefiom November
2006 to July 2009, as Vice President of Productdlpment from January 2004 to November 2006, agp&Birector from January 2003 to
January 2004 and as Director of Product Managefmamt October 2001 to January 2003. Prior to joiniisg Ms. Bhanap served as Head of
Fixed Income Sales Technology for Europe at Morgtmley for five years and as a senior associdd@az Allen Hamilton for one year. She
holds a B.S. in Computer Science with Honors frompérial College, University of London, and an M.Bffom the London Business School.

Kenneth M. Siegdias served as our Senior Vice President and Ge@etaisel since February 2012. Prior to joiningMis, Siegel serve
as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Gegrat SafeNet, a computer and network securitypamy, for two years; as Vice President
and General Counsel of Verigy Ltd., a provider df@nced test systems and solutions for the semimodindustry, for four years; as Senior
Vice President and General Counsel of Agile Sofen@orporation, a provider of product lifecycle mgament software solutions that was |
acquired by Oracle, for four years; as Senior \Reesident of Efficient Networks, Inc., a publichaded broadband telecommunications
equipment company that was acquired by Siemensfé@wo years, and as general counsel for one yrawriously, Mr. Siegel was an
attorney with Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati,@morate law firm, for thirteen years. Mr. Siegelds a B.A. in International Policy Studies
from the Monterey Institute of International Stuslend a J.D. from the University of California Hags College of the Law.
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Iltem 1A . Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degrferisk. You should carefully consider the ridkscribed below and the other
information in this report on Form 10-K. If any sfich risks actually occur, our business, operatiggults or financial condition could be
adversely affected. In those cases, the tradingepof our common stock could decline and you mssy &l or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We operate in an immature industry and have a rélaty new business model, which makes it diffictdtevaluate our business and
prospects.

We derive nearly all of our revenue from the sdlerdine marketing and media services, which isnamature industry that has
undergone rapid and dramatic changes in its shstdrly. The industry in which we operate is chagdeed by rapidlychanging Internet medi
evolving industry standards, and changing userciiadt demands. Our business model is also evolairdjis distinct from many other
companies in our industry, and it may not be swsfaésAs a result of these factors, the future neseand income potential of our business is
uncertain and we may not be able to return to oevipus growth rates. Any evaluation of our businasd our prospects must be considered in
light of these factors and the risks and unceiigsmften encountered by companies in an immanghesiry with an evolving business model
such as ours. Some of these risks and uncertaef&e to our ability to:

e maintain and expand client relationshi

» respond to adverse and changing regulations iwverticals, particularly our education vertic

» sustain and grow relationships with tt-party website publishers and other sources of vigtors;

» sustain and increase the number of visitors tormbsites

* manage our operations and implement and improveperational, financial and management conti

» overcome challenges presented by adverse globabeto conditions as they impact spending in owertliverticals

* raise capital at attractive costs, or at

* acquire and integrate websites and other businge

» successfully expand our footprint in our existitigrt verticals and enter new client vertice

» respond effectively to competition and potentiagjaéve effects of competition on profit margi

» attract and retain qualified management, emplogeesndependent service provide

» successfully introduce new processes and techredagid upgrade our existing technologies and s,

e protect our proprietary technology and intellectualperty rights; an

* respond to government regulations relating to tterhet, marketing in our client verticals, perdateta protection, email, softwa
technologies and other aspects of our busir

If we are unable to address these risks, our bssjmesults of operations and prospects couldrsuffe

We are dependent on two market verticals for a nidyoof our revenue. Negative changes in the ecoriormondition, market dynamics ¢
regulatory environment in these verticals has cadsend may continue to cause our revenue to dectamel our business and growth to
suffer.

To date, we have generated a majority of our regdram clients in our education and financial seesiclient verticals. We expect that a
majority of our revenue in the near term will conig to be generated from
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clients in our education and financial servicesmliverticals. Changes in the market conditionthemregulatory environment in these two
highly-regulated client verticals have negativehpacted and may continue to negatively impact bents’ businesses, marketing practices
and budgets and, therefore, adversely affect oanfiial results.

There is significant activity and uncertainty in thregulatory and legislative environment in the fprofit education sector. Regulatory
and legislative changes have negatively affected aould continue to negatively affect our clientsusinesses, marketing practices and
budgets and could impact demand, pricing or formanir services, any or all of which could have a radhl adverse impact on our
financial results.

We generate nearly half of our revenue from ouicatlan client vertical and nearly all of that reueris generated from for-profit
educational institutions. There is intense govemeadenterest in and scrutiny of the for-profit edtion industry and a high degree of focus on
marketing practices in the industry. The DepartnodériEducation has promulgated regulations that leaversely impacted and could continue
to adversely impact us and our education clientg. ifitense focus on the for-profit education indusbuld result in further regulatory or
legislative action. We cannot predict whether thils happen or what the impact could be on our fiicial results.

The Higher Education Act, administered by the UD8partment of Education, provides that to be el@ib participate in Federal student
financial aid programs, an educational institutioast enter into a program participation agreemettt the Secretary of the Department of
Education. The agreement includes a number of tiondiwith which an institution must comply to beugted initial and continuing eligibility
to participate. Among those conditions is a prdiohion institutions providing to any individual entity engaged in recruiting or admission
activities any commission, bonus, or other incenpayment based directly or indirectly on succesgeturing enroliments. The Department of
Education issued regulations on incentive comp@rsand other matters which became effective JURO11. The Department’s regulations
repeal all safe harbors regarding incentive comgéms which existed under the prior regulations|uding the safe harbor for Internet-based
recruiting and admissions activities. The elimioatof the safe harbors has created uncertainty§@nd our education clients and impacts the
way in which we are paid by our clients and, acogly, has reduced the amount of revenue we gemén@n the education client vertical.
Moreover, given the regulatory uncertainty affegtour education client base, we believe that olesdérnal market spending by such
companies has declined in recent periods, and tarée no assurance as to when or if such spendimgturn to prior levels.

In addition, the same regulations impose striddilily on educational institutions for misrepressiins made by entities, like us, who
contract with the institutions to provide marketseyvices. As a result, some of our clients hawveateled and we have agreed in some cases t
increased assumptions of risk in our contractselbag indemnification for actions by us and ourdtparty publishers. As a result of this
increased contractual exposure with some cliengscauld become subject to costly litigation anddmpiired to pay substantial damages or
indemnification claims. We could also experiencmdge to our reputation for our violation of any gable regulation and the unauthorized
or unlawful acts of third-party website publishers.

Other regulations could also negatively impactfomprofit education clients. For example, the dagjons on “gainful employment” that
restrict or eliminate federal financial aid to statk in programs where certain debirtoeme ratios and loan default rates are not $adisfoulc
result in the elimination or reduction in some af clients’ programs. Over the past year, enrolitaé@ve dropped significantly at some of our
clients, caused in part by changes being madeticipation of the implementation of this regulation addition, some of our large for-profit
education clients have indicated that in comingyé&aey may violate the “90/10 rule,” whereby fapfit institutions must receive at least
10 percent of their revenue from sources other federal student financial aid. If a for-profit titation fails to comply with the rule for two
consecutive fiscal years, it may lose its eligtpitio receive student-aid funds for at least twarge These and other regulations or a failure of
our clients to comply with such regulations, coattversely affect our clients’ businesses and,rasut, affect or materially reduce the amount
of revenue we generate from those clients.
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Moreover, some of our education clients have hatlnaay in the future have issues regarding theidawec accreditation, which could
adversely affect their ability to offer certain deg programs. If any of our significant educatiants lose their accreditation, they are likely
reduce and may even eliminate their external menespending, which could adversely affect ourficial results.

Our for-profit education clients have been sigwifily affected by the adoption of and uncertaintyyaunding the new regulations over
the past several years. The regulations have affextd are expected to continue to affect our tslidusinesses and marketing practices,
including an overall decrease in our clients’ exéémarketing expenditures and a related decreaserirevenues from this client vertical. The
effect of these regulations may continue to resuliuctuations in the volume and mix of our busisavith these clients.

We depend on third-party website publishers forignificant portion of our visitors, and any declinan the supply of media available
through these websites or increase in the pricatoé media could cause our revenue to decline or gost to reach visitors to increase.

A significant portion of our revenue is attributaltd visitor traffic originating from arrangemetist we have with third-party publishers.
In many instances, website publishers can charggetdia inventory they make available to us attang and, therefore, impact our revenue.
In addition, website publishers may place signifta@strictions on our offerings. These restricsiomay prohibit advertisements from specific
clients or specific industries, or restrict the oéeertain creative content or formats. If a webgiublisher decides not to make media inventory
available to us, or decides to demand a highemugxshare or places significant restrictions oruseof such inventory, we may not be able to
find advertising inventory from other websites thatisfy our requirements in a timely and costeffe manner. In addition, the number of
competing online marketing service providers aneedikers that acquire inventory from websites itar@s to increase. Consolidation of
Internet advertising networks and website publisiveuld eventually lead to a concentration of @ inventory on websites or networks
owned by a small number of individuals or entitiwhjch could limit the supply of inventory availahio us or increase the price of inventor
us. For example, throughout fiscal year 2012, euenue has declined in our financial services thentical primarily due to volume declines
caused by losses of traffic from third-party puliss, which resulted from acquisitions of mediarsesi by competitors, changes in a search
engine’s algorithms which reduced or eliminatedfitdrom some third-party publishers, and increahsempetition for quality media. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to acqudrerising inventory that meets our clients’ penfiance, price and quality requirements, in
which case our revenue could decline or our opggatosts could increase.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the pastdamay do so in the future, which makes our resultisoperations difficult to predict
and could cause our operating results to fall shaftanalysts’ and investors’ expectations.

Historically, our prior quarterly and annual opérgtresults have fluctuated due to changes in aamless, our industry and the general
economic climate. Similarly, our future operatiggults may vary significantly from quarter to geadue to a variety of factors, many of
which are beyond our control. We expect our resolsontinue to fluctuate for the foreseeable fat@ur fluctuating results could cause our
performance to be below the expectations of seesrinalysts and investors, causing the price o€ommon stock to fall. Because our
business is changing and evolving, our historigarating results may not be useful to you in praiicour future operating results. Factors
may increase the volatility of our operating resiticlude the following:

» changes in demand and pricing for our servi
» changes in our pricing policies, the pricing p@iibf our competitors, or the pricing of Interng@vertising or media
» the addition of new clients or the loss of existitignts;
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» changes in our clier’ advertising agencies or the marketing strategieslents or their advertising agencies emp
» changes in the regulatory environment for us oratients;

« changes in the economic prospects of our clientseoeconomy generally, which could alter currerprospective clien’ spending
priorities, or could increase the time or costaunel to complete sales with clien

» changes in the availability of Internet advertisorghe cost to reach Internet visito
» changes in the placement of our websites on seangines

» the introduction of new product or service offegryy our competitors; ar

» costs related to acquisitions of businesses ontdogies.

We depend upon Internet search companies to att@significant portion of the visitors to our welies, and any change in the search
companies’ search algorithms or perception of usaur industry could result in our websites beingtéed less prominently in either paid
or algorithmic search result listings, in which cashe number of visitors to our websites and ouveaue could decline.

We depend in significant part on various Interrmetrsh companies, such as Google, Microsoft and dahaod other search websites to
direct a significant number of visitors to our wiges so that we can provide our online marketingises to our clients. Search websites
typically provide two types of search results, aidonic and paid listings. Algorithmic, or organiistings are determined and displayed solely
by a set of formulas designed by search compaRagd.listings can be purchased and then are disgliiyarticular words are included in a
user’s Internet search. Placement in paid listinggenerally not determined solely on the bid primg also takes into account the search
engines’ assessment of the quality of the webes#éufed in the paid listing and other factors. g on both algorithmic and paid search
results, as well as advertising on other websitedirect a substantial share of the visitors towebsites.

Our ability to maintain the number of visitors toravebsites from search websites and other welisitest entirely within our control.

For example, Internet search websites frequentligeetheir algorithms in an attempt to optimizeitisearch result listings or to maintain their
internal standards and strategies. Changes ingbetams could cause our websites to receivefasrable placements, which could reduce
the number of users who visit our websites. We heqerienced fluctuations in the search resultirayskfor a number of our websites. Some
of our sites and paid listing campaigns have begatively impacted by Google algorithmic changesaddition, our business model may be
deemed similar to those of our competitors andrsthreour industry that Internet search websitey owsider to be unsuitable or unattractive.
Internet search websites could deem our conteme tansuitable or below standards or less attractiweorthy than those of other or competing
websites. In either such case, our websites magvetess favorable placement in algorithmic odgdaitings, or both.

In addition, we may make decisions that are subtgitregarding the purchase of paid listings orgroprietary bid management
technologies may contain defects or otherwisetdaéichieve their intended results, either of whiohld also reduce the number of visitors to
our websites or cause us to incur additional cé¥esmay also make decisions that are suboptimakdagg the placement of advertisement:
other websites and pricing, which could increasecosts to attract such visitors or cause us torinanecessary costs. A reduction in the
number of visitors to our websites could negatiadfect our ability to earn revenue. If visits toravebsites decrease, we may need to resort tc
more costly sources to replace lost visitors, arahsncreased expense could adversely affect ainéss and profitability.
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If we are unable to retain the members of our maramgent team or attract and retain qualified managemiéeam members in the future,
our business and growth could suffer.

Our success and future growth depend, to a sigmifidegree, on the continued contributions of teenlmers of our management team.
Each member of our management team is an at-wpl@yee and may voluntarily terminate his or her Empment with us at any time with
minimal notice. We also may need to hire additianahagement team members to adequately managesiness. We may not be able to
retain or identify and attract additional qualifisdinagement team members. Competition for expertenanagement-level personnel in our
industry is intense. Qualified individuals are iglhdemand, particularly in the Internet marketingustry, and we may incur significant costs
to attract and retain them. Members of our managéteam have also become, or will soon become tantially vested in their stock option
grants. We have recently experienced the lossrtdioesenior members of our management team, imgjuoihe of our Executive Vice
Presidents and our Senior Vice President of Cotpddavelopment. If we lose the services of add@&ionembers of our management team
we are unable to attract and retain additionalifjedlsenior managers, our business and growthdcsuffer.

We need to hire and retain additional qualified Emnel to grow and manage our business. If we arable to attract and retain
qualified personnel, our business and growth coudd seriously harmed.

Our performance depends on the talents and effibdar employees. Our future success will dependwrability to attract, retain and
motivate highly skilled personnel in all areas of organization and, in particular, in our engifegitechnology, sales and marketing, media,
finance and legal/regulatory teams. We have fouddficult from time to time to locate and hireitable personnel. If we experience similar
difficulties in the future, our growth may be himdd. Qualified individuals are in high demand, jgartarly in the Internet marketing industry,
and we may incur significant costs to attract atdin them. Many of our employees have also becomaill soon become, substantially
vested in their stock option grants and may be rtikedy to leave us as a result. If we are unablattract and retain the personnel we need to
succeed, our business and growth could be harmed.

A substantial portion of our revenue is generatadi a limited number of clients and, if we lose ajor client, our revenue will decreas
and our business and prospects would be adversapeicted.

A substantial portion of our revenue is generatethfa limited number of clients. Our top three migeaccounted for 20% of our net
revenue for the fiscal year 2012. Our clients camegally terminate their contracts with us at amet with limited prior notice or penalty. Our
clients may also reduce their level of businesk wé, leading to lower revenue. In addition, reuns in business by one or more significant
clients may lead to price reductions to our othients for those products whose prices are detexdhin whole or in part by client bidding or
competition, resulting in lower revenue. We exyhet a limited number of clients will continue tocaunt for a significant percentage of our
revenue, and the loss of, or material reductiothieir marketing spending with us could decrease@enue and harm our business.

We rely on certain advertising agencies for the phase of various advertising and marketing serviagsbehalf of their clients. Such
agencies may have or develop high-risk credit plegiwhich may result in credit risk to us.

A portion of our client business is sourced throagdkiertising agencies and, in many cases, we aintith these agencies and not
directly with the underlying client. Contractingtivithese agencies, which in certain cases haveagrdavelop higtrisk credit profiles, subjec
us to greater credit risk than where we contratt wlients directly. This credit risk may vary depég on the nature of an agens@ggregate
client base. For the fiscal year ended June 3@®,20& wrote off an account receivable as a bad afedypproximately $1.4 million from an
advertising agency which became insolvent. Thenebeano assurances that we will not experiencdaifad debt in the future. Any such
write-offs could have a materially negative effentour results of operation for the periods in vartice write-offs occur.
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If we fail to compete effectively against other am marketing and media companies and other comfuei, we could lose clients and our
revenue may decline.

The market for online marketing is intensely contpes, and we expect this competition to continoénicrease in the future both from
existing competitors and, given the relatively Ibarriers to entry into the market, from new contpesi We compete both for clients and for
limited high quality advertising inventory. We coatp for clients on the basis of a number of factoiduding return on marketing
expenditures, price, and client service.

We compete with Internet and traditional media canigs for a share of clients’ overall marketing gets, including:

» online marketing or media services providers suchalyard Education Partners in the education tliertical and BankRate in the
financial services client vertice

» offline and online advertising agenci
* major Internet portals and search engine compavitbsadvertising networks such as Google, Yahoot|, Blicrosoft;

» other online marketing service providers, includamdine affiliate advertising networks and indussgyecific portals or lead
generation companie

» website publishers with their own sales forces sigdittheir online marketing services directly ti@wts;
* in-house marketing groups and activities at curremodential clients

» offline direct marketing agencie

* mobile and social media; a

» television, radio and print companit

Competition for web traffic among websites and skeangines, as well as competition with traditiomaidia companies, could result in
significant price pressure, declining margins, uns in revenue and loss of market share. Intexidias we continue to expand the scope of
our services, we may compete with a greater numbeebsites, clients and traditional media compsaieross an increasing range of different
services, including in vertical markets where cotitpes may have advantages in expertise, brandgrétion and other areas. Large Internet
companies with brand recognition, such as Googihod!, and Microsoft, have significant numbersioéct sales personnel and substantial
proprietary advertising inventory and web traffiat provide a significant competitive advantage laade significant impact on pricing for
Internet advertising and web traffic. These compamnay also develop more vertically targeted prtdil@at match consumers with products
and services, such as Google’s mortgage rate awlit card comparison products, and thus compete wgitmore directly. The trend toward
consolidation in the Internet advertising arena mlayp affect pricing and availability of advertigimventory and web traffic. Many of our
current and potential competitors also enjoy otwenpetitive advantages over us, such as longeatpegrhistories, greater brand recognition,
larger client bases, greater access to advertisigntory on high-traffic websites, and signifidgrgreater financial, technical and marketing
resources. As a result, we may not be able to cterquecessfully. Competition from other marketiegvice providers’ online and offline
offerings could affect both volume and price, amastrevenue. If we fail to deliver results that superior to those that other online marketing
service providers achieve, we could lose clients@ur revenue may decline.
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We have a significant amount of debt, which may itrour ability to fund general corporate requiremésiand obtain additional
financing, limit our flexibility in responding to lusiness opportunities and competitive developmemtd increase our vulnerability to
adverse economic and industry conditions.

As of June 30, 2012, we had an outstanding termath a principal balance of $97.5 million and20$ million revolving credit line, a
of which is available to be drawn, subject to caamte with applicable covenants. As of such datealso had outstanding notes to sellers
arising from numerous acquisitions in the totahpipal amount of $12.5 million. As a result of gations associated with our debt:

* we may not have sufficient liquidity to respondtasiness opportunities, competitive developmendsaaiverse econom
conditions;

* we may not have sufficient liquidity to fund all ofir costs if our revenue declines or costs inereasd
* we may not have sufficient funds to repay the ppalicbalance of our debt when di

Our debt obligations may also impair our abilityofatain additional financing, if needed. Our ingahbtess is secured by substantially all
of our assets, leaving us with limited collatea &dditional financing. Moreover, the terms of mdebtedness restrict our ability to take
certain actions, including the incurrence of addisil indebtedness, certain mergers and acquisjtionsstments, asset sales and stock
repurchase. In addition, even if we are able teeraeeded equity financing, we are required taaysartion of the net proceeds of certain types
of equity financings to repay the outstanding bed¢aof our term loan. A failure to pay interestmiébtedness when due could result in a
variety of adverse consequences, including thelaat®n of our indebtedness. In such a situatfiois,unlikely that we would be able to fulfill
our obligations under our credit facility or repég accelerated indebtedness or otherwise coverasts.

The continued global macroeconomic uncertainty peselditional risks to our business, financial cortidin and results of operations.

The United States and the global economy are expeirig a prolonged period of economic uncertaiolip¥ing severe economic
downturns and credit issues in many countries.sltne pace of recovery in the United States, detation of global economies, potential
insolvency of one or more countries globally, higtemployment and reduced and/or volatile equitpyatbns all create risks that could harm
our business. If macroeconomic conditions were dosen, we are not able to predict the impact sumts@ning conditions will have on the
online marketing industry in general, and our ressaf operations specifically. Clients in partiautdient verticals such as financial services,
particularly mortgage, credit cards and depositgls and medium-sized business customers and Isemvices are facing very difficult
conditions and their marketing spend has been ivetjatiffected. These conditions could also damagebusiness opportunities in existing
markets, and reduce our revenue and profitabilitiile the effect of these and related conditionsgsovidespread risk across our business, we
believe that it may particularly affect our effomsthe mortgage, credit cards and deposits, sraatl-mediunsized business and home serv
client verticals, due to reduced availability oédit for households and businesses and reducee@haldsdisposable income. Economic
conditions may not improve or may worsen.

Poor perception of our business or industry as aué of the actions of third parties could harm oweputation and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of opei@s.

Our business is dependent on attracting a largébauof visitors to our websites and providing leadd clicks to our clients, which
depends in part on our reputation within the induahd with our clients. There are companies within industry that regularly engage in
activities that our clients’ customers may viewuatawful or inappropriate. These activities by dhrarties, such as spyware or deceptive
promotions, may be seen by clients as charactedgparticipants in our industry and, therefor@yrhave an adverse effect on the reputation
of all participants in our industry, including Wy damage to our reputation, including from puityiédrom legal proceedings against us or
companies that work within our industry, governnaéproceedings, consumer class action litigatiorthe disclosure of information security
breaches or private information misuse, could asklgraffect our business, financial condition aesutts of operations.
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Our quarterly revenue and operating results may dtuate significantly from quarter to quarter due teasonal fluctuations in advertisir
spending.

Our results are subject to significant fluctuatéana result of seasonality. In particular, our terarending December 31 (our second fi
quarter) generally demonstrate seasonal weaknessirisecond fiscal quarters, there is generaliyetcavailability of some forms of media
during the holiday period on a cost effective basid some of our clients request fewer leads dbeliday staffing. Our fluctuating results
could cause our performance to be below the expeetaof securities analysts and investors, cauiagrice of our common stock to fall. To
the extent our revenue contracts, we expect tleesehsonality in our business may become more eqppand may in the future cause our
operating results to fluctuate to a greater extent.

If we do not effectively manage future growth, oaperating performance will suffer and we may loskeats.

Although we are currently experiencing challengegrowing our business, we have historically exgered rapid growth in our
operations and operating locations. This growthfiased, and if we return to growth, will continieeplace, significant demands on our
management and our operational and financial itrireture. In addition, we have actively acquired #ssets of complementary businesses as
part of our strategy to expand our portfolio ofjetled media on a cost effective basis. Rapid gremthacquisitions may make it more difficult
for us to accomplish the following:

» successfully scale our technology to accommodédegar business and integrate acquisitic

* maintain our standing with key vendors, includintetnet search companies and t-party website publisher

* maintain our client service standards;

» develop and improve our operational, financial ar@hagement controls and maintain adequate repayistgms and procedur:

In addition, our personnel, systems, procedurescanttols may be inadequate to support our futperations. The improvements
required to manage such growth would require usake significant expenditures, expand, train andaga our employee base and allocate
valuable management resources. If we fail to effelst manage our growth or acquisitions, our opegaperformance will suffer and we may
lose clients, key vendors and key personnel.

Our future growth depends in part on our ability tdentify and complete acquisitions. Any acquisit®that we pursue or complete will
involve a number of risks. If we are unable to addis and resolve these risks successfully, such &itipn activity could harm our
business, results of operations and financial cotidn.

Our historical growth has been in significant ghre to the large number of acquisitions we havepterad of third-party website
publishing businesses and other businesses thabamglementary to our own. We intend to evaluaté gursue additional acquisitions of
complementary businesses and technologies to expamchpabilities, client base and media. We hds@ evaluated, and expect to continue to
evaluate, a wide array of potential strategic taations. However, we may not be successful in ifléng suitable acquisition candidates or be
able to complete acquisitions of such candidateadtition, we may not be able to obtain finan@ngavorable terms, or at all, to fund
acquisitions that we may wish to pursue. The gueiteid benefit of acquisitions that we complete matymaterialize and the process of
integrating acquired businesses or technologiesareate unforeseen operating difficulties and egjiares. Some of the areas where we may
face acquisition-related risks include:

» diversion of management time and potential busidessiptions;
« difficulties integrating and supporting acquiredgucts or technologie
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» disruptions or reductions in client revenues asgediwith changes to the business models of aatjbirsinesse:

» expenses, distractions and potential claims reguftom acquisitions, whether or not they are catgd;

» retaining and integrating employees from any bugsas we may acquir

» issuance of dilutive equity securities, incurren€debt or reduction in cash balanc

* integrating various accounting, management, inféionahuman resource and other systems to perfeittefe managemen
* incurring possible impairment charges, contingettilities, amortization expense or wi-offs of goodwill;

* unexpected capital expenditure requireme

» insufficient incremental revenue to offset increhsgpenses associated with acquisitic

» underperformance of acquired businesses or asset

* becoming involved in acquisiti-related litigation

Foreign acquisitions involve risks in addition lm$e mentioned above, including those relatedtégmtion of operations across differ
cultures and languages, currency risks and thé&pkat economic, political, administrative and mgeaent, and regulatory risks associated
with specific countries. We may not be able to addrthese risks successfully, or at all, withootiring significant costs, delay or other
operating problems. Our inability to resolve suisks could harm our business and results of oferati

We may need additional capital in the future to mexeir financial obligations and to pursue our bus@ss objectives. Additional capital
may not be available or may not be available ondeable terms and our business and financial conditi could therefore be adversely
affected.

While we anticipate that our existing cash and aaghivalents, together with availability under coedit facility and cash from
operations, will be sufficient to fund our operasdor at least the next 12 months, we may needise additional capital to fund operations in
the future or to finance acquisitions. If we seekaise additional capital in order to meet variobgectives, including developing future
technologies and services, increasing working egmtquiring businesses and responding to comyeeptessures, capital may not be avail
on favorable terms or may not be available atimladdition, pursuant to the terms of our crediilfty, we are required to use a portion of the
net proceeds of certain equity financings to refp@youtstanding balance of our term loan. Lackudfigent capital resources could
significantly limit our ability to take advantagélmsiness and strategic opportunities. Any add#icapital raised through the sale of equity or
debt securities with an equity component wouldtdilour stock ownership. If adequate additional uack not available, we may be require
delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate mategatspof our business strategy, including potemtifitional acquisitions or development of n
technologies.

If the market for online marketing services fail® tcontinue to develop, our future growth may be ited and our revenue may decrease.

The online marketing services market is relativedy and rapidly evolving, and it uses different meaments than traditional media to
gauge its effectiveness. Some of our current cerg@l clients have little or no experience using Internet for advertising and marketing
purposes and have allocated only limited portidrtheir advertising and marketing budgets to therimet. The adoption of Internet advertis
particularly by those entities that have histoticaglied upon traditional media for advertisingguires the acceptance of a new way of
conducting business, exchanging information anduetiag new advertising and
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marketing technologies and services. In particularare dependent on our clients’ adoption of neatrics to measure the success of online
marketing campaigns. We may also experience resistiiom traditional advertising agencies who maydbvising our clients. We cannot
assure you that the market for online marketingises will continue to grow. If the market for améi marketing services fails to continue to
develop or develops more slowly than we anticipate,ability to grow our business may be limited @ur revenue may decrease.

Third-party website publishers may engage in unaatfzed or unlawful acts that could subject us tasificant liability or cause us to
lose clients.

We generate a significant portion of our web visittom media advertising that we purchase fromdtparty website publishers. Some
of these publishers are authorized to display dents’ brands, subject to contractual restrictidnghe past, some of our third-party website
publishers have engaged in activities that cedivur clients have viewed as harmful to their ligrsuch as displaying outdated descriptions
of a client’s offerings or outdated logos. Any &ityi by publishers that clients view as potentialgmaging to their brands can harm our
relationship with the client and cause the clienterminate its relationship with us, resultingaitoss of revenue. In addition, the law is
unsettled on the extent of liability that an adigent in our position has for the activities of thjparty website publishers. Recent Department of
Education regulations impose strict liability orr @ducation clients for misrepresentations madghbiy marketing service providers and many
of our contracts in the education client verticapose liability on us for the acts of our third{ygoublishers. We could be subject to costly
litigation and, if we are unsuccessful in defendingselves, damages for the unauthorized or unleaefis of third-party website publishers.

Because many of our client contracts can be caneelby the client with little or no prior notice grenalty, the cancellation of one or
more contracts could result in an immediate declimeour revenue.

We derive our revenue from contracts with our im¢marketing clients, most of which are cancelabth little or no prior notice. In
addition, these contracts do not contain penalbyipions for cancellation before the end of thetramt term. The non-renewal, renegotiation,
cancellation, or deferral of large contracts, auaber of contracts that in the aggregate accaurd significant amount of our revenue, is
difficult to anticipate and could result in an imdigte decline in our revenue.

Unauthorized access to or accidental disclosurecohsumer personally-identifiable information thatevcollect may cause us to incur
significant expenses and may negatively affect avedibility and business.

There is growing concern over the security of peasformation transmitted over the Internet, aonsr identity theft and user privacy.
Despite our implementation of security measurescomputer systems may be susceptible to electamitysical computer breaks, viruse:
and other disruptions and security breaches. Angepeed or actual unauthorized disclosure of pealigridentifiable information regarding
website visitors, whether through breach of oumoek by an unauthorized party, employee theft, sésor error or otherwise, could harm our
reputation, impair our ability to attract websiisitors and attract and retain our clients, or eabjis to claims or litigation arising from
damages suffered by consumers, and thereby harimusiuress and operating results. In addition, wadcmcur significant costs in complying
with the multitude of state, federal and foreigwsaregarding the unauthorized disclosure of pedsaf@mation.

If we do not adequately protect our intellectualgperty rights, our competitive position and busise®ay suffer.

Our ability to compete effectively depends upon praprietary systems and technology. We rely oddrsecret, trademark and copyright
law, confidentiality agreements, and technical raeasto protect our proprietary rights. We curightive two patent applications pending in
the United States and no issued patents. Effetriiek= secret, copyright, trademark and patent ptiotemay not be available in all countries
where we currently operate or in which we may ogeirathe future. Some of our systems and techrigedogye not
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covered by any copyright, patent or patent appboatWe cannot guarantee that: (i) our intellectualperty rights will provide competitive
advantages to us; (ii) our ability to assert oteliactual property rights against potential conitpes or to settle current or future disputes will
not be limited by our agreements with third parti@ our intellectual property rights will be &rced in jurisdictions where competition may
be intense or where legal protection may be weaka(y of the trademarks, copyrights, trade seocoetther intellectual property rights that
we presently employ in our business will not lapsée invalidated, circumvented, challenged, omabaed; (v) competitors will not design
around our protected systems and technology; dthat we will not lose the ability to assert ontellectual property rights against others.

We are a party to a number of third-party intellattproperty license agreements and in the futuag meed to obtain additional licenses
or renew existing license agreements. We are uralgesdict with certainty whether these licenseaments can be obtained or renewed on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

We have from time to time become aware of thirdipamwho we believe may have infringed on our Iattlal property rights. The use
of our intellectual property rights by others cotddiuce any competitive advantage we have develapgédause us to lose clients, third-party
website publishers or otherwise harm our busirféskicing unauthorized use of our proprietary rigtdas be difficult and costly. In addition,
litigation, while it may be necessary to enforcepmtect our intellectual property rights or toeled litigation brought against us, could resu
substantial costs and diversion of resources anthgeanent attention and could adversely affect aainless, even if we are successful on the
merits.

Confidentiality agreements with employees, consottaand others may not adequately prevent disclesof trade secrets and other
proprietary information.

We have devoted substantial resources to the dawelot of our proprietary systems and technologwréter to protect our proprietary
systems and technology, we enter into confidetjialjreements with our employees, consultants piaddent contractors and other advisors.
These agreements may not effectively prevent uoaizttd disclosure of confidential information orauthorized parties from copying aspects
of our services or obtaining and using informatiloat we regard as proprietary. Moreover, theseesgeats may not provide an adequate
remedy in the event of such unauthorized disclasafeonfidential information and we cannot assurne that our rights under such agreem
will be enforceable. In addition, others may indegently discover trade secrets and proprietaryinéion, and in such cases we could not
assert any trade secret rights against such pattestly and time-consuming litigation could be essary to enforce and determine the scope o
our proprietary rights, and failure to obtain orintain trade secret protection could reduce anyp=titive advantage we have and cause us to
lose clients, publishers or otherwise harm ourhess.

Third parties may sue us for intellectual properityfringement which, if successful, could require us pay significant damages or curtail
our offerings.

We cannot be certain that our internally-developedcquired systems and technologies do not arichatilinfringe the intellectual
property rights of others. In addition, we licemsmtent, software and other intellectual propeidits from third parties and may be subject to
claims of infringement if such parties do not passtne necessary intellectual property rights éopitoducts they license to us. For example
are currently defending a patent infringement achiought against us by LendingTree. While we belithat we have meritorious defenses
against LendingTree’s claims, and intend to vigstpudefend the matter, there can be no assuraatevehwill prevail in this matter and any
adverse ruling may have a significant impact onbmginess and operating results. In addition, ddgas of the outcome of the matter, we may
incur significant legal fees defending the actiatilut is resolved.

In addition, we have in the past and may in tharkibe subject to legal proceedings and claimswidtave infringed the patent or other
intellectual property rights of third-parties. Thedaims sometimes involve patent holding companiesther adverse patent owners who have
no relevant product revenue and against
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whom our own patents, if any, may therefore provitlle or no deterrence. In addition, third pastieave asserted and may in the future assert
intellectual property infringement claims against olients, which we have agreed in certain cirdamses to indemnify and defend against
such claims. Any intellectual property related imflement claims, whether or not meritorious, caelslilt in costly litigation and could divert
management resources and attention. Moreover, gdhaibe found liable for infringement, we may bguieed to enter into licensing
agreements, if available on acceptable terms al,giay substantial damages, or limit or curtait systems and technologies. Moreover, we
may need to redesign some of our systems and tkxhies to avoid future infringement liability. Arof the foregoing could prevent us from
competing effectively and increase our costs.

Additionally, the laws relating to use of tradenmsdn the Internet are currently unsettled, paridulas they apply to search engine
functionality. For example, other Internet markgtand search companies have been sued in theopastdemark infringement and other
intellectual property-related claims for the digptd ads or search results in response to useraguibrat include trademarked terms. The
outcomes of these lawsuits have differed from glicion to jurisdiction. For this reason, it is agivable that certain of our activities could
expose us to trademark infringement, unfair contipeti misappropriation or other intellectual prayeelated claims which could be costly to
defend and result in substantial damages or otkerlivhit or curtail our activities, and adverseffeat our business or prospects.

If we fail to keep pace with rapidly-changing techblogies and industry standards or if our technolegifail to perform as intended, we
could lose clients or advertising inventory and orgsults of operations may suffer.

The business lines in which we currently compegechiaracterized by rapidly-changing Internet medid marketing standards, changing
technologies, frequent new product and service@dhctions, and changing user and client demandsirftoduction of new technologies and
services embodying new technologies and the emeegefmew industry standards and practices couldeeour existing technologies and
services obsolete and unmarketable or require ioi@etied investments in technology. Our future sssowill depend in part on our ability to
adapt to these rapidly-changing Internet media &snand other technologies. We will need to enhancexisting technologies and services
and develop and introduce new technologies andcesrto address our clients’ changing demandselfail to adapt successfully to such
developments or timely introduce new technologias services, we could lose clients, our expensekléncrease and we could lose
advertising inventory.

In addition, our proprietary technologies are ligkdy new, and they may contain design or perforoeatiefects that are not yet apparent.
The use of our proprietary technologies may noteaghthe intended results as effectively as othehrologies that exist now or may be
introduced by our competitors, in which case owiess could be harmed.

Changes in government regulation and industry stamds applicable to the Internet and our businesautsbdecrease demand for our
technologies and services or increase our costs.

Laws and regulations that apply to Internet comroations, commerce and advertising are becoming prerealent. These regulations
could increase the costs of conducting businesh®internet and could decrease demand for ountdabies and services.

In the United States, federal and state laws haea lenacted regarding copyrights, sending of witedi commercial email, user privacy,
search engines, Internet tracking technologiesctimarketing, data security, children’s privaaycipg, sweepstakes, promotions, intellectual
property ownership and infringement, trade secexgort of encryption technology, taxation and atakle content and quality of goods. Ot
laws and regulations may be adopted in the futuaeis and regulations, including those related tegay and use of personal information, are
changing rapidly outside the United States as wkith may make compliance with
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such laws and regulations difficult and which magatively affect our ability to expand internatiipaThis legislation could: (i) hinder
growth in the use of the Internet generally; (Bccease the acceptance of the Internet as a coroatiomis, commercial and advertising
medium; (iii) reduce our revenue; (iv) increase operating expenses; or (v) expose us to signifilialbilities.

The laws governing the Internet remain largely tifess even in areas where there has been sonsdege action. While we actively
monitor this changing legal and regulatory landsciapstay abreast of changes in the laws and régudaapplicable to our business, we are
certain how our business might be affected by fiieation of existing laws governing issues suslpeperty ownership, copyrights,
encryption and other intellectual property issuiegl, obscenity and export or import matters te thternet advertising industry. The vast
majority of such laws were adopted prior to theead\of the Internet. As a result, they do not congtiate or address the unique issues of the
Internet and related technologies. Changes in lateaded to address such issues could create aimggrin the Internet market. It may take
years to determine how existing laws apply to titerhet and Internet marketing. Such uncertaintyesat difficult to predict costs and cot
reduce demand for our services or increase theofakting business as a result of litigation castécreased service delivery costs.

In particular, a number of U.S. federal laws impaat business. The Digital Millennium Copyright Aot DMCA, is intended, in part, to
limit the liability of eligible online service praders for listing or linking to thirgearty websites that include materials that infriegeyrights o
other rights. Portions of the Communications Degehct, or CDA, are intended to provide statutorgtections to online service providers
who distribute third-party content. We rely on fitetections provided by both the DMCA and CDA imdacting our business. The U.S.
Department of Education issued regulations on itieercompensation and other matters which becafeetafe July 1, 2011. These
regulations repeal all safe harbors regarding itieerrompensation which existed under the priout&tipns. The elimination of the safe
harbors create uncertainty for us and our educatients and impact the way in which we are paidby clients and, accordingly, could red
the amount of revenue we generate from the educelient vertical.

In addition, the Department has issued regulatibasalso restrict Title 1V funding for programstmoeeting prescribed income-to-debt
ratios (i.e., programs not leading to “gainful eoyshent” as defined under the proposed regulatibingse provisions, could negatively affect
our business with education clients. Any changeaheése laws or judicial interpretations narrowihgit protections could subject us to greater
risk of liability and may increase our costs of giance with these regulations or limit our abilityoperate certain lines of business.

The financial services, education and medical itriessare highly regulated and our marketing atiéision behalf of our clients in those
industries are also regulated. As described alanfor example, the regulations from the Departé&Rducation on incentive compensat
“gainful employment” and other matters could limitr clients’ businesses and limit the revenue weive from our education clients. As an
additional example, our mortgage and insurance ie=band marketing services we offer are subjegatmus federal, state and local laws,
including state licensing laws, federal and states| prohibiting unfair acts and practices, and faeldend state advertising laws. Any failure to
comply with these laws and regulations could suhjsdo revocation of required licenses, civilpnal or administrative liability, damage to
our reputation or changes to or limitations ondbeduct of our business. Any of the foregoing catddse our business, operations and
financial condition to suffer.

If any regulatory audit, investigation or other poeeding finds us not in compliance with the numemlaws and regulations applicable
us, we may not be able to successfully challengehsiinding and our business could suffer.

We are subject to audits, inquiries, investigatiataims of non-compliance and lawsuits by fedaral state governmental agencies,
regulatory agencies, attorneys general and othegrgmental or regulatory bodies, any of whom mésgal violations of the legal or regulatc
requirements applicable to us. For example, we
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responded to a civil investigation conducted byatierneys general of Alabama, Arizona, Delawaterida, Idaho, Illinois, lowa, Kentucky,
Massachusetts, Minnesota, Nevada, North Carolineg@, South Carolina, and Tennessee into cerfanranarketing and business practices
related to our education client vertical duringéisyear 2012. On June 26, 2012, we entered intdsaaorance of Voluntary Compliance
agreement (the “Agreement”) with the attorneys gainghich required us to transfer the GIBill.comhsd#e to the United States Veterans
Administration, to pay $2.5 million to the settlistates and to add disclosures and disclaimersrteducation-related websites. The new
disclosures and disclaimers required by the Agregmeuld negatively affect media conversion rates thus our revenue or profitability. If 1
results of future audits, inquiries, investigatiocleims and lawsuits are unfavorable to us, we b&gequired to pay monetary fines or
penalties or have restrictions placed on our bgsingny one of these sanctions could materiallyeesbly affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows rsdlt in the imposition of significant restriati®on us and our ability to operate.

Increased taxation of companies engaged in Intermemmerce may adversely affect the commercial useunr marketing services and
our financial results.

The tax treatment of Internet commerce remainsttiadeand we cannot predict the effect of curetémpts to impose sales, income or
other taxes on commerce conducted over the InteFagtauthorities at the international, federadfestand local levels are currently reviewing
the taxation of Internet commerce, particularlyrey governmental agencies seek to address fisnakens and budgetary shortfalls by
introducing new taxes or expanding the applicabditexisting tax laws. We have experienced cersédtes taking expansive positions with
regard to their taxation of our services. The inipms of new laws requiring the collection of sat@sother transactional taxes on the sale o
services via the Internet could create increaseuréstrative burdens or costs, discourage cliemsfpurchasing services from us, decrease
our ability to compete or otherwise substantialiyrh our business and results of operations.

Limitations on our ability to collect and use datierived from user activities could significantlyrdinish the value of our services and
cause us to lose clients and revenue.

When a user visits our websites, we use techndogieluding “cookies,” to collect information suek the uses' Internet Protocol, or |
address, offerings delivered by us that have beeviqusly viewed by the user and responses bydbketo those offerings. In order to
determine the effectiveness of a marketing campamghto determine how to modify the campaign, wedrte access and analyze this
information. The use of cookies is the subjectsgfulatory scrutiny and industry self-regulatoryites, including the discussion of “do-not-
track” technologies and guidelines and to litigatiddditionally, users are able to block or delaekies from their browser. Periodically,
certain of our clients and publishers seek to fibloir limit our collection or use of this datatémruptions, failures or defects in our data
collection systems, as well as privacy concernangigg the collection of user data, could alsotliouir ability to analyze data from our clients’
marketing campaigns. This risk is heightened wherdeliver marketing services to clients in the ficial and medical services client verticals.
If our access to data is limited in the future, way be unable to provide effective technologies serdices to clients and we may lose clients
and revenue.

As a creator and a distributor of Internet contentje face potential liability and expenses for legdhims based on the nature and content
of the materials that we create or distribute. levare required to pay damages or expenses in cotioeavith these legal claims, our
operating results and business may be harmed.

We create original content for our websites andketang messages and distribute third-party corderdur websites and in our
marketing messages. As a creator and distributoriginal content and third-party provided contem, face potential liability based on a
variety of theories, including defamation, negligendeceptive advertising (including the DepartnedriEducation’s regulations regarding
misrepresentation in education marketing), copyragitrademark infringement or other legal theobiased on the nature, creation or
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distribution of this information. It is also poskilihat our website visitors could make claims aghils for losses incurred in reliance upon
information provided on our websites. In additias,the number of users of forums and social mediaufes on our websites increases, we
could be exposed to liability in connection withteréal posted to our websites by users and othet farties. These claims, whether broug!
the United States or abroad, could divert managétimaa and attention away from our business andlr@s significant costs to investigate
defend, regardless of the merit of these claimadidition, if we become subject to these typedaifits and are not successful in our defense,
we may be forced to pay substantial damages.

Wireless devices and mobile phones are increasifigding used to access the Internet, and our onlmarketing services may not be as
effective when accessed through these devices, lwbiuld cause harm to our business.

The number of people who access the Internet througpile devices such as smartphones and tablsetstr@ased substantially in the
last few years. Our online marketing services vagrgigned for persons accessing the Internet osldafeor laptop computer. The smaller
screens, lower resolution graphics and less coenétyping capabilities of these devices may makeoire difficult for visitors to respond to
our offerings. In addition, the cost of mobile adigéng is relatively high and may not be cost-effee for our services. If our services continue
to be less effective or economically attractivedtients seeking to engage in marketing througketdevices and this segment of web traffic
grows at the expense of traditional computer Irgeatcess, we will experience difficulty attractimgbsite visitors and attracting and retaining
clients and our operating results and businessheitharmed.

We may not succeed in expanding our businessesidathe United States, which may limit our futureayvth. If we were to expand our
business outside of the United States, then we faile risks in conducting business in internationalarkets.

One potential area of growth for us is in the in&ional markets and we have recently entereddettain international markets.
However, we have limited experience in marketimdjjreg and supporting our services outside of tmitéél States and we may not be
successful in introducing or marketing our serviabsad.

There are risks inherent in conducting businesstarnational markets, such as:
» the adaptation of technologies and services tadgorelient’ preferences and custon
» application of foreign laws and regulations toins|uding marketing and privacy regulatiol
» changes in foreign political and economic condaic
» tariffs and other trade barriers, fluctuations umrency exchange rates and potentially adversedagequence:
» language barriers or cultural differenc
» reduced or limited protection for intellectual peoty rights in foreign jurisdictions
» difficulties and costs in staffing, managing or mering foreign operation
» education of potential clients who may not be féamivith online marketing
» challenges in collecting accounts receivables;
« employment regulations and local labor conditic

If we are unable to successfully expand and markeservices abroad, our business and future grovethbe harmed and we may incur
costs that may not lead to future revenue.
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We could be adversely affected by violations of th&. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar widwide anti-bribery laws.

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”) aimhilar worldwide anti-bribery laws generally pibit companies and their
intermediaries from making improper payments to-bo8. officials for the purpose of obtaining oraiging business. We operate in parts of
the world outside the United States that have égpeed governmental corruption to some degree.elt@n be no assurance that our internal
control policies and procedures will always protesfrom reckless or criminal acts committed by ennployees or agents. Violations of these
laws, or allegations of such violations, could dggrour business and result in a material advdfseten our results of operations, financial
condition, and cash flows.

We rely on Internet bandwidth and data center prdgrs and other third parties for key aspects of gmcess of providing services to our
clients, and any failure or interruption in the s&ices and products provided by these third partesld harm our business.

We rely on third-party vendors, including data egr&nd Internet bandwidth providers. Any disrupiiothe network access or co-
location services provided by these third-partyjaters or any failure of these third-party provislés handle current or higher volumes of use
could significantly harm our business. Any finah@aother difficulties our providers face may havegative effects on our business, the n:
and extent of which we cannot predict. We exerliide control over these third-party vendors, whiacreases our vulnerability to problems
with the services they provide. We license techgwland related databases from third parties tditae analysis and storage of data and
delivery of offerings. We have experienced intetips and delays in service and availability fotadeenters, bandwidth and other technolc
in the past. Any errors, failures, interruptiongdetays experienced in connection with these thary technologies and services could
adversely affect our business and could expose lighilities to third parties.

Our systems also heavily depend on the availahifitylectricity, which also comes from third-papsoviders. If we or third-party data
centers which we utilize were to experience a mpguver outage, we would have to rely on back-upeggors. These back-up generators may
not operate properly through a major power outagketheir fuel supply could also be inadequate duamajor power outage or disruptive
event. Furthermore, we do not currently have badengerators at our Foster City, California headgusr Information systems such as ours
may be disrupted by even brief power outages, dhéyluctuations in power resulting from switcliesind from back-up generators. This
could give rise to obligations to certain of ouents which could have an adverse effect on owltefor the period of time in which any
disruption of utility services to us occurs.

Interruption or failure of our information technolagy and communications systems could impair our #&bito effectively deliver our
services, which could cause us to lose clients &adm our operating results.

Our delivery of marketing and media services depandthe continuing operation of our technologyasfructure and systems. Any
damage to or failure of our systems could resuihi@rruptions in our ability to deliver offeringmickly and accurately and/or process visitors’
responses emanating from our various web preselmtes.uptions in our service could reduce our reseand profits, and our reputation could
be damaged if people believe our systems are abteliOur systems and operations are vulneraldartage or interruption from earthquakes,
terrorist attacks, floods, fires, power loss, braek hardware or software failures, telecommuiices failures, computer viruses or other
attempts to harm our systems, and similar events.

We lease or maintain server space in various legstincluding in San Francisco, California. Outif@enia facilities are located in areas
with a high risk of major earthquakes. Our fa@htiare also subject to break-ins, sabotage anttimal acts of vandalism, and to potential
disruptions if the operators of these facilitiesdéinancial difficulties. Some of our systems aat fully redundant, and our disaster recovery
planning cannot account for all eventualities. ®heurrence of a natural disaster, a decision teectofacility we are using without adequate
notice for financial reasons or other unanticipgisablems at our facilities could result in lengthterruptions in our service.
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Any unscheduled interruption in our service wouwddult in an immediate loss of revenue. If we expere frequent or persistent system
failures, the attractiveness of our technologias services to clients and website publishers cbalgermanently harmed. The steps we have
taken to increase the reliability and redundancguwfsystems are expensive, reduce our operatimgimand may not be successful in
reducing the frequency or duration of unscheduteriuptions.

Any constraints on the capacity of our technologyfriastructure could delay the effectiveness of ayperations or result in system
failures, which would result in the loss of clientnd harm our business and results of operations.

Our future success depends in part on the effigierformance of our software and technology inftadtire. As the numbers of websites
and Internet users increase, our technology infrettre may not be able to meet the increased dérmfasudden and unexpected increase in
the volume of user responses could strain the dgpafcour technology infrastructure. Any capaaditynstraints we experience could lead to
slower response times or system failures and aellyeafect the availability of websites and thedkof user responses received, which could
result in the loss of clients or revenue or harrauobusiness and results of operations.

We could lose clients if we fail to detect clickrttugh or other fraud on advertisements in a mannirat is acceptable to our clients.

We are exposed to the risk of fraudulent clickaaiions on our websites or our third-party publisheebsites. We may in the future
have to refund revenue that our clients have maigstand that was later attributed to, or suspdotée caused by fraud. Click-through fraud
occurs when an individual clicks on an ad displaged website or an automated system is used &becseich clicks with the intent of
generating the revenue share payment to the peblisther than to view the underlying content. éwatiraud occurs when on-line forms are
completed with false or fictitious information in affort to increase the compensable actions ipe&tsof which a web publisher is to be
compensated. From time to time we have experiefreedulent clicks or actions and we do not changedtients for such fraudulent clicks or
actions when they are detected. It is conceivdidethis activity could negatively affect our ptahility, and this type of fraudulent act could
hurt our reputation. If fraudulent clicks or actioare not detected, the affected clients may espeei a reduced return on their investment in
our marketing programs, which could lead the cidntbecome dissatisfied with our campaigns, andrim, lead to loss of clients and the
related revenue. Additionally, we have from timditoe had to terminate relationships with web pshmirs who we believed to have engage
fraud, which we may have to do so in the futuregnieation of such relationships entails a lossevenue associated with the legitimate act
or clicks generated by such web publishers.

An impairment in the carrying value of goodwill andther indefinite-lived intangible assets could reiyely affect our operating results.

We have a substantial amount of goodwill and pwsetiantangible assets on our balance sheet aslaagkacquisitions we have
completed. The carrying value of goodwill represehe fair value of an acquired business in exok&fentifiable assets and liabilities as of
the acquisition date. The carrying value of intbigassets with identifiable useful lives represéehe fair value of relationships, content,
domain names, acquired technology, among othexd, the acquisition date, and are amortized basetth@r economic lives. Goodwiill
expected to contribute indefinitely to our casiwioare not amortized, but must be evaluated foaimgent at least annually. If the carrying
value exceeds current fair value as determineddoais¢he discounted future cash flows of the reldtgsiness, the goodwill or intangible asset
is considered impaired and is reduced to fair valaea non-cash charge to earnings. Events andtamslthat could result in impairment
include adverse changes in the regulatory envireinoe other factors leading to reduction in expddbng-term growth or profitability. If the
value of goodwill or intangible assets is impairedr earnings could be adversely affected.

Goodwill impairment analysis and measurement isoagss that requires significant judgment. Ourlsfoéce and any estimated control
premium are factors impacting the assessment dathealue of our underlying
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reporting units for purposes of performing any geitidmpairment assessment. Our Common Stock dtiggtuated from a high of $13.80 to a
low of $7.80 during fiscal year 2012. If our stquce remains depressed and our market capitalizaéimains below our book value for a
sustained period, then it is possible that this @gn indicator of goodwill impairment. A non-cagiodwill impairment charge would have
the effect of decreasing our earnings or increasurgosses in such period. If we are requiredike ta substantial impairment charge, then our
operating results would be materially adverselgetifd in such period.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective interdaontrols, our ability to produce accurate finangl statements on a timely basis could
impaired, which would adversely affect our ability operate our business.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our finahoggporting and the preparation of financial stagets for external purposes in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Vg im the future discover areas of our internaficial and accounting controls and
procedures that need improvement. Our internalrobater financial reporting will not prevent ortdet all error and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operatadpoovide only reasonable, not absolute, assuitiiatehe control system’s objectives will
be met. Because of the inherent limitations ircafitrol systems, no evaluation of controls can jl®absolute assurance that misstatements
due to error or fraud will not occur or that alihtml issues and instances of fraud will be detbdfewe are unable to maintain proper and
effective internal controls, we may not be abl@itoduce accurate financial statements on a tima$ysbwhich could adversely affect our
ability to operate our business and could resulegulatory action.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price may be volatile, and you may notdise to resell shares of our common stock at ooab the price you paid.

The trading price of our common stock has beenlpigblatile since our initial public offering anday continue to be subject to wide
fluctuations in response to various factors, sofmelich are beyond our control. These factors idelthose discussed in this “Risk Factors”
section of this report on Form 10-K and others sagh

e our ability to return to growth and to manage sgatwth effectively;
» changes in earnings estimates or recommendatiossduyities analyst:

e announcements about our revenues, earnings orlyrates that are not in line with analyst expeotetj the risk of which i
heightened because it is our policy not to givertguly guidance on revenue, earnings, or growtbs.

« changes in governmental regulatio
e announcements regarding share repurchase prograhieeatiming and amount of shares we purchaserwsé programs

e announcements by us or our competitors of new @esysignificant contracts, commercial relationshgrquisitions or capit:
commitments

» changes in the search engine rankings of our aitesr ability to access PPC advertisi
» developments with respect to intellectual propegits;

» our ability to develop and market new and enhanreducts on a timely basi

* our commencement of, or involvement in, litigati

* negative publicity about us, our industry, our lgeor our client industries; ant

» aslowdown in our industry or the general econa
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In recent years, the stock market in general, hadrtarket for technology and Internet-based conggaini particular, has experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haverofieen unrelated or disproportionate to the ojgraerformance of those companies.
Broad market and industry factors may seriouslgafthe market price of our common stock, regasdtéour actual operating performance
addition, in the past, following periods of voldtilin the overall market and the market price giaaticular company’s securities, securities
class action litigation has often been institutgdiast these companies. Such litigation, if ing#iduagainst us, could result in substantial costs
and a diversion of our management’s attention asdurces.

If securities or industry analysts do not publiskesearch or reports about our business, or if thegue an adverse opinion regarding our
stock, our stock price and trading volume could tre.

The trading market for our common stock is influeth®y the research and reports that industry arrgess analysts publish about us,
business or the industries or businesses of oemtsli If any of the analysts who cover us issuaduerse opinion regarding our stock, our stock
price would likely decline. If one or more of them®alysts ceases coverage of our company or ¢ashlish reports on us regularly, we could
lose visibility in the financial markets, which tiarn could cause our stock price or trading volumedecline.

Material differences between our results and sedyrnalysts’ estimates could cause our stock ptiz&ecrease.
Our results may differ materially from security Bisas’ estimates, either in total or for a specdient vertical and such difference could
cause the market price of our stock to decrease.

We have generally not provided specific guidanciogcasts for near-term operating results, inéngathe likelihood that analyst
estimates could differ from our own expectationd entreasing the likelihood that our future resalisild differ from analyst estimates, either
in total or for a specific client vertical.

Our directors and executive officers and their respive affiliates have substantial control over aad could delay or prevent a change in
corporate control.

As of June 30, 2012, our directors and executifieer, together with their affiliates, beneficiabwned approximately 34% of our
outstanding common stock. As a result, these suidkhs, acting together, have substantial contrel the outcome of matters submitted to
stockholders for approval, including the electidrioectors and any merger, consolidation or sélkalamr substantially all of our assets. In
addition, these stockholders, acting together, lséyificant influence over the management andraffaf our company. Accordingly, this
concentration of ownership may have the effect of:

» delaying, deferring or preventing a change in coafgcontrol:
» impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or otheiness combination involving us;
» discouraging a potential acquirer from making alezroffer or otherwise attempting to obtain contbus.

Future sales of shares by existing stockholders ktbcause our stock price to decline.

If our directors, officers and/or their affiliategere to sell, or indicate an intent to sell, subtéh amounts of our common stock held by
them, the trading price of our common stock cowddlicie significantly.
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Provisions in our charter documents under Delawdesv and in contractual obligations, could discourag takeover that stockholders
may consider favorable and may lead to entrenchmehinanagement.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmaaind bylaws contain provisions that could haeedtfiect of delaying or preventing
changes in control or changes in our managemehbuiithe consent of our board of directors. Thesgigions include:

» aclassified board of directors with th-year staggered terms, which may delay the abifistackholders to change the member
of a majority of our board of director

* no cumulative voting in the election of directondhich limits the ability of minority stockholdere elect director candidate

» the exclusive right of our board of directors teatla director to fill a vacancy created by theaggion of the board of directors or
the resignation, death or removal of a directoriciviprevents stockholders from being able to filtancies on our board of
directors;

» the ability of our board of directors to determinassue shares of preferred stock and to deterthmerice and other terms of thc
shares, including preferences and voting rightthauit stockholder approval, which could be usesigaificantly dilute the
ownership of a hostile acquire

» aprohibition on stockholder action by written cents which forces stockholder action to be takesnagnnual or special meeting of
our stockholders

» the requirement that a special meeting of stocldrsidhay be called only by the chairman of the bodudirectors, the chie
executive officer or the board of directors, whinhy delay the ability of our stockholders to focomsideration of a proposal or to
take action, including the removal of directorsg.

» advance notice procedures that stockholders musplgowith in order to nominate candidates to ouagoof directors or to propc
matters to be acted upon at a stockholders’ meetihggh may discourage or deter a potential acqdifoon conducting a
solicitation of proxies to elect the acqu’s own slate of directors or otherwise attemptinglitain control of us

We are subject to certain amtikeover provisions under Delaware law. Under Dala¥aw, a corporation may not, in general, engag
business combination with any holder of 15% or nairigs capital stock unless the holder has heddstiock for three years or, among other
things, the board of directors has approved thesgetion.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on aaommon stock and, consequently, your ability to &afe a return on your investment
will depend on appreciation in the price of our conon stock.

We do not intend to declare and pay dividends orcapital stock for the foreseeable future. We ently intend to invest our future
earnings, if any, to fund our growth. Additionaltire terms of our credit facility restrict our afyilto pay dividends. Therefore, you are not
likely to receive any dividends on your common ktéar the foreseeable future.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices are located inaskd facility in Foster City, California, consigfiof approximately 63,998 square feet of
office space under a lease that expires in Octeb&8 with the option to extend the lease term hyttzar two years. This facility accommode
our principal engineering, sales,
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marketing, operations and finance and adminiseaistivities. We also lease additional facilitiesstcommodate sales, marketing, and
operations throughout the United States. OutsidhefJnited States, we also lease facilities t@awnodate engineering, sales, marketing, and
operations in Brazil, India and the United Kingdom.

We may add new facilities and expand our existauilities as we add employees and expand our mgr&et we believe that suitable
additional or substitute space will be availabl@e@sded to accommodate any such expansion of @uatigns.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On September 8, 2010, LendingTree, LLC (“LendingTydiled a patent infringement lawsuit againstmishe United States District
Court for the Western District of North Carolinagking a judgment that we have infringed a patetdt hy LendingTree, an injunctive order
against the alleged infringing activities and araedfor damages. If an injunction were to be grénitecould force us to stop or alter certain of
our business activities, such as our lead generatioertain client verticals. On April 12, 201BetCourt held a claim construction hearing and
issued an order construing certain disputed terftisegpatent-in-suit. We believe that we have noeious defenses against LendingTree’s
claims, and intend to vigorously defend the mafféere can be no assurance, however, that we reigi in this matter and any adverse
ruling may have a significant impact on our businasd operating results. In addition, regardlesh@butcome of the matter, we may incur
significant legal fees defending the action untisiresolved. While we intend to vigorously defend position, neither the outcome of the
litigation nor the amount or potential range of espre, if any, associated with the litigation caralssessed at this time.

On August 12, 2011, the attorney general of Kentiggnt a letter of inquiry to us regarding markgtservices that we provide to for-
profit schools. The attorneys general of Alabam@za@na, Delaware, Florida, Idaho, lllinois, lowaaksachusetts, Minnesota, Nevada, North
Carolina, Oregon, South Carolina, and Tennessed'8fates”) subsequently joined Kentucky in theuimgg The marketing services at issue
relate to our websites, such as www.gibill.com, wanmystudyguide.com, and others, whose intendeitacel comprises service members
and veterans of the United States military. Therattys general expressed concerns that the websitds mislead consumers into believing
that the websites are affiliated with the governtwrthat the featured schools are the only onaisabcept scholastic subsidies (such as tht
the Gl Bill) from service members and veterans @y thus violate the consumer protection laws efrdspective States. On August 25, 2(
the Kentucky attorney general initiated a civil éstigative demand, requesting information aboutnoairkketing, pricing structure, business
relationships, and financial data with respechefor-profit schools that appear on www.gibill.camd similar websites. Other of the 14 States
initiated identical civil investigative demands. Qune 26, 2012, we entered into an Assurance afffaty Compliance agreement (the
“Agreement”) with the attorneys general. Under Aggeement, we donated the URL “GIBill.com” to thaitéd States Department of Veterans
Affairs. We also agreed to pay a total of $2.5 imillto the settling states to reimburse them ferdbst of the investigation and negotiating
process, and further agreed to provide expandetbdiges on other military-oriented and educatelated websites. The new disclosures and
disclaimers under the agreement could negativéécamedia conversion rates. Early test resulteatd that we should not suffer material
diminishment of revenue. The tests were not exhaysto the full effects cannot be assessed witfaicgy. We believe that any negative
effects we may experience could be mitigated byoorgoptimization efforts. We also believe that thenges are likely to be adopted more
broadly in the industry, reducing or eliminatingyaelative disadvantage.

From time to time, we may become involved in oflegal proceedings and claims arising in the ordirtaurse of our business.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Our common stock has been traded on the NASDAQ & I8blect Market under the symbol “QNST” since initial public offering on
February 11, 2010. Prior to this time, there wagubolic market for our common stock. The followitadple shows the high and low sale prices
per share of our common stock as reported on thBMXQ Global Select Market for the periods indicated

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 High Low
First quarter ended September 30, 2010 $15.51 $ 9.7¢
Second quarter ended December 31, 2 $21.3¢ $13.91
Third quarter ended March 31, 20 $24.91 $18.92
Fourth quarter ended June 30, 2 $22.9¢ $10.6¢

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 High Low
First quarter ended September 30, 2 $13.8( $10.1%
Second quarter ended December 31, Z $12.6¢ $ 8.44
Third quarter ended March 31, 20 $11.3¢ $ 8.6C
Fourth quarter ended June 30, 2 $11.9( $ 7.8C

On August 16, 2012, the closing price as reportethe NASDAQ Global Select Market of our commorcktwas $8.68 per share and
we had approximately 137 stockholders of recordusfcommon stock.

We have never declared or paid, and do not antiigeclaring or paying, any cash dividends on ommroon stock. Any future
determination as to the declaration and paymediwdends, if any, will be at the discretion of dusard of directors and will depend on then
existing conditions, including our financial condit, operating results, contractual restrictiorapital requirements, business prospects and
other factors our board of directors may deem eglevOur credit facility also restricts our ability pay dividends.

For equity compensation plan information refertéor 12 in Part Ill of this Annual Report on FormK0

Stock Repurchase Program

On November 3, 2011, we announced that our BoaRirettors authorized a stock repurchase progrémwig us to repurchase our
outstanding shares of common stock up to $50.0amillThe repurchase program expires in Novembe 2R&purchases under this program
may take place in the open market or in privategatiated transactions and may be made under alRbl plan. There is no guarantee a
the exact number of shares that will be repurchagads, and we may discontinue repurchases atimw@y The amount authorized by our Bo
of Directors excludes broker commissions.

All of our stock repurchases during fiscal year 2@fere made pursuant to our publicly announcedkstmurchase plan through open
market purchases under Rule 10b5-1 plans. As &f 30n2012, we had repurchased an aggregate &,9I®%shares of our common stock
under this repurchase program at a weighted avemage of $9.47 per share for a total of $45.0iamill The remaining amount available for
repurchase of our common stock was $5.0 millionfakine 30, 2012, all of which was used for repasels in July 2012.

35



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the stock repurcleasivity during the fourth quarter of fiscal ye#312 and the approximate dollar ve
of shares that may yet be purchased pursuant tstock repurchase program that was available dareé 30, 2012:

Shares Repurchase

Approximate Dollar

Total Number of Value of Shares that
Total Number of Average Shares Purchased ¢ May Yet Be Purchase!
Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Under the Programs
Purchased per Share 1) Announce Program (in millions)
April 1, 2012 - April 30, 2012 — $ — — $ 13.E
May 1, 2012- May 31, 201z 412,10( $ 8.07 412,10( $ 10.Z
$ 5.C

June 1, 201- June 30, 201 581,50( $ 8.9z 581,50(

@ Excludes $0.02 per share broker commiss

Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “siigcitnaterial” or to be “filed” with the Securitiesxd Exchange Commission for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ExchangeofA1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, @raflilse subject to the liabilities under
that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incatpd by reference into any filing of QuinStreet.lunder the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Exchange Act.

The following graph shows a comparison from Febrddr, 2010 (the date our common stock commenceihfyaon the NASDAQ
Global Select Market) through June 30, 2012 of datiue total return for our common stock, the NASQAomposite Index and the RDG
Internet Composite Index. Such returns are basddstorical results and are not intended to sugiygste performance. Data for the NASD.
Composite Index and the RDG Internet CompositeXrasume reinvestment of dividends.

COMPARISON OF 28 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN?
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*$100 invested on 2711710 in stock or U310 0n index, including reinvestment of dividends
Fiscal year ending June 30
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
There were no unregistered sales of our equityrgeuduring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dsttauld be read together with “Management’s Disausand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operatioreid with the consolidated financial statementsawmpanying notes appearing elsewhere in thigtre
The selected consolidated financial data in thitige is not intended to replace our consolidatedrfcial statements and the accompanying
notes. The results of acquired businesses haveibdaded in our consolidated financial statemesirise their respective dates of acquisition.
Our historical results are not necessarily indieatf our future results and any interim resultsraot necessarily indicative of the results for a
full fiscal year.

We derived the consolidated statements of operatiata for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20112, 2(hd 2010 and the consolidated
balance sheets data as of June 30, 2012 and 28lofir audited consolidated financial statemengeapng elsewhere in this report. The
consolidated statements of operations data fofithal year ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 and teptidated balance sheets data as of
June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are derived from wditead consolidated financial statements, whichratencluded in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Net revenue $370,46¢ $403,02: $334,83! $260,52° $192,03(
Cost of revenu(d) 283,46t 291,99: 240,73 181,59¢ 130,86¢
Gross profit 87,00: 111,03( 94,10¢ 78,93¢ 61,16:
Operating expense(®)
Product developmel 21,05 24,16: 19,72¢ 14,887 14,05
Sales and marketir 14,07 17,38: 16,69¢ 16,15« 12,40¢
General and administratiy 23,37t 20,39¢ 18,46« 13,17: 13,37:
Total operating expens: 58,50( 61,94 54,88¢ 44,21% 39,83
Operating incom: 28,50: 49,08¢ 39,217 34,72: 21,33(
Interest incomt 134 16¢ 97 24% 1,48z
Interest expens (4,462) (4,217) (3,977) (3,54¢) (1,214
Other income (expense), r (42) 56 1,527 (239) 14E
Interest and other income (expense), (4,370 (3,98¢) (2,357) (3,53¢) 41%
Income before income tax 24,13 45,10: 36,86( 31,18 21,74
Provision for taxe: (11,13) (17,88)) (16,27¢) (13,909 (8,87¢)
Net income $ 13,00: $ 27,21« $ 20,58¢ $ 17,27« $ 12,86:
Less: 8% no-cumulative dividends on convertible preferred st $ — $ — $ (2,01 $ (3,270 $ (3,27¢)
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to conviertiseferred stoc $ — $ — $ (5,789 $ (8,599 $ (5,925
Net income attributable to common stockholc— Basic $ 13,00: $ 27,21« $ 12,78. $ 5,39¢ $ 3,66¢
Undistributed earnings -allocated to common stor $ — $ — $  41¢ $  39¢ $  36C
Net income attributable to common stockholc— Diluted $ 13,00: $ 27,21« $ 13,20: $ 5,79¢ $ 4,02¢
Net income per share attributable to common stadehs:(2)
Basic $  0.2¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5 $ 041 $ 0.2¢
Diluted $ 0.2 $ 0.5t $  0.4¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 0.2¢
Weighted average shares used in computing net ia@anshare attributable to common stockholc
Basic 45,84¢ 46,22: 25,61¢ 13,29¢ 13,10«
Diluted 46,85¢ 49,13( 28,42¢ 14,97: 15,32¢

@) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includé&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $4,29: $4,50¢ $3,111 $1,91¢ $1,112
Product developmel 2,57( 2,70¢ 2,17¢ 66¢ 442
Sales and marketir 3,09¢ 3,747 3,46° 1,761 581
General and administratiy 3,037 2,992 4,621 1,827 1,08¢
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(2)  sSee Note 3 to our consolidated financial statemiastaded in this report for an explanation of thethod used to calculate basic and diluted nenirecper share of common sto

June 30,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 68,53 $132,29( $155,77( $ 25,18 $ 24,95:
Working capital 103,22: 162,36 155,16 16,42¢ 17,02:
Total asset 507,16( 524,92 434,63( 212,87t 179,74¢
Total liabilities 168,80: 169,53! 144,60¢ 96,28¢ 86,03
Total debt 107,59¢ 106,04¢ 93,60¢ 57,24( 51,65¢
Total stockholder equity 338,35 355,38¢ 290,02: 73,18¢ 50,31:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Dati

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 47,727 $ 78,17 $ 38,50¢ $ 32,57( $ 24,75
Depreciation and amortizatic 31,15( 27,272 18,79: 15,97¢ 11,727
Capital expenditure 2,26¢ 5,362 2,71C 1,347 2,177

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA() $ 72,64¢ $ 90,31! $ 71,37¢ $ 56,87: $ 36,27¢

(1) We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income less siow for taxes, depreciation expense, amortizatiense, stockased compensation expense, interest and othenénexpense
net. Please see t“Adjusted EBITD#” section with Manageme's Discussion and Analysis for more informati

The following table presents a reconciliation ofidsied EBITDA to net income calculated in accordawith U.S. generally accepted accounting prinsig@AAP), the most comparable
GAAP measure, for each of the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Net income $13,00: $27,21« $20,58¢ $17,27: $12,86°
Interest and other (income) expense, 4,37( 3,98¢ 2,351 3,563¢ (417)
Provision for taxe: 11,13 17,887 16,27¢ 13,90¢ 8,87¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 31,15( 27,27: 18,79: 15,97¢ 11,727
Stocl-based compensation expel 12,99¢ 13,95( 13,37 6,172 3,22:
Adjusted EBITDA $72,64¢ $90,31: $71,37¢ $56,87. $36,27¢
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion of ouafficial condition and results of operations in cargtion with the consolidated financ
statements and the notes thereto included elsewhehés report. The following discussion contafosvard-looking statements that reflect our
plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual resultdatdiffer materially from those discussed in thevfard-looking statements. Factors that
could cause or contribute to these differencesitkelthose discussed below and elsewhere in thistrggarticularly in the sections titled
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemerdatl “Risk Factors”.

Management Overview

QuinStreet is a leader in vertical marketing andlimenline. We have built a strong set of capabgito engage internet visitors with
targeted media and to connect our marketing clieiitstheir potential customers online. We focussenving clients in large, information-
intensive industry verticals where relevant, taedanedia and offerings help visitors make inforrakdices, find the products that match their
needs, and thus become qualified customer prosfurabsir clients.

We deliver cost-effective marketing results to olignts most typically in the form of a qualifiegldd or inquiry, or in the form of a click.
These leads or clicks can then convert into a cust@r sale for clients at a rate that resultsimeceptable marketing cost to them. We are
typically paid by clients when we deliver qualifieghds or clicks as defined by our agreements thigilm. We bear the costs of media, thus our
programs must deliver value to our clients and ji®¥or a media yield, or margin on our media castat provides a sound financial outcome
for us. Our general process is:

* We Oown or access targeted me

e we run advertisements or other forms of marketimgsages and programs in that media to creatervisgponses or clicks throu
to client offerings

» we match these responses or clicks to client offsrihat meet visitor interests or needs, congHtisitors into qualified leads or
clicks; and

» we optimize client matches and media yield suchwhachieve desired results for clients and a ddimancial outcome for u:

Our primary financial objective has been and remaneating revenue growth from sustainable soustdsyget levels of profitability.
Our primary financial objective is not to maximigeofits, but rather to achieve target levels offpability while investing in various growth
initiatives, as we believe we are in the early stagf a large, long-term market.

Our Direct Marketing Services, or DMS, businessoacted for substantially all of our net revenudisoal years 2012, 2011 and 2010.
Our DMS business derives its net revenue from éeesed through the delivery of qualified leads dlicks and, to a lesser extent, display
advertisement, or impressions. Through a vertioel$, targeted media presence and our technolagfpih, we are able to deliver targeted,
measurable marketing results to our clients.

Our two largest client verticals are financial $ee¢ and education. Our financial services cliantigal represented 42%, 45% and 43%
of net revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2fH<pectively. Our education client vertical repraed 42%, 44% and 45% of net revenue in
fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyeOBMS client verticals, consisting primarily of¥iness-to-business technology, home
services and medical, represented 16%, 11% andof 1t revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2fegpectively.

In addition, we derived less than 1% of our netreie in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 from aredD Selling Services, or DSS,
business.

We generated substantially all of our revenue feates to clients in the United States.
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Trends Affecting our Business
Client Verticals

To date, we have generated the majority of ourmegdrom clients in our education and financialgsss client verticals. We expect that
a majority of our revenue in fiscal year 2013 Wil generated from clients in these two client gal$i

Our education client vertical has been significaatfected by the adoption of regulations affectiogprofit educational institutions over
the past several years. The regulations have affextd are expected to continue to affect our tslidusinesses and marketing practices,
including an overall decrease in our clients’ exéémarketing expenditures and a related decreaserirevenues from this client vertical. The
effect of these regulations may continue to reisuituctuations in the volume and mix of our busisevith these clients.

In our financial services client vertical, prices éargely determined by bidding. In fiscal yeaf.20we have seen pricing that we receive
from clients stabilize. Throughout the year, owergue has declined primarily due to volume decliassed by losses of traffic from third-
party publishers resulting from acquisitions of maesburces by competitors, changes in a searcim&sgilgorithms which reduced or
eliminated traffic from some third-party publisheasd increased competition for quality media.

Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012

In February 2012, we acquired certain assets éf%fis Enterprise from Enterprise Media Group,. JlkcNew York-based online media
and marketing company in the business-to-busireesgblogy market, in exchange for $17.3 milliorcash, to broaden our registered user
database and brand name in the business-to-busaués®logy market.

In August 2011, we acquired 100% of the outstandiggjty interests of NarrowCast Group, LLC, or lidhessEdge, a Kentucky-based
Internet media company in the business-to-busiteztsiology market, in exchange for $24.0 milliorcash, to broaden our registered user
database and media access in the business-to-gsisgodnology market.

During fiscal year 2012, in addition to certainetssof Ziff Davis Enterprise and all of the equiityerests of IT BusinessEdge, we
acquired eleven other online publishing businesses.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011

In November 2010, we acquired 100% of the outstandhares of Car Insurance.com, Inc., or Carlng@aom, a Florida-based online
insurance business, and certain of its affiliatechganies, in exchange for $49.7 million in cashjt®capacity to generate online visitors in
financial services market. In July 2010, we acqlitee website business Insurance.com from InsuremweGroup, Inc., an Ohio-based online
insurance business, in exchange for $33.0 miliocaish and the issuance of a $2.6 million non-@stebearing, unsecured promissory note, for
its capacity to generate online visitors in thefinial services market. During fiscal year 2011addition to the acquisitions of
Carlnsurance.com and Insurance.com, we acquiredhEs online publishing businesses.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010

In November 2009, we acquired the website busilmssnet.com, a division of WebMediaBrands, Inc.jrdernet.com, a New York-
based Internet media company, in exchange for $b8l®n in cash and the issuance of a $1.7 millmm-interest-bearing, unsecured
promissory note, to broaden our media access &mt tlase in the business-to-business technologlgghdn October 2009, we acquired the
website business Insure.com from
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Life Quotes, Inc., or Insure.com, an lllinois-basadine insurance quote service and brokerage bssjriin exchange for $15.0 million in cash
and the issuance of a $1.0 million non-interestibgaunsecured promissory note, for its capaditgenerate online visitors in the financial
services market. During fiscal year 2010, in additio the acquisitions of Internet.com and Insum.cwe acquired 31 other online publishing
businesses.

Our acquisition strategy may result in significattuations in our available working capital frggariod to period and over the years.
may use cash, stock or promissory notes to acgaiieus businesses or technologies, and we cagoatately predict the timing of those
acquisitions or the impact on our cash flows arldrie sheet. Large acquisitions or multiple actjoiss within a particular period may
significantly affect our financial results for tha¢riod. We may utilize debt financing to make asigjions, which could give rise to higher
interest expense and more restrictive operatingrants. We may also utilize our stock as consiaeratvhich could result in substantial
dilution.

Development, Retention and Acquisition of Targeteiedia

One of the primary challenges of our businessidifig, retaining and developing media that is teg@nough to attract prospects for
clients at costs that work for our business maddebrder to grow our business, we must be abletticue to find, develop and retain quality
targeted media on a cost-effective basis. Our litalbd find, develop and retain high quality tatgeé media has limited, during some periods,
and may continue to limit our growth.

Seasonality

Our results are subject to significant fluctuatasna result of seasonality. In particular, our tprarending December 31 (our second fi
quarter) typically demonstrate seasonal weaknassuil second fiscal quarters, there is lower abditg of cost effective media during the
holiday period and some of our clients request fdeads due to holiday staffing. In our quarterdieg March 31 (our third fiscal quarter), this
trend generally reverses with better lead availghdind often new budgets at the beginning of tharyor our clients with fiscal years ending
December 31.

Basis of Presentation
General

We operate in two segments: DMS and DSS. For fudisgussion and financial information about oyarting segments, see Note 1«
our consolidated financial statements.

Net Revenue

DMS.Our DMS business generates revenue from fees ethrradyh the delivery of qualified leads, clickslato a lesser extent, display
advertisements, or impressions. We deliver targateimeasurable results through a vertical focatswtie classify into the following client
verticals: financial services, education and “otifesich includes business-to-business technolbgyne services and medical).

DSS. Our DSS business generated less than 1% of nettwewvn fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 from tbeigion of a hosted solution
and related services for clients in the directisglindustry. We expect DSS to continue to repreaarimmaterial portion of our business.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of media cgsssonnel costs, amortization of acquisition-relatgangible assets, depreciation
expense and amortization of internal software d#weknt costs relating to revenue-producing teclgieto Media costs consist primarily of
fees paid to website publishers that are direetflgted to a revenue-generating event and pay-pe-or PPC, ad purchases from Internet
search companies.
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We pay these Internet search companies and wghsiteshers on a revenue-share, a cost-per-leadPbr cost-per-click, or CPC, and cost-
per-thousand-impressions, or CPM basis. Persomstd include salaries, stock-based compensatiocensgp bonuses and employee benefit
costs. Personnel costs are primarily related tividdals associated with maintaining our serverd &ebsites, our editorial staff, client
management, creative team, compliance group anéarpecdchasing analysts.

Costs associated with software incurred in the ldgweent phase or obtained for internal use areta@iiggd and amortized to cost of
revenue over the software’s estimated useful life.

We anticipate that our cost of revenue will exhibéinds consistent with trends in our overall rexen

Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses into three caitegy product development, sales and marketingj gameral and administrative. Our
operating expenses consist primarily of personasiscand, to a lesser extent, professional serfeégss rent and allocated costs. Personnel
costs for each category of operating expenses ginerclude salaries, stock-based compensatioemsg, bonuses, commissions and
employee benefit costs.

Product DevelopmenBroduct development expenses consist primarilyeasgnnel costs and professional services feesiatsbaevith
the development and maintenance of our technoltagfopms, development and launching of our websjtesductbased quality assurance ¢
testing. We believe that continued investment ét®logy is critical to attaining our strategic @tjves and, as a result, we expect product
development expenses to increase in absolute siatiahe future.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses consist primarilyetfgmnel costs and, to a lesser extent, profedsendces fees,
travel costs and advertising. We expect sales antteting expenses to increase in absolute dolkaveeshire additional personnel in sales and
marketing to support our product offerings.

General and AdministrativeGeneral and administrative expenses consist pitintd personnel costs of our executive, finarlegal,
corporate and business development, employee teaefi compliance, technical support and other midtrétive personnel, as well as
accounting and legal professional services feesramgance. We expect general and administratipem®ses to increase in absolute dollars in
future periods as we continue to invest in corpomafrastructure and expanding our business intenmally, including increased legal and
accounting costs.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest and other income (expense), net, coristarily of interest expense, other income andeege and interest income. Interest
expense is related to our credit facility, incluglthe related interest rate swap as well as pramjisstes issued in connection with our
acquisitions, and includes imputed interest on imberest bearing notes. Borrowings under our criadility and related interest expense could
increase as we continue to implement our acquisgitcategy. Interest income represents intereseeaon our cash, cash equivalents and
marketable securities, which may increase or deerdapending on market interest rates and the asmvested.

Other income (expense), net, includes foreign aggreexchange gains and losses and other non-apgitgins.

Income Tax Expense

We are subject to tax in the United States as agetither tax jurisdictions or countries in which @a&duct business. Earnings from our
limited non-U.S. activities are subject to localintry income tax and may be subject to U.S. inctame
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our consolidatedestaent of operations for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Net revenue $370,46¢ 100.(% $403,02: 100.% $334,83! 100.(%
Cost of revenu®@ 283,46t 76.5 291,99: 72.5 240,73( 71.€
Gross profil 87,00: 23.t 111,03( 27.5 94,10¢ 28.1
Operating expense®

Product developmel 21,05 5.7 24,16: 6.C 19,72¢ 5.9

Sales and marketir 14,07 3.8 17,38: 4.3 16,69¢ 5.C

General and administrati\ 23,37¢ 6.3 20,39¢ 5.C 18,46¢ 5.5
Operating incomi 28,50: 7.7 49,08¢ 12.2 39,217 11.7
Interest incom 134 0.C 16¢ 0.C 97 0.C
Interest expens (4,462) (1.2 (4,219 (1.0 (3,979 (1.2
Other income (expense), r (42 (0.0 56 0.C 1,52 0.5
Income before income tax 24,13: 6.5 45,10: 11.2 36,86( 11.C
Provision for taxe: (11,13) (3.0 (17,88 (4.9 (16,27¢) (4.9
Net income $ 13,00: 35% $ 27,21« 6.8% $ 20,58 6.1%
W Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $4,29: 1.2% $4,50¢ 1.1% $3,111 0.9%

Product developmel 2,57C 0.7 2,708 0.7 2,17¢ 0.6

Sales and marketir 3,09¢ 0.8 3,741 0.6 3,462 1.C

General and administrati\ 3,03 0.8 2,992 0.7 4,621 14

Net Revenue
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2012- 2011 2011- 201(¢
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)

Net revenus $370,46¢ $403,02: $334,83! (8%) 20%
Cost of revenu 283,46t 291,99: 240,73( (3%) 21%
Gross profil $ 87,00: $111,03( $ 94,10¢ (22%) 18%

Net revenue decreased $32.6 million, or 8%, irefigear 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. This pvamarily due to a decrease in
revenue from our financial services and educati@mtverticals, which was partially offset by gribwin revenue in our other client verticals.
Our financial services client vertical revenue @ased $26.2 million, or 14%, due to lower volunesailting from reduced availability of
quality publisher media and, to a lesser degreeeialick prices as compared to fiscal year 20%itify in our financial services client vertic
was relatively stable throughout fiscal year 20Q8r education client vertical revenue decreaseddb2lion, or 12%, as a result of our
education clients purchasing fewer inquiries duertoertainty surrounding new regulations affecfimgprofit educational institutions. Lower
inquiry volumes were marginally offset by higheicps. Revenue from other client verticals incregkbti 1 million, or 31%, primarily due to
the acquisition of IT BusinessEdge and certaintagsfeZiff Davis Enterprise in the business-to-lmesis technology client vertical and, to a
lesser extent, higher lead volumes in our homeises\client vertical.
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Net revenue increased $68.2 million, or 20%, indis/ear 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010. Thenitgjof this increase was
attributable to an increase in revenue from ouwarfial services client vertical and, to a lesseerx our education client vertical and other
client verticals. Financial services client verticavenue increased $38.0 million, or 26%, as iases in click and lead volume were partially
offset by lower prices. Education client verticavenue increased $23.2 million, or 15%, driven igyhér prices, a shift in mix towards higher
priced inquiries and an increase in inquiry volufRevenue from other client verticals increased $7illlon, or 18%, primarily due to the
acquisition of Internet.com in November 2009.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased $8.5 million, or 3%isical year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011, driwedecreased media costs of $12.6
million due to lower click volumes and decreasetspenel costs of $2.0 million, partially offset Imgreased amortization of acquisitioglatec
intangible assets of $4.1 million, professional&er fees of $1.0 million and a one-time offlinenketing event expense of $0.8 million related
to an acquisition. The decreased personnel costs atgibutable to a reduction in average headcdbrdass margin, which is the difference
between net revenue and cost of revenue as a pageeof net revenue was 23% in fiscal year 2012paoatd to 28% in fiscal year 2011,
primarily due to a lower mix of traffic from ownexchd operated media, lower margins from publishemgrements and higher amortization
expenses, partially offset by the above-mentioremtehsed personnel costs.

Cost of revenue increased $51.3 million, or 21%iscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 201G4edriby an increase in media costs of
$28.9 million due to higher lead and click volumiesreased personnel costs of $10.6 million ancem®ed amortization of acquisition-related
intangible assets of $6.9 million resulting frongaisitions in fiscal year 2011 and 2010. The inseciam personnel costs was attributable to a
34% increase in average headcount, primarily neguftom acquisitions. Gross margin, remaineddsicompared to fiscal 2010 at 28% in
fiscal year 2011, as higher margins from publisireangements and a higher mix of traffic from owaed operated targeted media were of
by the above-mentioned increase in headcount datkdepersonnel costs, as well as higher amonbizagkpense.

Operating Expenses

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2012 - 2011 2011 - 201(
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Product developmel $21,05! $24,16: $19,72¢ (13%) 22%
Sales and marketir 14,07« 17,38: 16,69¢ (19%) 1%
General and administrati\ 23,37 20,39¢ 18,46¢ 15% 10%
Operating expenst $58,50( $61,94: $54,88¢ (6%) 13%

Product Development Expenses

Product development expenses decreased $3.1 milidiB8%, in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscary2011, primarily due to
decreased personnel costs of $1.7 million resuftioig a reduction in average headcount, increaapitatized software expenses of $0.6
million, decreased professional services of $0.Mianiand various smaller decreases in product kbgweent expenses.

Product development expenses increased $4.4 mitioR2%, in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscary2010, primarily due to increas
personnel costs. The increase in personnel costsluato increased compensation expense of $3idmihcreased stock-based
compensation expense of $0.5 million and variouallemincreases in product development expensesiridiease in compensation expense
and stock-based compensation expense was duedfd én2rease in average headcount from additiomaldhin connection with development
projects and acquisitions.
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Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses decreased $3.3 malid®%, in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscalry2011, primarily due to decreased
personnel costs of $2.3 million resulting from de&ged performance bonus expenses and decreadetvased compensation expense of $0.7
million.

Sales and marketing expenses increased $0.7 midiot?s, in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscalny2@il0, primarily due to increased
compensation expense of $0.5 million.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increasedn$iBion, or 15%, in fiscal year 2012 compared tchl year 2011. This was due to a
$2.5 million payment to the attorneys general oftiple states in connection with a settlement edatb online marketing for education
companies, increased bad debt expense of $1.4milisulting from the insolvency of an advertisaggncy of record of one of our clients,
partially offset by decreased personnel costs af $iillion attributable to a reduction in averagaticount.

General and administrative expenses increasedndillidn, or 10%, in fiscal year 2011 compared tecil year 2010, due to increased
professional service fees of $1.4 million, highresurance premiums of $0.3 million, state franckésecharges of $0.3 million and various
smaller increases in general and administrativeesgs, partially offset by decreased personnes ad0.2 million. Professional service fees
and insurance premiums increased due to our cadimyestment in corporate infrastructure and eel&xpenses associated with being a
public company, including increased compliancesoBhe decrease in personnel costs was driverdeglane in stock-based compensation
expense of $1.6 million primarily due to the grahfully-vested options to certain members of thard of directors in fiscal year 2010. The
decrease in stock-based compensation expense vimdlypaffset by increased compensation expens&lod million primarily due to higher
salaries and performance bonus expenses assodidtettie achievement of specified financial metdesing fiscal year 2011.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2012 - 2011 2011 - 201(
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Interest incom $ 134 $ 16¢ $ 97 (21%) 74%
Interest expens (4,462) (4,217 (3,97%) 6% 6%
Other income (expense), r (42) 56 1,52 (175%) -96%
Interest and other income (expense), $(4,370 $(3,98¢) $(2,35%) 10% 69%

Interest and other income (expense), net increlag&d.4 million, or 10%, in fiscal year 2012 comgxéto fiscal year 2011, primarily due
to increased interest expense of $0.2 millionsidl year 2012 and $0.2 million attributable togesds from a settlement of a legal matter in
fiscal year 2011.

Interest and other income (expense), net decrdassd.6 million, or 69%, in fiscal year 2011 comgdito fiscal year 2010, due to a
decrease in other income of $1.5 million primafitym a gain of $1.2 million in fiscal year 2010 thre extinguishment of acquisition-related
promissory notes that we paid off at discountsrpgoanaturity.

Provision for Taxes

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Provision for taxe: $11,13: $17,88" $16,27¢
Effective tax rate 46.1% 39.7% 44.2%

45



Table of Contents

The increase in our effective tax rate for fisoahy2012 compared to fiscal year 2011, was prigmdrik to higher non-deductible stock-
based compensation expense.

The decrease in our effective tax rate in fiscaln#011 compared to fiscal year 2010, was primalilyen by lower state income tax
expense.

As of June 30, 2012, we had net deferred tax as§&56.1 million. Our net deferred tax assets @irmimarily of stock-based
compensation expense, accruals and reserves mehtiyrdeductible for tax purposes. See Note 8utoconsolidated financial statements for
more information about our deferred tax assets.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

The following table sets forth our unaudited qudyteonsolidated statements of operations datéheright quarters ended June 30,
2012. We have prepared the statements of operdtoesch of these quarters on the same basieasutlited consolidated financial statem
included elsewhere in this report and, in the apiraf management, each statement of operationsdeslall adjustments, consisting solely of
normal recurring adjustments, necessary for thestaiement of the results of operations for theséds. This information should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated finanstatements and related notes included elsewhéhésineport. These quarterly operating
results are not necessarily indicative of our ofiegaresults for any future period.

Three Months Ended

June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30, June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30,
2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011 2010 2010
(In thousands)

Net revenue $85,69¢ $93,02: $90,52¢ $101,22: $94,11¢ $107,70* $97,58: $103,61¢
Costs of revenu 67,04 72,27¢ 68,39¢ 75,74¢ 69,12: 78,57¢ 70,66: 73,62¢
Gross profil 18,65¢ 20,74¢ 22,127 25,47¢ 24,99¢ 29,127 26,92( 29,987
Operating expense

Product developmel 4,80¢ 5,06¢ 5,10z 6,07¢ 5,84: 6,83¢ 5,93: 5,551

Sales and marketir 2,96( 3,39¢ 3,68¢ 4,03¢ 3,28t 4,687 4,66¢ 4,74

General and administrati 7,072 6,23¢ 4,847 5,217 5,20¢ 5,62¢ 4,94: 4,72
Operating incomi 3,81¢ 6,04: 8,49: 10,15 10,66: 12,07¢ 11,37¢ 14,96¢
Interest incomt 29 31 36 38 30 25 47 67
Interest expens (1,159 (1,117 (1,115 (1,089 (1,10%) (1,097 (1,02¢ (989)
Other income (expense), r 79 3 (93 (32) (95) 66 (79 164
Income before income tax 2,771 4,96¢ 7,32( 9,07¢ 9,49: 11,07¢ 10,31¢ 14,21:
Provision for taxe: (2,570 (2,097%) (2,887) (3,58]) (3,04¢) (4,740 (3,39)) (6,710
Net income $ 201 $287¢ $443: $ 549 $6,44¢ $ 6,33¢ $6,928 $ 7,501
Net income per shar®@

Basic $ 00C $ 006 $ 00¢ $ 01z $ 014 $ 014 $ 0418 $ 0.17

Diluted $ 00C $ 006 $ 00¢ $ 011 $ 01 $ 0.1¢ $ 014 $ O0.1¢
Other Financial Data:

Adjusted EBITDA $15,21+ $17,27: $19,53( $ 20,63: $20,77¢ $ 23,21¢ $21,71¢ $ 24,59¢

@ Net income per share for the four quarters of émclal year may not sum to the total for the fisgahr because of the different numbe
shares outstanding during each per
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Adjusted EBITDA

Our use of Adjusted EBITDANe include Adjusted EBITDA in this report beca(geve seek to manage our business to a consistent
level of Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of neerawe, (ii) it is a key basis upon which our managehassesses our operating performance,
(iii) it is one of the primary metrics investorselis evaluating Internet marketing companies, ifii§ a factor in the evaluation of the
performance of our management in determining cosgén, and (v) it is an element of certain finahcovenants under our debt agreements.
We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income less priovisor taxes, depreciation expense, amortizatiqgpease, stock-based compensation
expense, interest and other income (expense), net.

We use Adjusted EBITDA as a key performance medsecause we believe it facilitates operating pemforce comparisons from peri
to period by excluding potential differences caulsgdariations in capital structures (affectingeirgst expense), tax positions (such as the
impact on periods or companies of changes in éffetax rates or fluctuations in permanent diffeenor discrete quarterly items) and the
non-cash impact of depreciation, amortization gndksbased compensation expense. Because AdjuBiEDA facilitates internal
comparisons of our historical operating performamee more consistent basis, we also use AdjudBd@EBA for business planning purposes,
to incentivize and compensate our management peesand in evaluating acquisition opportunities.

In addition, we believe Adjusted EBITDA and simitaeasures are widely used by investors, secudtialysts, ratings agencies and
other interested parties in our industry as a nreasiufinancial performance and debt-service cditigsi. Our use of Adjusted EBITDA has
limitations as an analytical tool, and it should he considered in isolation or as a substitutexf@lysis of our results as reported under GA
Some of these limitations are:

» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expen@tufor capital equipment or other contractual caments;

» although depreciation and amortization are-cash charges, the assets being depreciated antizzdonay have to be replacec
the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflectttaapital expenditure requirements for such reptents

» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, othcajuirements for, our working capital nee

» Adjusted EBITDA does not consider the potentiallytive impact of issuing stock-based compensatibaur management team
and employees

* Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the significantdrest expense or the cash requirements necesssewice interest or principal
payments on our indebtedne

» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect certain tax paymsehat may represent a reduction in cash availahbles; anc

» other companies, including companies in our ingusiray calculate Adjusted EBITDA measures diffeignwhich reduces the
usefulness as a comparative meas

Due to these limitations, Adjusted EBITDA should be considered as a measure of discretionaryazatable to us to invest in the
growth of our business. When evaluating our pertoroe, Adjusted EBITDA should be considered alorgsither financial performance
measures, including various cash flow metricsjmaime and our other GAAP results.
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The following table presents a reconciliation ofjésted EBITDA to net income, the most comparableXABAneasure, for each of the
periods indicated:

Three Months Ended

June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30, June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30,
2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011 2010 2010
(In thousands)

Net income $ 201 $ 2,87: $ 4,43: $ 5,494 $ 6,44¢ $ 6,33¢ $ 6,92¢ $ 7,501

Interest and other income (expense), 1,04t 1,077 1,172 1,07¢ 1,17¢ 1,00¢ 1,06( 75€

Provision for taxe: 2,57( 2,09: 2,88 3,581 3,04¢ 4,74( 3,391 6,71(

Depreciation and amortizatic 8,49: 8,03: 7,51 7,10¢ 7,02( 7,63 6,72% 5,897

Stoclk-based compensation expel 2,90¢ 3,19¢ 3,521 3,374 3,091 3,507 3,61¢ 3,73(

Adjusted EBITDA $15,21«¢ $17,27: $19,53( $20,63: $20,77¢ $23,21¢ $21,71¢ $24,59¢
Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage

revenue 18% 1% 22% 20% 22% 22% 22% 24%

Adjusted EBITDA quarterly trenddVe seek to manage our business to a consistexitdedjusted EBITDA as a percentage of net
revenue. We do so on a fiscal year basis by vamyurgperations to balance revenue growth and ¢lesiaghout the fiscal year. We do not
seek to manage our business to a consistent |&¥eljosted EBITDA on a quarterly basis and investsihould expect our Adjusted EBITDA
margins to vary from quarter to quarter.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as of June 3012 consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $68i6n, short-term marketable
securities of $36.7 million, cash we expect to gatesfrom operations, and our $200.0 million reundvcredit facility, which is committed un
November 2016, all of which is available to be dnasubject to compliance with applicable covenadts. cash and cash equivalents
maintained in highly liquid investments with remiain maturities of 90 days or less at the time athase. We believe our cash equivalent:
liquid and accessible.

In November 2011, we replaced our existing $22510am credit facility with a new credit facilityhtat expanded our overall borrowing
capacity by $75.0 million to $300.0 million, cortgig of a $100.0 million term loan and a $200.0liwl revolving credit facility. Additionally,
in November 2011, our Board of Directors authoriaestock repurchase program allowing us to repsecli@ to $50.0 million, excluding
broker commissions, of our outstanding shares ofroon stock. Through June 30, 2012, we have repsechan aggregate of 4.8 million
shares of our common stock for an aggregate of0$#llion. As of June 30, 2012, the remaining antaarailable for the repurchase of our
common stock under this program was $5.0 millidnpfawhich was used for repurchases in July 2012.

Additionally, in August 2011, we acquired 100% lo¢ toutstanding equity interests of NarrowCast Grale, or IT BusinessEdge, a
Kentucky-based Internet media company in the bgsite-business technology market, in exchangeZér®million in cash. In February
2012, we acquired certain assets of Ziff Davis Enitse from Enterprise Media Group, Inc., a New Rtbased online media and marketing
company in the business-to-business technology ehdide $17.3 million in cash.

Our short-term and long-term liquidity requiremeptsnarily arise from our working capital requirentg, acquisitions from time to time
and share repurchases. Our primary operating eaglirements include the payment of media costsopeel costs, costs of information
technology systems and office facilities. Our

48



Table of Contents

ability to fund these requirements will depend ain future cash flows, which are determined by fetoperating performance and are,
therefore, subject to prevailing global macroecomoronditions and financial, business and othetofac some of which are beyond our
control, and also our ability to access our créatitlity.

We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalahigrt-term marketable securities, cash genefedet operations and our available
borrowings under the credit facility will be suffént to satisfy our currently anticipated cash eguents through at least the next 12 months.

Our ability to service any indebtedness we havarirad or may incur, including under our currentdiréacility, will depend on our
ability to generate cash in the future. In additieven though we may not need additional fundsmarg still elect to obtain additional debt or
equity securities or draw down on or increase aurdwing capacity under our current credit facifidy other reasons.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitit $47,72] $ 78,17 $ 38,50¢

Cash flows from investing activitie (67,90¢) $(134,76)) $(72,23))

Cash flows from financing activitie (43,44)) $ 33,07: $164,32:

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Our net cash provided by operating activities impgrily the result of our net income adjusted fonrcash expenses such as depreciation
and amortization, stock-based compensation expamsehanges in working capital components, andflisenced by the timing of cash
collections from our clients and cash paymentgpfochases of media and other expenses.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispaér 2012 was due to net income of $13.0 millimm-cash depreciation, amortization,
stock-based compensation expense and related nafitseof $46.0 million, a decrease in other nonenir assets comprised primarily of
deferred taxes of $2.8 million, partially offset &y increase in prepaid expenses and other agsk2s6amillion, an increase in accounts
receivable of $2.0 million and a decrease in actopayable and accrued liabilities of $7.8 millidine decrease in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities is due to timing of payments alecreased cost of revenue associated with dedreagenue. The increase in prepaid
expenses and other assets is primarily due to gimippayments. The increase in accounts receivalatiributable to timing of receipts. The
decrease in deferred taxes is due to larger tempdiffierences between the financial statementy@agramount and the tax basis of certain
existing assets and liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispaér 2011 was due to net income of $27.2 millimm-cash depreciation, amortization,
stock-based compensation expense and related nafitseof $33.8 million, an increase in accountggtde and accrued liabilities of
$8.9 million, a decrease in prepaid expenses amef assets of $5.1 million and a decrease in adsoaoeivable of $3.9 million, partially
offset by an increase in other noncurrent assetgpdsed primarily of deferred taxes of $3.3 millidrhe increase in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities is due to timing of paymentsl émcreased cost of revenue associated with inetegessenue. The decrease in prepaid
expenses and other assets is primarily due to dimipayments. The decrease in accounts receiighbtéributable to timing of receipts. The
increase in deferred taxes is due to larger tempdlifferences between the financial statementyiagramount and the tax basis of certain
existing assets and liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispaér 2010 was due to net income of $20.6 millimm-cash depreciation, amortization,
stock-based compensation expense and related nafitseof $30.3 million and an increase in accoymagable and accrued liabilities of
$11.3 million, partially offset by an increase traunts receivable of $14.4 million, an increasdeferred taxes of $6.8 million, as well as a
gain from the
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early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million. Timeriease in accounts payable and accrued liabilgtidse to timing of payments and increased
cost of sales associated with increased revenweinthease in accounts receivable is attributabledreased revenue, as well as timing of
receipts. The increase in deferred taxes is prigndtie to larger temporary differences betweerfitrgncial statement carrying amount and the
tax basis of certain existing assets and liabdlitie

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Our investing activities include acquisitions ofdieewebsites and businesses; purchases, salesandti|es of marketable securities;
capital expenditures; and capitalized internal ttgwment costs.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat 2@vas primarily due to our acquisition of IT Busis Edge for a cash payment of $24.0
million, acquisition of certain assets of Ziff Davtnterprise of $17.3 million and the purchasethefoperations of eleven other online
publishing businesses for an aggregate of $14 @omih cash payments, as well as net investmentsarketable securities of $3.2 million.
Capital expenditures and internal software devekmosts totaled $4.6 million in fiscal year 2012.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat P®vas primarily due to our acquisition of Carlreswre.com for an initial cash payment
of $49.7 million and Insurance.com for an initiasb payment of $33.0 million. Cash used in invgstictivities was also impacted by
purchases of the operations of 13 other onlineighiblg businesses for an aggregate of $9.2 miliazash payments, which included
$4.5 million of contingent consideration relatedatprior period acquisition, as well as net investis in marketable securities of $35.2 milli
Capital expenditures and internal software devekaqnoosts totaled $7.2 million in fiscal year 2011.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat@@vas primarily due to our acquisitions of Intéroem, Insure.com and HSH
Association Financial Publications (“HSH”"). We aggd the website business of the Internet.com wimisf WebMediaBrands, Inc., a New
York-based Internet media company, for an initedlt payment of $15.9 million. We acquired the wehisisiness of Insure.com from
LifeQuotes, Inc., an lllinois-based online insuramgiote service and brokerage business, for dalio#sh payment of $15.0 million. We
acquired HSH, a New Jersey-based online compangding comprehensive mortgage rate information aotinitial cash payment of
$6.0 million. Cash used in investing activities vedso affected by purchases of the operations @itBér website publishing businesses for an
aggregate of $31.2 million in cash payments, winichluded $4.5 million of contingent considerati@tated to the acquisition of SureHits in
fiscal year 2008. Capital expenditures and intesoétlvare development costs totaled $4.1 milliofispal year 2010.

Net Cash Provided by or Used in Financing Activiie

Cash used in financing activities in fiscal yeal2@vas primarily due to repurchases of our comntocksof $43.9 million under our
stock repurchase program and principal paymentscquisition-related notes payable and our term &oahrelated fees of $9.9 million,
partially offset by proceeds from bank debt of $iflion and exercise of stock options of $4.7 oiil

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y28@11 was primarily due to net proceeds from tteevddown of our revolving credit
line of $24.4 million, proceeds from the exerci$atock options of $16.7 million and excess taxdf#gs from stock-based compensation of
$7.5 million, partially offset by $15.4 million iprincipal payments on acquisition-related promigsuastes and our term loan.

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y2810 was primarily due to proceeds from our IR&,of issuance costs, of
$136.8 million, draw-down of our credit facilityehof principal payments, of $40.2 million, procedrbm stock option exercises of
$1.6 million and excess tax benefits of $1.9 millipartially offset by $15.5 million of principabgments on acquisition-related promissory
notes.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have alationships with unconsolidated entities or finahpartnerships, such as entities o
referred to as structured finance or special pugodities, which would have been establishediempurpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or Behjppurposes.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations relate primarily to tmwings under the credit facility, acquisition-reld promissory notes and operating
leases.

The following table sets forth payments due underamntractual obligations as of June 30, 2012:

Promissory Operating
Credit
Year Ending June 30, Notes Facility Leases Total
2013 $ 8,56¢ $ 7,50( $ 3,18¢ $ 19,25:
2014 3,364 12,50( 3,251 19,11¢
2015 56C 17,50( 3,117 21,175
2016 50 20,00( 3,06( 23,11(
2017 and thereafte — 40,00( 6,33¢ 46,33¢
Total $1254:  $97,50(  $18,947  $128,99(

The above table does not include approximately $2lbn of long-term income tax liabilities for gertainty in income taxes due to the
fact that we are unable to reasonably estimatérttiag of these potential future payments.

Credit Facility

On November 4, 2011, we replaced our existing $28%llion credit facility with a new $300.0 millioaredit facility. The new facility
consists of a $100.0 million five-year term loanthnannual principal amortization of 5%, 10%, 1520% and 50%, and a $200.0 million five-
year revolving credit line

Borrowings under the credit facility are collatézal by substantially all of our assets. Interegidyable at specified margins above e
the Eurodollar Margin or the Prime Rate. The irdgerate varies dependent upon the ratio of funadxd b adjusted EBITDA and ranges from
Eurodollar Margin + 1.625% to 2.375% or Prime +02®for the revolving credit line and from EurodolMargin + 2.00% to 2.75% or Prime
+ 1.00% for the term loan. Adjusted EBITDA is defihas net income less provision for taxes, depieniaxpense, amortization expense,
stock-based compensation expense, interest andintioene (expense), and acquisition costs for mssitombinations. The interest rate
margins for the new facility are 0.50% less thamd¢bmmensurate margins under our previous credlitfa The revolving credit line requires
facility fee of 0.375% of the revolving credit limapacity.

To reduce our exposure to rising interest rategutite term loan, on February 24, 2012, we entiettedan interest rate swap
encompassing the principal balances scheduled tatstanding as of January 1, 2014 and thereafieh principal amount totaling $85.0
million on January 1, 2014 and amortizing to $3Bilion on November 4, 2016. The interest rate swHepctively fixes the Eurodollar Margin
at 0.97%.

The credit facility expires in November 2016. Thedit facility restricts our ability to raise addihal debt financing and pay dividends,
and also requires us to comply with other nonfii@revenants. In addition, we are required to ramfinancial ratios computed as follows:

1. A minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1%dlculated as the ratio of (i) trailing twelve ntlas of adjusted EBITDA to (ii) the
sum of capital expenditures, net cash interestresg@ecash taxes, cash dividends
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and trailing twelve months payments of indebtedneagment of unsecured indebtedness is excludi tdegree that sufficient unused
revolving credit line capacity exists such that thlevant debt payment could be made from the tfadiiity.

2. A maximum funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratfBd., calculated as the ratio of (i) the sum dobligations owed to lending
institutions, the face amount of any letters ofitréndebtedness owed in connection with acquisitielated notes and indebtedness owed in
connection with capital lease obligations to (igiling twelve months of adjusted EBITDA.

We were in compliance with the covenants of our sewdit facility as of June 30, 2012.

Interest Rate Swap

We entered into an interest rate swap to reducexpwsure to the financial impact of changing ieseérates under our term loan. The
effective date of the swap is April 9, 2012 withaturity date of November 4, 2016. At June 30, 20dehad approximately $85.0 million of
notional amount outstanding under the swap agreethanexchanges a variable interest rate base@bllar margin) for a fixed interest rate
0.97% over the term of the agreement. This intesgstswap is designated as a cash flow hedgesantérest rate risk attributable to foreca
variable interest payments. The effective portibthe fair value gains or losses on this swap bellincluded as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss).

At June 30, 2012, our interest rate swap qualdiea cash flow hedge. For this qualifying hedge effifiective portion of the change in f
value will be recognized through earnings whenuhéerlying transaction being hedged affects eamitigereby allowing the swap’s gains to
offset interest expense from the term loan ontserne statement. Any hedge ineffectiveness is rézed in earnings in the current period.

Headquarters Lease

We entered into a lease agreement in February 20 Hpproximately 63,998 square feet of office splcated at 950 Tower Lane,
Foster City, California. The term of the lease lmrega November 1, 2010 and expires on October 318.20he monthly base rent was abated
for the first 12 calendar months under the leasd vaill remain at $0.1 million through the 24th eatlar month of the term of the lease. After
this 24 month period, monthly base rent will inGeao $0.2 million for the subsequent 12 monthsthed increase approximately 3% after
each 12-month anniversary during the remaining téroluding any extensions under our options t@edt We have two options to extend the
term of the lease for one additional year for eggtion following the expiration date of the leaseenewal term, as applicable.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have prepared our consolidated financial stat¢sria conformity with accounting principles gerigraccepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). In doing so, we are required t@ke estimates and assumptions that affect thetezhbamounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and repontealats of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period.

Some of the estimates and assumptions we are eelgiirmake relate to matters that are inherenttexiain as they pertain to future
events. We base these estimates and assumptidmstorcal experience or on various other factbed tve believe to be reasonable and
appropriate under the circumstances. On an ondmsig, we reconsider and evaluate our estimateassuinptions. Actual results may differ
significantly from these estimates.

We believe that the critical accounting policietdd below involve our more significant judgmesetstimates and assumptions and,
therefore, could have the greatest potential impaaiur consolidated financial
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statements. In addition, we believe that a disomssf these policies is hecessary to understancealdiate the consolidated financial
statements contained in this report.

For further information on our critical and othé@rsficant accounting policies, see Note 2 of congolidated financial statements
included in this report.

Revenue Recognition
We derive our revenue from two sources: Direct Méirlg Services (“DMS”) and Direct Selling ServigeBSS”).

DMS revenue is derived primarily from fees whick aarned through the delivery of qualified leadslioks and, to a lesser extent,
display advertisements, or impressions. We recegr@zenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangexists, delivery has occurred, the
is fixed or determinable and collectability is reaably assured. Delivery is deemed to have occuatrdae time a qualified lead or click is
delivered to the client provided that no signifitabligations remain.

On July 1, 2010, as required under GAAP, we adofitecimended accounting guidance for multiple eedisle revenue arrangements
which provides guidance on whether multiple delmes exist, how the deliverables in an arrangestentld be separated, and how the
consideration should be allocated. The adoptiahisfamended guidance did not have a significapaithon our revenue recognition for
multiple deliverable revenue arrangements.

The guidance requires the allocation of revenusiarrangement using the estimated selling prieSR") of deliverables if vendor-
specific objective evidence (“VSOE”") of selling peibased on historical stand-alone sales or thardsgvidence (“TPE”) of selling price do
not exist. Due to the unique nature of some ofroultiple deliverable revenue arrangements, we nuya able to establish selling prices
based on historical stand-alone sales or third/gaidence, therefore we may use our best estitnastablish selling prices for these
arrangements under the new standard. We estatdshebtimates within a range of selling prices wamg1g multiple factors including, but not
limited to, factors such as class of client, siz&ansaction, available media inventory, pricitiagegies and market conditions. We believe the
use of the best estimate of selling price allow®neie recognition in a manner consistent with tigedlying economics of the transaction.

From time to time, we may agree to credit a clfentcertain leads or clicks if they fail to meeetbontractual or other guidelines of a
particular client. We have established a salesvedssed on historical experience. To date, stetits have been immaterial and within our
expectations.

For a portion of our revenue, we have agreemeritsproviders of online media or traffic (“Publisk&rused in the generation of
qualified leads or clicks. We receive a fee from dients and pay a fee to Publishers either cgvanue-share, cost-per-lead, cost- per-click or
cost-per-thousand-impressions basis. We are theapyiobligor in the transaction. As a result, thesf paid by our clients are recognized as
revenue and the fees paid to our Publishers ahedied in cost of revenue.

DSS revenue comprises (i) set-up and professi@maices fees and (i) usage fees. Set-up and wiofes service fees that do not
provide stand-alone value to a client are recoghmesr the contractual term of the agreement oeitpected client relationship period,
whichever is longer, effective when the applicatieaches the “go-live” date. We define the “go-lidate as the date when the application
enters into a production environment or all esséfiinctionalities have been delivered. Usage &#egecognized on a monthly basis as ea

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lgjin excess of recognized revenue and paymerds/egcin advance of revenue
recognition.
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Stock-Based Compensation

We measure and record the expense related to based transactions based on the fair values chlaeds as determined on the date of
grant. For stock options, we selected and haveriisily used the Blaclscholes option pricing model to estimate the faiue. In applying th
Black-Scholes option pricing model, our determioatdf fair value is affected by assumptions regag@ number of highly complex and
subjective variables. These variables include gbeitnot limited to, the expected stock price vitatover the term of the stock options and the
employees’ actual and projected stock option egerand pre-vesting employment termination behaviiree we do not have extensive
trading history, we estimate the expected volgtdit our common stock based on the historical Wdabf comparable public companies over
the stock option’s expected term. We have no histoexpectation of paying cash dividends on oummn stock. The riskee interest rate |
based on the U.S. Treasury yield for a term comsisvith the expected term of the stock options ir value of restricted stock units is
determined based on the closing price of our comstock on the date of grant.

We recognize stock-based compensation expensetmegquisite service period using the straighd-timethod, based on awards
ultimately expected to vest. We estimate futuréeitures at the date of grant and revise the estisp# necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Goodwill

We conduct a test for the impairment of goodwillaiteast an annual basis. We have two reportiitg,UDMS and DSS. We performed
our annual goodwill impairment test in our quagading June 30, 2012, but will conduct the testra¢arlier date if indicators of possible
impairment arise that would cause a triggering evEme impairment test first compares the fair eadfi our reporting unit to its carrying
amount, including goodwill, to assess whether impant is present.

In our quarter ending June 30, 2012, we determiinatthe estimated fair value of our DMS reportimit was in excess of its carrying
value. The carrying value of our DMS reporting uméts approximately $337.1 million in our quartediexy June 30, 2012. The estimated fair
value of our DMS reporting unit under a market agh was approximately $431.7 million in our quaeeding June 30, 2012 based on our
market capitalization of the entire business emigsepincluding a control premium, less the esteddhir value of our DSS reporting unit. This
resulted in an excess of fair value over the cagwyialue of approximately $94.6 million or 28%.

In our quarter ending June 30, 2012, we determiinatthe estimated fair value of our DSS reporting was in excess of its carrying
value. The carrying value of our DSS reporting was approximately $1.3 million in our quarter evgddune 30, 2012. The estimated fair
value of our DSS reporting unit under an incomeraggh was approximately $1.4 million in our quagading June 30, 2012 based on the
present value of estimated future cash flows. Téssilted in an excess of fair value over the cagyialue of approximately $0.1 million or
13%.

Based on our impairment test conducted in our guarding June 30, 2012, we concluded that thesenwampairment of goodwill for
fiscal year 2012. No impairment charges were rembid other periods presented.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates andragsions. We base these estimates
on historical and anticipated results and trendsamvarious other assumptions that we believeeasonable under the circumstances,
including assumptions as to future events. Acteslilts could differ from those estimates, and slifferences could affect the estimated fair
value of the reporting units and hence the valmatiogoodwill could be affected. Circumstances timild affect the valuation of goodwill
include, among other things, a significant chamgetir market capitalization, the business climate lauying habits of our subscriber base, and
with respect to the DSS reporting unit, the losa efgnificant customer. The application of thedyoil impairment test requires judgment,
including the identification of reporting units etlassignment of assets, liabilities and goodwitiefgorting units and the
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determination of the fair value of each reportimgt.uSignificant judgments required to estimate féiie value of reporting units include
estimating future cash flows and determining appate discount rates, growth rates, an appropdatérol premium and other assumptions.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions cotediafiy affect the determination of fair value whicould trigger impairment.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, such as propertyegnigpment and purchased intangible assets witte fies, for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdlrying value of an asset may not be recoversitddeapply judgment when estimating the
fair value of the assets based on the undiscodntetk cash flows the assets are expected to geramd recognize an impairment loss if
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expeateddult from the use of the asset plus net pracerdected from disposition of the asset, if
any, are less than the carrying value of the aB&eitmpairment charges were recorded in the penodsented.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset anilitifadppproach to record deferred taxes. Our def@income tax assets represent
temporary differences between the financial statéroarrying amount and the tax basis of existirggtsand liabilities that will result in
deductible amounts in future years, including rgrating loss carry forwards. Based on estimaltescarrying value of our net deferred tax
assets assumes that it is more likely than notvileawill be able to generate sufficient future tabeaincome in certain tax jurisdictions. Our
judgment regarding future profitability may chardyes to future market conditions, changes in U.Snternational tax laws and other factc

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statemfents:iformation with respect to recent accountomgnouncements and the impact of
these pronouncements on our consolidated finastE@sgments.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

We are exposed to market risks in the ordinary smof our business. These risks include primaoigifyn currency exchange and
interest rate risks.

Interest Rate Risk

We invest our cash equivalents and short-term tnvexsts primarily in liquid, highly-rated U.S. gowmenent or municipal fixed income
securities, certificates of deposit with finandratitutions and money market funds. Unrestrictashg cash equivalents and short-term
investments are held for working capital purposes @cquisition financing. We do not enter into istveents for trading or speculative
purposes. We believe that we do not have matetsire to changes in the fair value of these imvests as a result of changes in interest
rates due to the short-term nature of our investsnébeclines in interest rates may reduce futuwwestment income. However, a hypothetical
decline of 1% in the interest rate on our investimevould not have a material effect on our constéd financial statements.

As of June 30, 2012, our credit facility had a bwering capacity of $300.0 million with $97.5 millian term loans outstanding, and no
amounts outstanding under our revolving line ofldrénterest on borrowings under the credit fagils payable quarterly at specified margins
above either the Eurodollar Margin or the PrimeeR@tur exposure to interest rate risk under thdicfacility will depend on the extent to
which we utilize such facility. To reduce our exposto rising interest rates under the term loark-ebruary 24, 2012, we entered into an
interest rate swap encompassing the principal bakscheduled to be outstanding as of Januaryl%, &ed
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thereafter, such principal amount will total $8&blion on January 1, 2014 and amortize to $35.0ianion November 4, 2016. The interest
rate swap effectively fixes the Eurodollar Margtradixed rate of 0.97%. A hypothetical change & ftom prevailing interest rates as of
June 30, 2012 would affect our interest expenselandhir value of the swap by less than $0.1 onilli

In addition to the $85.0 million of term loans coe@ by the interest rate swap as of June 30, 26@2Company also had variable rate
debt outstanding of $12.5 million.

A hypothetical increase of 1% in the Eurodollar §laror Prime Rate-based interest rate on our viriaie debt outstanding of $12.5
million as of June 30, 2012 would result in an @a&se in our interest expense of $0.1 million paryassuming constant borrowing levels.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

To date, our international client agreements haenipredominately denominated in U.S. dollars,awdrdingly, we have limited
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluinatrelated to client agreements, and do not ntlyrengage in foreign currency hedging
transactions. As the local accounts for some ofo@ign operations are maintained in the locatenry of the respective country, we are
subject to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuetiassociated with the remeasurement to U.S.rdoAahypothetical change of 10% in
foreign currency exchange rates would not have temaaeffect on our consolidated financial statetse
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Qtrie&, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the index appearing under Item 15(g)(&sent fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of QuinStreet, brud its subsidiaries at June 30, 2012 and 2@1dLtree results of their operations and their
flows for each of the three years in the periodeehdune 30, 2012 in conformity with accounting giptes generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, firancial statement schedule listed in the indepearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly,
in all material respects, the information set fdtérein when read in conjunction with the relatedsolidated financial statements. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materialpects, effective internal control over financigporting as of June 30, 2012, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integdhframework issued by the Committee of Spons@irganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management ins#iple for these financial statements and findrst&ement schedule, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effeatdss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management’s Report on im&Control Over Financial Reporting appearing uritlen 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statementthefinancial statement schedule, and on the Cowipanternal control over financial
reporting based on our audits (which was an intedraudit in 2012). We conducted our audits in etaoce with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat€hpse standards require that we plan and perfoenatidits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatsex of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our augfitie financial statements included examiningadast basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemestessing the accounting principles used andfisemt estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement@méation. Our audit of internal control over fin&@iceporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financigloging, assessing the risk that a material weakegists, and testing and evaluating the de
and operating effectiveness of internal controkblasn the assessed risk. Our audits also includgdrming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdlat our audits provide a reasonable basistfoppinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclgsddose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readslaassurance regarding prevention or timely dietecf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
August 23, 2012
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
Assets
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivalel $ 68,53 $132,29(
Marketable securitie 36,73¢ 34,927
Accounts receivable, n 52,83( 48,22¢
Deferred tax asse 7,66¢ 10,25:
Prepaid expenses and other as 7,774 5,77:
Total current asse 173,53t 231,46¢
Property and equipment, r 8,75tk 8,87t
Goodwill 243,04¢ 211,85¢
Other intangible assets, r 72,444 65,847
Deferred tax assets, noncurr 8,44¢ 5,86¢
Other assets, noncurre 93C 1,012
Total asset $507,16( $524,92:
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 22,87( $ 23,30(
Accrued liabilities 29,46: 33,23¢
Deferred revenu 2,552 2,531
Debt 15,42¢ 10,03¢
Total current liabilities 70,31« 69,107
Deferred revenue, noncurre 49 58
Debt, noncurren 92,167 96,01(
Other liabilities, noncurrer 6,27 4,36(
Total liabilities 168,80: 169,53!

Commitments and contingencies (See Note
Stockholder’ equity
Common stock: $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 sterttwrized; 43,350,831 and 49,564,877 shares issued

and 43,222,031 and 47,387,425 shares outstandihghat30, 2012 and 2011, respecti\ 43 50
Additional pait-in capital 220,55: 255,68¢
Treasury stock, at cost (128,800 and 2,177,452starJune 30, 2012 and 2011, respecti (1,179 (7,779
Accumulated other comprehensive inca (1,439 51
Retained earning 120,37¢ 107,37¢

Total stockholder equity 338,35’ 355,38
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $507,16( $524,92:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net revenue

Cost of revenu®

Gross profi

Operating expense®
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
General and administrati\

Operating incom

Interest incomt

Interest expens

Other income (expense), r

Income before income tax

Provision for taxe:

Net income

Net income attributable to common stockhold:
Basic
Diluted

Net income per share attributable to common stoclens:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares used in computing net ie@anshare attributable to comn
stockholders
Basic
Diluted

() Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc
Cost of revenu
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
General and administratiy

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
$370,46¢  $403,02.  $334,83
283,46¢ 291,99: 240,73
87,00: 111,03( 94,10¢
21,05! 24,16 19,72¢
14,07+ 17,38: 16,69¢
23,37 20,39¢ 18,46+
28,50: 49,08¢ 39,21°
134 16¢ 97
(4,462) (4,219 (3,977
(42) 56 1,52
24,13: 45,10; 36,86(
(11,137 (17,88)) (16,276
$ 13,000  $27,21¢  $ 20,58
$ 13,000  $ 27,21  $ 12,78:
$ 13,000  $27,21¢  $ 13,20
$ 026 $ 05¢ $ 0.5C
$ 026 $ 058 $ 0.4€
45,84¢ 46,22: 25,61¢
46,85¢ 49,13( 28,42¢
$ 429 $ 4506 $ 3,111
2,57( 2,70¢ 2,17¢
3,09¢ 3,741 3,46¢
3,031 2,99: 4,621
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED ST OCK, STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Convertible Other Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Comprehensive Retainec Shareholders' Comprehensive
Paid-in
Shares  Amount Shares  Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity Income
Balance at June 30, 2009 21,176,53 $43,40: 15,413,00 $ 15 (2,097,65) $ (7,069 $ 20,63 $ 21 $ 59,58( $ 73,18¢
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of stock optior — — 657,61- 1 — — 1,63¢ — — 1,64(

Issuance of common stock in

connection with initial public

offering, net of issuance costs

$13,215 — 10,000,00 10 — — 136,77! 136,78!
Conversion of preferred stock to

common stock in connection

with initial public offering (21,176,53) (43,409 21,176,53 21 — — 43,38: — — 43,40
Stoclk-based compensatic — — — — — — 13,37: — — 13,37:
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — — — 1,78( — — 1,78(
Repurchase of common sta — — — — (79,800 (715) — — — (715)
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 20,58« 20,58: $ 20,58
Currency translation
adjustment: — — — — — — — (12) — (12) (12)
Comprehensive incon — — — — — — — — — — 3 20,57:
Balance at June 30, 201 — $ — 4724714 $ 47 (2177,45) $ (7,779 $ 217,58. $ 9 $ 80,16 $ 290,02:
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of stock optior — — 2,317,731 3 — — 16,967 — — 16,97(
Payments of initial public offering
issuance cos! — — — — — — (201) — — (101)
Stoclk-based compensatic — — — — — — 13,95( — — 13,95(
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — — — 7,292 — — 7,292
Repurchase of common sta — — — — — — — — — —
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 27,21« 27,21 $ 27,21«
Unrealized gain (loss) on
investments — — — — — — — 2 — 2 2
Currency translation
adjustment: — — — — — — — 4C — 40 4C
Comprehensive incorr — — — — — — — — — — $ 27,25¢
Balance at June 30, 2011 — $ — 4956487 $ 50 (2,177,45) $ (7,779 $ 255,68¢ $ 51 $107,37¢ $ 355,38¢
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of stock optior — — 525,99! 1 — — 4,697 — — 4,69¢
Release of RSU — — 62,53( — — — — — — —
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — — — 12,99¢ — — 12,99¢
Withholding taxes on the net
settlement of RSU — — — — — — (417) — — (417)
Excess tax losses from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — — — (694) — — (694)
Repurchase of common sta — — — —  (4,753,91) (45,12¢) — — — (45,12¢)
Retirement of treasury stor — —  (6,802,57) (8) 6,802,57 51,723 (51,719 — — —
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 13,00! 13,00 $ 13,00:
Unrealized gain (loss) on
investments — — — — — — — ) — ) )
Currency translation
adjustment: — — — — — — — (35¢) — (35¢€) (35¢)
Unrealized gain/loss on
interest rate swa — — — — — — — (2,130 — (1,130 (1,130
Comprehensive incorr — — — — — — — — — — $ 11,51;
Balance at June 30, 201 — $ — 43350,83 $ 43 (128,800 $ (1,17¢) $ 220,55: $ (1,439 $120,37¢ $ 338,35

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:!

Depreciation and amortizatic

Provision for sales returns and doubtful accouedgivable

Stock-based compensatic
Excess tax benefits from st-based compensatic
Other nor-cash adjustments, n

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effeEecquisitions;

Accounts receivabl

Prepaid expenses and other as

Other assets, noncurre

Deferred taxe

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenu

Other liabilities, noncurrer

Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital expenditure
Business acquisitions, net of notes payable an aeguirec
Internal software development co
Purchases of marketable securi
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketaloiergies
Other investing activitie
Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Proceeds from exercise of common stock opt
Proceeds from bank de
Principal payments on bank de
Payment of bank loan upfront fe
Principal payments on acquisit-related notes payab
Excess tax benefits from st-based compensatic

Withholding taxes related to restricted stock metre settlemer

Repurchases of common stc

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casaénts
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informatior

Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid for taxe

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and i&ncing Activities

Notes payable issued in connection with busineggisitions
Conversion of preferred stock to common st
Retirement of treasury sto

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
$ 13,000 $ 27,21  $ 20,58«
31,15( 27,27: 18,79:
84 (35) (751)
12,99¢ 13,95( 13,37;
(197) (7,45¢) (1,85¢)
1,95( 99 (1,627)
(1,989 3,88¢ (14,402
(2,695) 4,947 29
78 12C 11
2,78: (3,257) (6,771
(376) 6,37t 3,36:
(7,405) 2,55; 7,90(
(242) 1,04¢ (112)
(1,416) 1,45¢ (22)
47,72; 78,17 38,50¢
(2,26¢) (5,369) (2,710
(60,079 (91,83 (68,17¢)
(2,379) (1,841) (1,414)
(48,216 (54,43) —
45,00: 19,22; —
30 (515) 67
(67,900  (134,76) (72,237
— (106)  136,79(
4,69¢ 16,71( 1,64(
5,88¢ 24,42t 43,30(
(5,125) (3,969 (3,100
(1,370) — —
(3,366) (11,45) (15,45()
197 7,45¢ 1,85¢
(417) — —
(43,94%) — (715)
(43,44 33,07 164,32
(139) 40 12)
(63,759 (23,480 130,58t
132,29( 155,77 25,18:
$ 68,53.  $132,29(  $155,77(
3,78¢ 4,12¢ 3,86(
13,72 16,88t 22,10¢
5,09¢ 3,311 14,50:
— — 43,40
51,72 — —
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QUINSTREET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. The Company

QuinStreet, Inc. (the “Company”) is an online veatimarketing and media company. The Company wasorated in California on
April 16, 1999 and reincorporated in Delaware orc&maber 31, 2009. The Company provides verticalignted customer acquisition progre
for its clients. The Company also provides hostddt®ns for direct selling companies. The corpeta¢adquarters are located in Foster City,
California, with additional offices throughout thimited States, Brazil and India.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tlo®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Intagany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
(“GAAP”) requires management to make estimatesamstimptions that affect the reported amounts etsssd liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effiencial statements and reported amounts ofwevand expenses during the reporting period.
These estimates are based on information avaitehte the date of the financial statements; theegefactual results could differ from those
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from two sourc@gcbDMarketing Services (“DMS”) and Direct Selliggrvices (“DSS”"). DMS
revenue, which constituted more than 99% in figear 2012, 2011 and 2010, is derived from fees kvhie earned through the delivery of
qualified leads, clicks and, to a lesser exterspldly advertisements (“impressions”). The Compapgnizes revenue when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery hasroed, the fee is fixed or determinable and cadibiity is reasonably assured. Delivery is
deemed to have occurred at the time a qualified, lelack or impression is delivered to the clienbyided that no significant obligations rem:

On July 1, 2010, as required under GAAP, the Compalopted the amended accounting standard forpraultieliverable revenue
arrangements which provides guidance on whethetiptaitleliverables exist, how the deliverablesnraarangement should be separated, and
how the consideration should be allocated. The talopf this amended standard did not have a sagrif impact on the Company’s revenue
recognition for multiple deliverable revenue arramgnts.

The guidance requires an entity to allocate revéma@ arrangement using the estimated sellingefieSP”) of deliverables if it does
not have vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSP&'selling price based on historical stand-alsales or third-party evidence (“TPE”) of
selling price. Due to the unique nature of somisofnultiple deliverable revenue arrangementsGbmpany may not be able to establish
selling prices based on historical stand-alonessaiehird party evidence, therefore the Company os its best estimate to establish selling
prices for these arrangements under the new stdntlae Company establishes best estimates wittange of selling prices considering
multiple factors including, but not limited to, slRof client, size of transaction, available meaNentory, pricing strategies and market
conditions. The Company believes the use of thedstsnate of selling price allows revenue recagnitn a manner consistent with the
underlying economics of the transaction.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

From time to time, the Company may agree to ciredltent for certain leads, clicks or impressidrtheéy fail to meet the contractual or
other guidelines of a particular client. The Comphas established a sales reserve based on higtexigerience. To date, such credits have
been immaterial and within management’s expectation

For a portion of its revenue, the Company has agee¢s with providers of online media or traffic (titishers”)used in the generation
leads and clicks. The Company receives a fee ftemlients and pays a fee to Publishers as a poofioevenue generated or on a cost per |
cost per click or cost per thousand impressionsb@ke Company is the primary obligor in the tet®n. As a result, the fees paid by the
Company’s clients are recognized as revenue anfitéisepaid to its Publishers are included in costeenue.

DSS revenue, which constituted less than 1% imafigear 2012, 2011 and 2010, comprises (i) setrappaofessional services fees and
(i) usage fees. Set-up and professional servies fieat do not provide stand-alone value to atcliemrecognized over the contractual term of
the agreement or the expected client relationséifog, whichever is longer, effective when the aggilon reaches the “go-live” date. The
Company defines the “go-live” date as the date wtherapplication enters into a production environtreg all essential functionalities have
been delivered. Usage fees are recognized on ahiydrdsis as earned.

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lgjin excess of recognized revenue and paymerds/egcin advance of revenue
recognition.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to significant concentrations of credik gensist principally of cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and accoun&vadale. The Company’s investment portfolio corssadtliquid high-quality fixed income US
government or municipal securities, certificateslgposit with financial institutions and money netrfunds. Cash and certificates of deposit
are deposited with financial institutions that mgeraent believes are creditworthy. To date, the Gomhas not experienced any losses on its
investment portfolio.

The Company’s accounts receivable are derived friients located principally in the United StateeeTCompany performs ongoing
credit evaluation of its clients, does not requiolateral, and maintains allowances for poterdiatlit losses on client accounts when deemed
necessary. No client accounted for 10% or moresbfiscounts receivable for both fiscal year 2012 201.1.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company'’s financial instruments consist priatlipof cash equivalents, marketable securitiespants receivable, accounts payable,
acquisition-related promissory notes, an interatet swap and a term loan. The fair value of the @ow's cash equivalents is determined
based on quoted prices in active markets for idah#issets for its money market funds; and quatieggfor similar instruments in active
markets for its U.S municipal securities and ciediies of deposits that mature within 90 days. fEterded values of the Company’s accounts
receivable and accounts payable approximate theiewt fair values due to the relatively short-terature of these accounts. The fair value of
acquisition-related promissory notes approximagér tecorded amounts as the interest rates onagifirlancing arrangements available to the
Company at June 30, 2012 approximates the inteatest implied when these acquisition-related prearignotes were originally issued and
recorded. The fair value of our interest rate sigdpased upon valuation models as reported by mumterparty. The Company believes that
fair value of the term loan approximates its reedrdmount at June 30, 2012 as the interest ratteeaierm loan is variable and is based on
market interest rates and after consideration fzudeand credit risk.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with maturities ofrsee months or less at the date of purchase argif@gsas cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist primarily of money market fundsinicipal securities and certificates of depwsih original maturities of three months or
less.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and amortization, and areedégiied on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, as fatlow

Computer equipmet 3 years

Software 3 years

Furniture and fixture 3to 5 year:

Leasehold improvemen the shorter of the lease term or the estimatedulbeés of the
improvement:

Internal Software Development Costs

The Company incurs costs to develop software fiariral use. The Company expenses all costs trederel the planning and post-
implementation phases of development as produaldpment expense. Costs incurred in the developpteage are capitalized and amortized
over the product’s estimated useful life if theguot is expected to have a useful life beyond sixtins. Costs associated with repair or
maintenance of existing sites or the developmeimtgedsite content are included in cost of revemuhé accompanying statements of
operations. The Company’s policy is to amortizeitediped internal software development costs omaalpct-by-product basis using the
straight-line method over the estimated econorficdf the application, which is generally two yedree Company capitalized $1.9 million,
$1.8 million, and $1.4 million in fiscal years 202011 and 2010, respectively. Amortization of int¢ software development costs is refle
in cost of revenue.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reportingt level on an annual basis and whenever everthanges in circumstances indicate
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoleralpplication of the goodwill impairment test ées judgment, including the
identification of reporting units, assigning assatd liabilities to reporting units, assigning gaditito reporting units, and determining the fair
value of each reporting unit. Significant judgmemguired to estimate the fair value of reportimgfsiinclude estimating future cash flows and
determining appropriate discount rates, growthsrad@ appropriate control premium and other assomgtChanges in these estimates and
assumptions could materially affect the determaratf fair value for each reporting unit which adtligger impairment.

The Company has determined that DMS and DSS cotestivo separate reporting units. The Company pagats annual goodwiill
impairment review during its fourth fiscal quarterd concluded that goodwill was not impaired. Npdinment charges were recorded in the
periods presented.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates lofiged assets, such as property and equipment amthgsed intangible assets with finite lives, fopaimmeni
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value of an asset may not beverable. The Company applies
judgment when assessing the fair value of the sisseted on the undiscounted future cash flowsabetsare expected to generate
recognizes an impairment loss if estimated undistalifuture cash flows expected to result fromube of the asset plus net proceeds
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expected from disposition of the asset, if any,less than the carrying value of the asset. WherCtbmpany identifies an impairment, it
reduces the carrying amount of the asset to ilsiatd fair value based on a discounted cash flgpvaach or, when available and appropriate,
to comparable market values. No impairment change recorded in the periods presented.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as theganeed. Advertising expenses for fiscal yearsZ®D11 and 2010 were $0.2
million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million, respectivel

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using art asddiability approach to record deferred taxése Company’s deferred income
tax assets represent temporary differences betthedimancial statement carrying amount and thebtsis of existing assets and liabilities that
will result in deductible amounts in future yedased on estimates, the carrying value of the Cogipanet deferred tax assets assumes that it
is more likely than not that the Company will béeato generate sufficient future taxable incoméhimrespective tax jurisdictions. The
Company’s judgments regarding future profitabilityyy change due to future market conditions, chaimgesS. or international tax laws and
other factors.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s foreign operations are subject tthamge rate fluctuations. The majority of the Comypxmeales and expenses are
denominated in U.S. dollars. The functional curgefae the majority of the Company’s foreign subaiigs is the U.S. dollar. For these
subsidiaries, assets and liabilities denominatddrigign currency are remeasured into U.S. doBaiurrent exchange rates for monetary asset:
and liabilities and historical exchange rates fonmonetary assets and liabilities. Net revenud, @o®venue and expenses are generally
remeasured at average exchange rates in effecigdesich period. Gains and losses from foreign nayreemeasurement are included in other
income (expense), net. Certain foreign subsidiatessgnate the local currency as their functionatency. For those subsidiaries, the assets
and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollargathange rates in effect at the balance sheetldatame and expense items are translated at
average exchange rates for the period. The fomigrency translation adjustments are included auaunilated other comprehensive income
(loss) as a separate component of stockholdersfyedfioreign currency transaction gains or lossesacorded in other income (expense), net
and were not material for any period presented.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two componentsnoeme and other comprehensive income (loss)edtbmprehensive income
(loss) refers to revenue, expenses, gains, andddbat under GAAP are recorded as an elemenbcklsblders’ equity but are excluded from
net income. The Company’s comprehensive incoms)lasd accumulative other comprehensive incoms)(lmensists of foreign currency
translation adjustments from those subsidiariesuisivtg the U.S. dollar as their functional currenayrealized gains and losses on marketable
securities categorized as available-for-sale amdalized gains and losses on the interest rate.slizdpl accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) is displayed as a separate compafatockholders’ equity.

Derivative Instrument

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2012, then@pany entered into an interest rate swap agreetodetdge the interest rate exposure
relating to its borrowing under its term loan. T®@mpany does not speculate using derivative ingnis The Company entered into this
derivative instrument arrangement solely for thgppae of risk management.
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The current and noncurrent portion of the interatt swap is recorded in accrued liabilities areotiabilities, noncurrent, respectively,
on the consolidated balance sheets at fair valsedapon quoted market prices. Changes in th@dhie of this interest rate swap are recor
in other comprehensive income because the Compahyédsignated the swap as a cash flow hedge. Gaiosses on the interest rate swap as
reported in other comprehensive income are claskth interest expense in the period the hedgedaféects earnings. If the term loan ceases
to exist, any associated amounts reported in athprehensive income are reclassified to earnihtfmatime. Any hedge ineffectiveness is
recognized immediately in earnings in the curresrtqu. Refer to Note 9, Debt, for additional infation regarding our credit facility and
interest rate swap.

Loss Contingencies

The Company is subject to the possibility of vasidass contingencies arising in the ordinary coofdeusiness. Management considers
the likelihood of loss or impairment of an assethar incurrence of a liability, as well as its &pito reasonably estimate the amount of loss, in
determining loss contingencies. An estimated lasgicgency is accrued when it is probable thatssethas been impaired or a liability has
been incurred and the amount of loss can be rebsoestimated. The Company regularly evaluateseciinformation available to its
management to determine whether such accrualsdbeudjusted and whether new accruals are required

From time to time, the Company is involved in diggsy litigation and other legal actions. The Conypatords a charge equal to at least
the minimum estimated liability for a loss contingg only when both of the following conditions anet: (i) information available prior to
issuance of the financial statements indicatesitli@probable that an asset had been impairedliability had been incurred at the date of the
financial statements, and (ii) the range of lossloareasonably estimated. The actual liabilitgriyg such matters may be materially different
from the Company'’s estimates, which could resuthenneed to adjust the liability and record additl expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures and records the expensedriack-based transactions based on the faiesalf stock-based payment
awards, as determined on the date of grant. Tmasgtithe fair value of stock options, the Compaeigcted the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. In applying the Black-Scholes option pricingdel, the Company’s determination of the faiueadf the stock option is affected by
assumptions regarding a number of highly compleksarbjective variables. These variables includéabeinot limited to, the Company’s
expected stock price volatility over the term o #tock options and the employees’ actual and giegjlestock option exercise and pre-vesting
employment termination behaviors. The fair valuesstricted stock units is determined based ortlteng price of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant.

For awards with graded vesting the Company recegrstock-based compensation expense over theitecggsvice period using the
straight-line method, based on awards ultimatepeeied to vest. The Company estimates future faris at the date of grant and revises the
estimates, if necessary, in subsequent periodsubbforfeitures differ from those estimates.

See Note 11 for further information.

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribytlan covering all U.S. employees. Contributions enbg the Company are
determined annually by the Board of Directors. Eheere no employer contributions under this plarfifzal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the FASB issued an update tadt@unting standard for goodwill and intangiblEse revised standard is intende:
simplify the goodwill impairment test by providirmgn option to first perform a qualitative assessnetetermine whether further impairment
testing is necessary. The revised standard isteféefor annual and interim goodwill impairmentteperformed for fiscal years beginning a
December 15, 2011, with early adoption permittéte Tompany does not anticipate that its adoptichefevised standard on July 1, 2012
will have a material effect on its consolidatedaficial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued guidance on the pi&tsen of comprehensive income. The new guidatio@retes the current option to
report other comprehensive income and its compariarthe statement of changes in stockholders’tgquistead, an entity will be required to
present either a continuous statement of net incmdeother comprehensive income or in two sepéatteonsecutive statements. This portion
of the guidance became effective for the Compamyrimeng July 1, 2012 and will require financialtstment presentation changes only. The
new guidance also required entities to presenassification adjustments out of accumulated otbergrehensive income by component in
both the statement in which net income is preseatelthe statement in which other comprehensiveniecis presented. However, in
December 2011, the FASB issued guidance which iinitielfy defers the guidance related to the presemtaf reclassification adjustments.

In May 2011, the FASB issued guidance to achievenaon fair value measurement and disclosure reqeintsrbetween U.S. GAAP a
International Financial Reporting Standards. The gaidance amends current fair value measuremehtiselosure guidance to include
increased transparency around valuation inputdrargstment categorization. The new guidance iscéffe for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. The Compaagoption of the new guidance in the third quastdiscal year 2012 did not have a mate
impact on its financial position, results of oparas or cash flows.

3. Net Income Attributable to Common Stockholders ad Net Income per Share

Basic and diluted net income per share attributab®mmon stockholders is presented in conformiti the “two-class method”
required for participating securities. In Februa®i0, all of the Company’s outstanding convertjeferred stock converted into common
stock in connection with the its initial public effng. Prior to the conversion, holders of SerieSéries B and Series C convertible preferred
stock were each entitled to receive 8% per annumaumulative dividends, payable prior and in prefiee to any dividends on any other
shares of the Company’s capital stock. No suctddivils were paid.

For periods prior to the conversion of the contdgtpreferred stock, net income per share inforomas computed using the two-class
method. Under the two-class method, basic net iecpen share attributable to common stockholdeesnsputed by dividing the net income
attributable to common stockholders by the weigltegrage number of shares of common stock outstgratliring the period. Net income
attributable to common stockholders is computeduiytracting from net income the portion of perioddaite earnings that the preferred
stockholders would have been entitled to receivsymant to their dividend rights had this portiomet income been distributed. Diluted net
income per share attributable to common stockhsldecomputed by using the weighted-average nuwifsitares of common stock
outstanding, including potential dilutive sharecofmmon stock assuming the dilutive effect of @rtding stock options and restricted stock
units using the treasury stock method.
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The following table presents the calculation ofibasd diluted net income per share attributableotmmon stockholders:

Years Ended June 30
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except
per share data)

Numerator:
Basic:
Net income $13,00! $27,21¢ $20,58¢
8% nor-cumulative dividends on convertible preferred st — — (2,019
Undistributed earnings allocated to convertiblefgnred stock — — (5,789
Net income attributable to common stockholc- basic $13,00! $27,21¢ $12,78:
Diluted:
Net income attributable to common stockholc- basic $13,00:! $27,21¢ $12,78:
Undistributed earnings -allocated to common stot — — 41¢
Net income attributable to common stockholc- diluted $13,00! $27,21¢ $13,20:
Denominator
Basic:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipuiimg basic net income per shi 45,84¢ 46,22: 25,61¢
Diluted:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipwiimg basic net income per shi 45,84¢ 46,22 25,61¢
Weighted average effect of dilutive securiti
Stock options 1,004 2,84t 2,81:
Restricted stock uni 9 63
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipwtimg diluted net income per sh 46,85¢ 49,13( 28,42¢
Net income per share attributable to common stolddns:
Basic $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5C
Diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4¢€
Securities excluded from weighted average shared imscomputing diluted net income per sk
because the effect would have been-dilutive: @ 6,74¢ 2,68¢ 2,91¢

@ These weighted shares relate to anti-dilutive stqtions and restricted stock units as calculagdguthe treasury stock method and
could be dilutive in the future

@ Earnings per share for the fiscal year ended JOn2@®L0 includes the effects of the convertiblégred stock under the t-class
method before its conversion in connection withritgal public offering.
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4. Fair Value Measurements and Marketable Securitig
Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would lxeireed on sale of an asset or paid to transfexbdity (“exit price”) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the areagent date. The FASB has established a fair J@krarchy that distinguishes between
(1) market participant assumptions developed basadarket data obtained from independent sourdese(gable inputs) and (2) an entity’s
own assumptions about market participant assumptiemneloped based on the best information availakilee circumstances (unobservable
inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of thoesad levels, which gives the highest priorityt@adjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and thevést priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy untierguidance for fair value measurement are desttielow:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices fivaenarkets for identical assets or liabilitiesicihg inputs are based upon
guoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities that the reporting entity has #idglity to access at the measurement date.
The valuations are based on quoted prices of tenlying security that are readily and regularlgitable in an active market, and
accordingly, a significant degree of judgment is iegjuired. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Compaed Level 1 assumptions for
money market funds.

Level 2 —Pricing inputs are based upon quoted prices foll@imstruments in active markets, quoted pricesidentical or simils
instruments in markets that are not active, andehbdsed valuation techniques for which all sigwifit assumptions are observable in
the market or can be corroborated by observabl&ehdata for substantially the full term of theetssor liabilities. As of June 30, 2012
and 2011, the Company used Level 2 assumptiorissforS. municipal securities, certificates of deifg acquisition-related promissory
notes, term loan, and interest rate swap.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are generally unobservdbidhe assets or liabilities and include situasiovhere there is little, if any,
market activity for the investment. The inputs ittte determination of fair value require managersgatdgment or estimation of
assumptions that market participants would useiting the assets or liabilities. The fair values therefore determined using model-
based techniques that include option pricing moaisounted cash flow models, and similar techesqés of June 30, 2012 and 2011,
the Company did not have any Level 3 financial &ssseliabilities.
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The securities held by the Company as of June @ 2nd 2011 were categorized as follows in thevigue hierarchy (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2012 Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant Other
Active Markets
for Identical Assets Observable
Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
Assets:
U.S. municipal securitie $ — $ 30,86 $ 30,86
Certificates of depos — 11,47( 11,47(
Money market fund 21,45¢ — 21,45¢
$ 21,45¢ $ 42,33 $ 63,78¢
Liabilities:
Acquisitior-related promissory nott $ — $ 12,21¢ $ 12,21t
Term loan — 95,38: 95,381
Revolving credit line — — —
Interest rate swa — 1,13¢ 1,13¢
$ i $ 108,73¢ $108,73:
Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2011 Using
Quoted Prices in Significant Other
Active Markets for
Observable
Identical Assets Inputs
_ (levell) __ (Level2) __Total
Assets:
U.S. municipal securitie $ — $ 23,63: $ 23,631
Certificates of depos — 19,03¢ 19,03¢
Money market fund 51,65¢ — 51,65¢
Interest Rate Swa — — —
$ 51,65¢ $ 42,67 $ 94,327
Liabilities:
Acquisitior-related promissory nott $ — $ 10,54¢ $ 10,54t
Term loan — 29,80: 29,801
Revolving credit line — 65,70: 65,70:
Interest rate swa — — —
$ — $ 106,04¢ $106,04¢

Marketable Securitie:

All liquid investments with maturities of three ntbe or less at the date of purchase are classifiezish equivalents. Investments with
maturities greater than three months at the dapeiahase are classified as marketable securitres Company’s marketable securities have
been classified and accounted for as availablesdte: Management determines the appropriate dtzsih of its investments at the time of
purchase and reevaluates the available-for-salgrigon as of each balance sheet date. Availabilsdle securities are carried at fair value,
with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, tegoss a component of stockholders’ equity.

71



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The following table summarizes unrealized gainslasdes related to available-for-sale securitiéd bg the Company as of June 30,

2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

U.S. municipal securities
Certificates of depos
Money market fund

U.S. municipal securitie
Certificates of depos
Money market fund

5. Balance Sheet Components
Accounts Receivable, Net
Accounts receivable, net are comprised of the fahg (in thousands):

Accounts receivabl
Less: Allowance for doubtful accour
Less: Allowance for sales retur

Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment, net is comprised of theviehg (in thousands):

Computer equipmet

Software

Furniture and fixture

Leasehold improvemen

Internal software development co

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza
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As of June 30, 2012

Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$30,85! $ 10 $ — $30,86!
11,48( — 10 11,47(
21,45¢ — — 21,45¢
$63,78¢ $ 10 $ 10 $63,78¢
As of June 30, 201.:
Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$23,62¢ $ 12 $ — $23,63
19,04¢ — 10 19,03¢
51,65¢ — — 51,65¢
$94,32¢ $ 12 $ 10 $94,32%
June 30,
2012 2011
$55,637 $50,94¢
(424) (27€)
(2,389 (2,447)
$52,83( $48,22¢
June 30,
2012 2011
$ 10,86: $ 11,44¢
7,11¢ 6,34«
2,72 2,40
1,891 1,86:
18,59’ 16,71
41,19: 38,77(
(32,436 (29,89Y)
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Depreciation expense was $3.3 million, $3.6 milléard $2.2 million for fiscal years 2012, 2011 a@d @, respectively. Amortization
expense related to internal software developmestsagas $1.9 million, $1.5 million and $1.3 milliéor fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Accrued liabilities
Accrued liabilities are comprised of the followifig thousands):

June 30,
2012 2011
Accrued media costs 15,48t $17,51¢
Accrued compensation and related expenses andpgayeble 9,09¢ 12,92(
Accrued professional service and other businessresq 4,881 2,802
Total accrued liabilitie: $29,46: $33,23¢

6. Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012
Acquisition of Ziff Davis Enterprise

On February 3, 2012, the Company acquired certsata of Ziff Davis Enterprise from Enterprise Me@iroup, Inc., a New York-based
online media and marketing company in the busitedsisiness technology market, for $17.3 milliorcash, to broaden its registered user
database and brand name in the business-to-busgubsmlogy market. The results of the acquireétassf Ziff Davis Enterprise have been
included in the consolidated financial statememsesthe acquisition date.

Amount

(in thousands
Cash $ 17,27(

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedrsscombination. The Company allocated the psepaice to tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable mgfible assets acquired based on their estimateddhies. The excess of the purchase price
over the aggregate fair value was recorded as giloditve goodwill is deductible for tax purposeselfollowing table summarizes the
preliminary allocation of the purchase price areleéktimated useful lives of the identifiable intidnhg assets acquired as of the date of the
acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated
Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life

Liabilities assumed $ (255
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationst 4,12( 5 years
Content 50C 2 years
Website/trade/domain nam 4,63( 5 years
Registered user databe 6,32( 3 years
Goodwill 1,95¢ Indefinite

$17,27(
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Acquisition of NarrowCast Group, LLC“IT Business Edge” or “ITBE")

On August 25, 2011, the Company acquired 100%ebtitstanding equity interests of ITBE, in exchafayeb24.0 million in cash, to
broaden its registered user database and medissaiccthe business-to-business technology marketr@sults of ITBES operations have be
included in the consolidated financial statemeimsesthe acquisition date.

Amount

(In thousands;
Cash $ 23,96

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedsscombination. The Company allocated the pgeepaice to tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable mgible assets acquired based on their estimateddhies. The excess of the purchase price
over the aggregate fair value was recorded as gilod@itve goodwill is deductible for tax purposeseérlfollowing table summarizes the
preliminary allocation of the purchase price aneléstimated useful lives of the identifiable intidatg assets acquired as of the date of the
acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated
Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquired $ 3,59
Liabilities assume: (1,869
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationsk 3,23( 5 years
Content 42C 2 years
Website/trade/domain nam 2,22( 5 years
Registered user databe 4,22( 3 years
Noncompete agreemer 10C 3 years
Goodwill 12,04 Indefinite
$23,96:

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012

During fiscal year 2012, in addition to the acqidsi of certain assets of Ziff Davis Enterprised dhe acquisition of ITBE, the Company
also acquired operations from eleven other onlindiphing businesses in exchange for an aggred&®406 million in cash, $3.1 million in
non-interest-bearing, promissory notes payable ay@sriod of two years, secured by the assets i@ahin respect to which the notes were
issued and $2.1 million in non-interest-bearingsagured promissory notes payable over a period®fyear. The Company also recorded $4.6
million in earn-out payments related to a prioripgracquisition as an addition to goodwill. The eggate purchase price recorded was as
follows:

Amount

(In thousands;
Cash $ 14,62

Fair value of debt (net of $99 of imputed inter: 9,69¢
$ 24,31¢
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The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedascombinations. In each of the acquisitions,Gbmpany allocated the purchase
price to identifiable intangible assets acquiresdobon their estimated fair values. The excesseoptirchase price over the aggregate fair value
was recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is deduetitar tax purposes. The following table summarthespreliminary allocation of the
purchase price and the estimated useful liveseofdéntifiable intangible assets acquired as ofitite of the acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationships $ 43t 3-5 years
Content 4,54( 2-5 years
Website/trade/domain nam 1,25(C 4-8 years
Acquired technology and oth 56C 4-5 years
Noncompete agreemer 87 1-3.5 year:
Goodwill 17,44 Indefinite

$ 24,31¢

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011
Acquisition of Carlnsurance.com

On November 5, 2010, the Company acquired 100%ebtitstanding shares of Car Insurance.com, In€adnsurance.com, a Florida-
based online insurance business, and certain affiisted companies, in exchange for $49.7 millia cash paid upon closing of the
acquisition. The results of Carlnsurance.com’s ati@ns have been included in the consolidated @irsdustatements since the acquisition date.
The Company acquired Carlnsurance.com for its égptacgenerate online visitors in the financiahdees market. The total purchase price
recorded was as follows:

Amount

(In thousands;
Cash $ 49,65¢

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedsscombination. The Company allocated the pgeepaice to tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable mgfible assets acquired based on their estimateddhies. The excess of the purchase price
over the aggregate fair value was recorded as giloditve goodwill is deductible for tax purposeselfollowing table summarizes the
allocation of the purchase price and the estimasedul lives of the identifiable intangible assatguired as of the date of the acquisition (in
thousands):

Estimated
Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquired $ 661
Liabilities assume: (807)
Advertiser relationship 26( 6-7 year:
Content 16,13( 7 year:
Website/trade/domain nam 4,35( 10 year
Acquired technology and othe 3,00(¢ 2-4 year
Noncompete agreemer 40 4 year:
Goodwill 26,02: Indefinite

$49,65¢
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Acquisition of Insurance.com

On July 26, 2010, the Company acquired the websisiness of Insurance.com, from Insurance.com GHogp an Ohio-based online
insurance business, in exchange for $33.0 milliocash paid upon closing of the acquisition andgkeance of a $2.6 million non-interest-
bearing, unsecured promissory note payable inmstallment on the second anniversary of the adéprsilate. The results of Insurance.com’s
operations have been included in the consolidateshial statements since the acquisition date.ddmpany acquired Insurance.com for its
capacity to generate online visitors in the finahservices market. The total purchase price rexbvaas as follows:

Amount

(In thousands’
Cash $ 33,00(

Fair value of debt (net of $157 of imputed intey: 2,48:
$ 35,48

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pgeepaice to tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired based eir #stimated fair values. The excess of the pwelpaice over the aggregate fair value was
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is deductible fx purposes. The following table summarizesattacation of the purchase price and the
estimated useful lives of the identifiable intargibssets acquired as of the date of the acquigiticthousands):

Estimated Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquired $ 1,20¢
Advertiser relationship 2,12( 7 years
Content 4,29( 4 years
Website/trade/domain nam 2,94( 10 years
Acquired technology and othe 5,53( 2-4 years
Noncompete agreemer 60 5 years
Goodwill 19,33¢ Indefinite

$ 35,48

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011

During fiscal year 2011, in addition to the acqigsis of Carlnsurance.com and Insurance.com, thepany acquired operations from
other online publishing businesses in exchang&4or million in cash paid upon closing of the asifions and $0.9 million in non-interest-
bearing, unsecured promissory notes payable operiad of time ranging from one to three years. Tlepany also recorded $4.5 million in
earn-out payments related to a prior period actpiisas addition to goodwill. The aggregate purehasce recorded was as follows:

Amount

(in thousands'
Cash $ 9,22¢

Fair value of debt (net of $36 of imputed intert 82¢
$ 10,05(

The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedascombinations. In each of the acquisitions,Gbmpany allocated the purchase
price to identifiable intangible assets acquiresdobon their estimated fair
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values. The excess of the purchase price overgipesgate fair value was recorded as goodwill. Gabdeductible for tax purposes is $7.9
million. The following table summarizes the alldoatof the purchase prices of these other acqoistand the estimated useful lives of the
identifiable intangible assets acquired as of #gpective dates of these acquisitions (in thougands

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Customer/publisher relationshi $ 238 3-5 years
Content 1,274 3-5 years
Website/trade/domain nam 541 4-5 years
Noncompete agreemer 88 1-3 years
Goodwill 7,914 Indefinite
$ 10,05(

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010

In fiscal year 2010, the Company acquired the weligisiness of Internet.com, a division of WebMBdéads, Inc., a New York-based
Internet media company, to broaden its media aaed<lient basein the business-to-business maheetyebsite business Insure.com, from
Life Quotes, Inc., an lllinois-based online markgtcompany for its capacity to generate onlineteisiin the financial services market, 100%
of the outstanding shares of Payler Corp. D/B/A H&#dociates Financial Publishers (“HSH"), a Newsédgrbased online marketing business,
for its capacity to generate online visitors in fimancial services market, as well as 30 otheinenpublishing businesses. The Company also
recorded $4.5 million in earn-out payments reldted prior period acquisition as addition to godtwi

The total purchase prices recorded were as follagwhousands):

Internet.com Insure.com HSH Other Total
Cash $ 15,94 $ 15,00( $6,00( $29,88: $66,82¢
Fair value of debt (net of imputed intere 1,654 97€ 3,75¢ 8,112 14,501

$ 17,59 $ 15,97¢ $9,75¢ $37,99¢ $81,32¢

The acquisitions were accounted for as a purchasiedss combinations. The Company allocated thehpge price to tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable mgible assets acquired based on their estimateddhies. The excess of the purchase price
over the aggregate fair value was recorded as giloditve goodwill deductible for tax purposes is0% million. The following table
summarizes the allocation of the purchase pricetla@stimated useful lives of the identifiableamgible assets acquired as of the date of the
acquisitions (in thousands):

Estimated
Internet.com Insure.com HSH Other Total Useful Life
Tangible assets acquired $ 313 $ — $ 50 $ 45 $ 3,231
Liabilities assume: (503) — (1,695 — (2,199
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationst 1,30(¢ 90C 1,10C 1,15C 4,45( 1-7 year:
Content 2,40( 3,90( 1,40( 8,38¢ 16,08  1-8 year:
Website/trade/domain nam 2,50( 1,25( 80C 2,74¢ 7,29¢  5-8year:
Acquired technolog — — — 19¢ 19¢ 3 years
Noncompete agreemer 20C — — 224 424  2-3 year:
Goodwill 8,56¢ 9,92¢ 8,10/ 25,244 51,83t  Indefinite

$ 17,597 $15,97¢

$9,75¢

$37,99¢

$81,32¢
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Pro Forma Financial Information (unaudited)

The unaudited pro forma financial information ie tiable below summarizes the combined results efatipns for the Company and
other companies that were acquired since the bemjrof fiscal year 2011. The pro forma financidbinmation includes the business
combination accounting effects resulting from thasguisitions including amortization charges frazgured intangible assets and the related
tax effects as though the aforementioned compavées acquired as of the beginning of fiscal yedarl2@ he unaudited pro forma financial
information as presented below is for informatiopafposes only and is not indicative of the resoifitgperations that would have been
achieved if the acquisitions had taken place ab#gnning of fiscal year 2011.

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Net revenue $378,89! $444,59(
Net income 13,60¢ 35,28
Basic net income per she $ 0.3 $ 0.7¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.2¢ $ 0.72
7. Intangibles Assets, Net and Goodwiill
Intangible assets, net consisted of the followingl{ousands):
June 30, 2017 June 30, 201!
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationst $ 37,04t $ (23,017) $14,02¢ $ 29,26¢ $ (16,89]) $12,371
Content 62,07¢ (34,430 27,64¢ 56,66: (25,147 31,521
Website/trade/domain nam 31,61¢ (22,81YH 18,80( 23,53 (8,569 14,96¢
Acquired technology and othe 31,47 (19,507 11,97( 20,19( (13,20%) 6,98¢

$162,21. $ (89,769 $72,44: $12965! $ (63,80f) $65,84]

Amortization of intangible assets was $26.0 milli$22.2 million and $15.3 million for fiscal yea2612, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Amortization expense for the Company’s acquisitielated intangible assets as of June 30, 201 2afdr ef the next five years and
thereafter is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending June 30,

2013 $24,11¢
2014 18,96:
2015 11,93¢
2016 8,397
2017 5,58t
Thereaftel 3,44¢

$72,44¢
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillffecal years 2012 and 2011 were as follows (in saoals):

DMS DSS Total

Balance at June 30, 20 $157,35: $1,231 $158,58:
Additions 53,27¢ — 53,27¢
Other — — —

Balance at June 30, 20 $210,62¢ $1,231 $211,85¢
Additions 31,44( — 31,44(
Other (247) — (247)
Balance at June 30, 20 $241,81¢ $1,231 $243,04¢

The additions to goodwill relate to the Companyquisitions as described in Note 6, and primaefject the value of the synergies
expected to be generated from combining the Conipaaghnology and know-how with the acquired busgas’ access to online visitors. Any
change in goodwill amounts resulting from foreigmrency translation are presented as “Other” inaiheve table.

8. Income Taxes
The components of income before income taxes af@laws (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010

us $23,951 $44,27( $35,981

Foreign 17¢ 831 873
$24,13: $45,10! $36,86(

The components of the provision for taxes are Bevis (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2012 2011 2010
Current
Federal $10,417 $18,58! $17,55¢
State 413 2,741 5,82
Foreign 291 18€ (88)
11,121 21,50¢ 23,29¢
Deferred
Federal $ (719 $(3,260) $(6,005)
State 664 (324) (981)
Foreign 65 (37) (32
10 (3,627 (7,019
$11,13! $17,88 $16,27¢
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The reconciliation between the statutory federabime tax and the Compasyeffective tax rates as a percentage of incomarééficom:
taxes is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2012 2011 2010
Federal tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
States taxes, net of federal ben 3.7% 3.2% 8.1%
Stoclk-based compensation expel 8.2% 2.8% 4.4%
Other (0.8)% (1L.3% (3.9%
Effective income tax rat 46.1% 39.7% 44.2%

The components of the current and long-term dedetar assets, net are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2012 2011

Current:

Reserves and accru: $ 5,432 $ 6,42¢

Stock options 2,04¢ 1,95¢

Deferred revenu 35 95¢

Other 154 91¢€
Total current deferred tax ass $ 7,66¢ $10,25:
Noncurreni

Stock options $ 6,131 $ 5,861

Intangible assel 3,44z 1,15¢

Fixed asset (1,626 (1,167

Foreign 6 10

Other 498 —
Total noncurrent deferred tax ass 8,44¢ 5,86¢
Total deferred tax assets, | $16,11 $16,11¢

Management periodically evaluates the realizabditthe deferred tax assets and recognizes thieetagfit only as reassessment
demonstrates that they are realizable. At such, tiitités determined that it is more likely thantrthat the deferred tax assets are realizable, the
valuation allowance will be adjusted. As of June W2 the Company determined that no valuatiamwalhce is required as it believes it is
more likely than not to realize all its deferred tssets in the foreseeable future.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had no operatisg darry-forwards for federal or state incomepaposes. The Company is
currently updating its R&D credit study. Based ba preliminary results of the study, the Compary R&D carried forwards of $0.5 million,
which may be carried over indefinitely.

United States federal income taxes have not bemnded for the $1.6 million of cumulative undistutied earnings of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries as of June 30, 2012. The Caoyipgresent intention is that such undistributathangs be permanently reinvested
offshore, with the exception of the undistributedrengs of its Canadian subsidiary. The Companyldvbe subject to additional United States
taxes if these earnings were repatriated. The atrafuhe unrecognized deferred income tax liabilélated to these earnings is not material to
the consolidated financial statements.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amaswiftunrecognized tax benefits is as follows (iougands):

Fiscal Year
2012 2011 2010
Balance at the beginning of the year $2,31: $2,01¢ $2,61
Gross increase- current period tax positior 351 49% 21¢
Reductions as a result of lapsed statute of limita! (227) (195) (99)
Gross decreast- settlements with tax authoriti — — (729
Balance at the end of the ye $2,43¢ $2,31¢2 $2,01¢

The Company’s policy is to include interest andgites related to unrecognized tax benefits within Company’s provision for income
taxes. As of June 30, 2012, the Company has ac@@é&dmillion for interest and penalties relatedhe unrecognized tax benefits. The bale
of unrecognized tax benefits and the related isteard penalties is recorded as a noncurrentitiabih the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet.

As of June 30, 2012, unrecognized tax benefit2of #illion, if recognized, would affect the Companeffective tax rate. The Compe
does not anticipate that the amount of existingoognized tax benefits will significantly increasedecrease within the next 12 months.

The Company is no longer subject to U.S. fedetatesand local, or non-U.S., income tax examinatioytax authorities for years before
2007. The Company files income tax returns in tingedi States, various U.S. states and certaingoreirisdictions. As of June 30, 2012, the
tax years 2009 through 2011 remain open in the, th8.tax years 2007 through 2011 remain opendrvéious state jurisdictions, and the tax
years 2007 through 2011 remain open in variousdargirisdictions,

9. Debt
Promissory Notes

During fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Comjissued total promissory notes for the acquisitbbusinesses of $5.1 million, $3.3
million and $14.5 million, respectively, net of immed interest amounts of $0.1 million, $0.2 milliand $0.8 million, respectively. All of the
promissory notes are non-interésaring. For these notes, interest was imputed thathihe notes carry an interest rate commensuittehat
available to the Company in the market for similabt instruments. Accretion of promissory note$@8 million, $0.5 million and $1.2 millic
was recorded as interest expense during fiscabya@it2, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Certain optbenissory notes are secured by the asset:
acquired with respect to which the notes were @sue

Credit Facility

In September 2008, the Company replaced its egisémolving credit facility of $60.0 million with eredit facility totaling $100.0
million. The new facility consisted of a $30.0 righ five-year term loan and a $70.0 million revolyicredit line.

In November 2009, the Company entered into an amentlof its existing credit facility pursuant to isih the Companyg lenders agree
to increase the maximum amount available unde€Ctirapany’s revolving credit line from $70.0 millioa $100.0 million.

In January 2010, the Company replaced its existingit facility with a new credit facility with tat borrowing capacity of $175.0
million. The new credit facility consisted of a $@5nillion four-year term loan,
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with principal amortization of 10%, 15%, 35% and#d@nnually, and a $140.0 million four-year revotyicredit line with an optional increase
of $50.0 million. In February 2011, the Companyreised this option, thereby increasing the totglacity of the credit facility to $225.0
million.

In November 2011, the Company replaced its existieglit facility with a new $300.0 million credidility. The new facility consists of
a $100.0 million five-year term loan, with annuahgipal amortization of 5%, 10%, 15%, 20% and 5@#tg a $200.0 million five-year
revolving credit line.

Borrowings under the credit facility are collatézal by substantially all of the Company’s asskiterest is payable at specified margins
above either the Eurodollar Margin or the PrimeeR@he interest rate varies dependent upon the eafunded debt to adjusted EBITDA and
ranges from Eurodollar Margin + 1.625% to 2.375%dme + 1.00% for the revolving credit line andrfr Eurodollar Margin + 2.00% to
2.75% or Prime + 1.00% for the term loan. AdjudERITDA is defined as net income less provisiontixes, depreciation expense,
amortization expense, stock-based compensatiomsgpeterest and other income (expense), andsitignicosts for business combinations.
The interest rate margins for the new facility @/#0% less than the commensurate margins und€dhmgany’s previous credit facility. The
revolving credit line requires an annual faciligefof 0.375% of the revolving credit line capacity.

To reduce the Company’s exposure to rising inteasts under the term loan, on February 24, 20E2Company entered into an interest
rate swap encompassing the principal balances slgtetb be outstanding as of January 1, 2014 asrédlfter, such principal amount totaling
$85.0 million on January 1, 2014 and amortizin$36.0 million on November 4, 2016. The interest wap effectively fixes the Eurodollar
Margin at 0.97%.

The credit facility expires in November 2016. Thedit facility agreement restricts the Company’sigtto raise additional debt
financing and pay dividends, and also requiresbmpany to comply with other nonfinancial covenahltsaddition, the Company is required
to maintain financial ratios computed as follows:

1. A minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1%dlculated as the ratio of: (i) trailing twelve ntlos of adjusted EBITDA to
(i) the sum of capital expenditures, net cashrggeexpense, cash taxes, cash dividends anadraiielve months payments of
indebtedness. Payment of unsecured indebtednessligled to the degree that sufficient unused kéwglcredit line exists such that the
relevant debt payment could be made from the cfadility.

2. A maximum funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratfBd., calculated as the ratio of: (i) the sum lbbaligations owed to lending
institutions, the face amount of any letters ofltiendebtedness owed in connection with acquisitelated notes and indebtedness o
in connection with capital lease obligations t9 ffiailing twelve months of adjusted EBITDA.

The Company was in compliance with the covenanthisfnew credit facility as of June 30, 2012.

Upfront arrangement fees incurred in connectiom wie credit facility totaled $1.5 million and wile deferred and amortized over the
remaining term of the arrangement. As of June B222$97.5 million was outstanding under the teseml There was no outstanding balance
under the revolving credit line.

As of June 30, 2011, $30.2 million was outstandinder the term loan under the previous creditifsgcihs of June 30, 2011, $66.6
million was outstanding under the revolving crdidi¢ of the previous credit facility. The Compangsin compliance with the covenants of its
previous credit facility as of June 30, 2011.
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Interest Rate Swa,

As discussed in the derivative instrument sectioNdtes 2, the Company entered into an interestswtp to reduce its exposure to the
financial impact of changing interest rates untietérm debt. The effective date of the swap islApr2012 with a maturity date of
November 4, 2016. At March 31, 2012, the Compardydmproximately $85.0 million of notional amountstanding in the swap agreem
that exchanges a variable interest rate base (Bllaodnargin) for a fixed interest rate of 0.97%eothe term of the agreement. This interest
rate swap is designated as a cash flow hedge dfitbrest rate risk attributable to forecastedalalg interest payments. The effective portio
the fair value gains or losses on this swap wilifmuded as a component of accumulated other celngmsive income (loss).

At June 30, 2012, the fair value of the interet# savap liability was $1.1 million, of which $0.6llon was classified in current accrued
liabilities and $0.5 million was classified as narment other liabilities, and the effective andffeetive portion of the interest rate swap was
$1.1 million and $8 thousand, respectively.

Debt Maturities
The maturities of debt as of June 30, 2012 weffeltswvs (in thousands):

Promissory

Credit

Year Ending June 30, Notes Facility
2013 $ 8,56¢ $ 7,50(
2014 3,36¢ 12,50(
2015 56C 17,50(
2016 50 20,00(
2017 — 40,00(
12,54 97,50(
Less: imputed interest and unamortized disco (328 (2,119
Less: current portio (8,415 (7,019
Noncurrent portion of del $ 3,79¢ $88,36¢

Letters of Credit

The Company has a $0.4 million letter of creditesgnent with a financial institution that is usedaliateral for fidelity bonds placed
with an insurance company and a $0.5 million letfecredit agreement with a financial institutidrat is used as collateral for the Company’s
corporate headquarters’ operating lease. The s$ettfecredit automatically renew annually withouteardment unless cancelled by the financial
institutions within 30 days of the annual expiratitate.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company leases office space and equipment motecancelable operating leases with various atipir dates through fiscal year
2018. Rent expense for fiscal years 2012, 20112840 was $3.4 million, $3.3 million and $3.1 mitliorespectively. The Company recogni
rent expense on a straight-line basis over thelpasod and accrues for rent expense incurreddtupaid.
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Future annual minimum lease payments under allaxocelable operating leases as of June 30, 2012agdmlows (in thousands):

Operating
Year Ending June 30, Leases
2013 $ 3,18¢
2014 3,251
2015 3,117
2016 3,06(
2017 2,69¢
Thereaftel 3,637

$18,947

The lease for the Company'’s previous corporate dugtiers located at 1051 Hillsdale Boulevard, RdSity, California expired in
October 2010. In February 2010, the Company entetech new lease agreement for office space ldcatt®50 Tower Lane, Foster City,
California. The term of the lease began on Novenb@010 and expires on October 31, 2018. The Cagnpas the option to extend the term
of the lease twice by one additional year. The figritase rent was abated for the first year ofi¢hse, is $0.1 million in the current lease year
and will be $0.2 million in the third year of thealse term. In the following years the monthly brase will increase approximately 3% annue

Guarantor Arrangements

The Company has agreements whereby it indemniBesfficers and directors for certain events oruptences while the officer or
director is, or was, serving at the Company’s ratjiresuch capacity. The term of the indemnificatperiod is for the officer or director’s
lifetime. The maximum potential amount of future/peents the Company could be required to make uthése indemnification agreements is
unlimited; however, the Company has a director @ffider insurance policy that limits its exposuredeenables the Company to recover a
portion of any future amounts paid under certainwnstances and subject to deductibles and exadsisks a result of its insurance policy
coverage, the Company believes the estimated diewof these indemnification agreements is noenedt Accordingly, the Company had no
liabilities recorded for these agreements as oé By 2012 and June 30, 2011.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Comgemy time to time enters into standard indemnifma provisions in its agreements
with its clients. Pursuant to these provisions,@loenpany may be obligated to indemnify its cligfotscertain losses suffered or incurred,
including losses arising from violations of apphbtalaw by the Company or by its third-party webgtiblishers, losses arising from actions or
omissions of the Company or its third party puldish and for third-party claims that a Company podnfringed upon any United States
patent, copyright or other intellectual properghtis. Where applicable, the Company generally $itd liabilities under such indemnities. W
respect to its DSS products, the Company also géyeeserves the right to resolve intellectualgandy infringements claims by providing a
non-infringing alternative or by obtaining a licensn reasonable terms, and failing that, by tertimigats relationship with the client and thus
terminating the infringing activity. Subject to #eelimitations, the term of such indemnity prowsias generally coterminous with the
corresponding agreements but in some cases suffeivasshort period of time after termination oé tagreement.

The potential amount of future payments to defewgsLlits or settle indemnified claims under thesemnification provisions is
generally limited and the Company believes thevestted fair value of these indemnity provisionsas material, and accordingly, the Comp
had no liabilities recorded for these agreements dsne 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Litigation

In September 2010, Lending Tree, LLC (“Lending T)dided a patent infringement lawsuit against Bempany in the United States
District Court for the Western District of North @¢ina, seeking a judgment that the Company haggegd a patent held by LendingTree, an
injunctive order against the alleged infringingiaties and an award for damages. If an injunctigre to be granted, it could force the
Company to stop or alter certain of its businesividies, such as its lead generation in certaientlverticals. On April 12, 2012, the Court held
a claim construction hearing and issued an ordestcoing certain disputed terms of the patent-it-3ine Company believes that it has
meritorious defenses against LendingTree’s claithere can be no assurance, however, that the Cogmghliprevail in this matter and any
adverse ruling may have a significant impact omitsiness and operating results. In addition, digas of the outcome of the matter, the
Company may incur significant legal fees defendhgaction until it is resolved. While the Compantends to vigorously defend its position,

neither the outcome of the litigation nor the antaumpotential range of exposure, if any, assodiatih the litigation can be assessed at this
time.

On August 12, 2011, the attorney general of Kentiggat a letter of inquiry to the Company regardimayketing services that the
Company provides to for-profit schools. The attgmgeneral of Alabama, Arizona, Delaware, Floridaho, lllinois, lowa, Massachusetts,
Minnesota, Nevada, North Carolina, Oregon, SoutlolB&, and Tennessee (the “States”) subsequenitigd Kentucky in the inquiry. The
marketing services at issue relate to the Compamglssites, such as www.gibill.com, www.armystudgigucom, and others, whose intended
audience comprises service members and veterahs bited States military. The attorneys genexptessed concerns that the websites
could mislead consumers into believing that thesiteb are affiliated with the government or that thatured schools are the only ones that
accept scholastic subsidies (such as through tt&ilpfrom service members and veterans and may tholate the consumer protection laws
of the respective States. On August 25, 2011, #natcky attorney general initiated a civil inveatige demand, requesting information about
the Company’s marketing, pricing structure, bussnegationships, and financial data with respe¢h#ofor-profit schools that appear on
www.gibill.com and similar websites. Other of thé States initiated identical civil investigativendends. On June 26, 2012, the Company
entered into an Assurance of Voluntary Compliargre@ment (the “Agreement”) with the attorneys gahdinder the Agreement, the
Company donated the URL “GIBill.com” to the Unit8thtes Department of Veterans Affairs. The Comsy agreed to pay a total of $2.5
million to the settling states to reimburse themtfe cost of the investigation and negotiatingcpss, and further agreed to provide expanded
disclosures on other military-oriented and educatilated websites. The Company believes it iosmmiance with the terms of the
Agreement.

11. Stock Benefit Plans
Stock-Based Compensation

In fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Compaogrded stock-based compensation expense of $18i0nmn$14.0 million, and $13.4
million, respectively, resulting in the recognitiofrelated excess tax benefits of $0.7 million3%nillion and $1.8 million, respectively. The
Company included as part of cash flows from finagactivities a gross benefit of tax deduction$@®2 million, $7.5 million and $1.9 million
in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivehated to stock-based compensation.

Stock Incentive Plans

In November 2009, the Company’s board of direcaolspted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “20idehtive Plan”) and the
Company'’s stockholders approved the 2010 Inceftlae in January 2010. The 2010 Incentive Plan becgffective upon the completion of
the IPO of the Company’s common stock in Febru&302 Awards granted after January 2008 but beferetioption of the 2010 Incentive
Plan continue to be
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governed by the terms of the 2008 Equity Incenfilan (the “2008 Plan”). All outstanding stock awsagtanted before January 2008 continue
to be governed by the terms of the Company’s antadd restated 1999 Equity Incentive Plan (the 91R&an”).

The 2010 Incentive Plan provides for the grannhokntive stock options (“ISOs”), nonstatutory stogkions (“NQSOs”)restricted stocl
restricted stock units, stock appreciation rightsformancebased stock awards and other forms of equity cosgigm, as well as for the grz
of performance cash awards. The Company may i§€&Qe bnly to its employees. NQSOs and all other dsvaray be granted to employees,
including officers, nonemployee directors and cdtasis.

To date, the Company has issued only ISOs, NQS@®semtricted stock units under the 2010 Incentilea ASOs and NQSOs are
generally granted to employees with an exerciseepgqual to the market price of the Company’s comstock at the date of grant. Stock
options granted to employees generally have a @ctuial term of seven years and vest over four y&fazentinuous service, with 25 percent of
the stock options vesting on the one-year anniveisithe date of grant and the remaining 75 pdreesting in equal monthly installments
over the three year period thereafter. Restrictecksunits granted to employees generally vest @iveryears of continuous service, with
15 percent of the restricted stock units vestingh@none-year anniversary of the date of granped@ent vesting in equal quarterly installments
over the following three years and the remaining@&cent vesting in equal quarterly installmentsrdte last year of the vesting period.

An aggregate of 4,905,132 shares of the Compary'nmon stock were reserved for issuance und&h@ Incentive Plan as of June
2012, and this amount will be increased by anytantting stock awards that expire or terminate fyr r@ason prior to their exercise or
settlement. The number of shares of the Comparmyiswon stock reserved for issuance may be incremsaablly through July 1, 2019 by up
to five percent of the total number of shares ef@ompany’s common stock outstanding on the lasbflthe preceding fiscal year. The
maximum number of shares that may be issued uhde2G10 Incentive Plan is 30,000,000. As of June&B@2, 3,793,174 shares were
available for issuance under the 2010 Incentive.Pla

In November 2009, the Company’s board of direcéolspted the 2010 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock AlRlian (the “Directors’
Plan”) and the stockholders approved the DirectBtah in January 2010. The Directors’ Plan becaffeetive upon the completion of the
Company’s IPO. The Directors’ Plan provides for #uitomatic grant of NQSOs to non-employee direcoi$ also provides for the
discretionary grant of restricted stock units. 8toptions granted to new non-employee directors wmesqual monthly installments over four
years; annual grants to existing directors vestgjnal monthly installments over one ye

An aggregate of 820,000 shares of the Company’srammstock were reserved for issuance under thefi® Plan as of June 30, 20
This amount may be increased annually, by the Su20®,000 shares and the aggregate number of sbbties Company’s common stock
subject to awards granted under the Directors’ Blaing the immediately preceding fiscal year. Adune 30, 2012, 550,000 shares were
available for issuance under the Directors’ Plan.

Valuation Assumptions

The Company estimates the fair value of stock optiwards at the date of grant using the Black-Sshoption-pricing model. Options
are granted with an exercise price equal to thevidue of the common stock as of the date of gfei Company calculates the weighted
average expected life of options using the singadifinethod pursuant to the accounting guidancenfanesbased payments as it does not have
sufficient historical exercise experience. Sinae @ompany’s does not have extensive trading histbeyCompany estimates the expected
volatility of its common stock based on the histativolatility of comparable public companies otte stock option’s expected term. The
Company has no history or expectation of payindy chgidends on its common stock. The risk-freer@sérate is based on the U.S. Treasury
yield for a term consistent with the expected tefrthe stock options
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The weighted average Bladcholes model assumptions and the weighted avgrage date fair value of employee stock optionfiscal
years 2012, 2011 and 2010 were as follc

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
Expected term (in years) 4.6 4.€ 4.6
Expected volatility 55% 54% 67%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 1.1% 1.7% 2.4%
Grant date fair valu $5.31 $7.81 $9.42

The fair value of restricted stock units is deteraal based on the closing price of the Company’sntomstock on the grant date.

Compensation expense is amortized net of estinfatézltures on a straight-line basis over the reijeiiservice period of the stock-based
compensation awards.

Stock Option Award Activit
The following table summarizes the stock option @lhetivity under the Plans from June 30, 2010uteeJ30, 2012:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Contractual Aggregate
Average Intrinsic
Exercise Life (in Value (in
Shares Price years) thousands)
Outstanding at June 30, 20 11,796,06 $ 9.7¢
Granted 691,60( 16.9¢
Exercisec (2,317,730 7.32
Forfeited (790,98¢) 12.0¢
Expired !30,412) 14.71
Outstanding at June 30, 20 9,348,53! $ 10.7¢ 4.51 $ 31,56¢
Granted 2,634,85! 11.3¢
Exercisec (525,99Y 8.9¢
Forfeited (1,120,22) 12.91
Expired (624,847) 12.7¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 9,712,311 $ 10.6: 4.0¢ $6,731,85
Vested and expect-to-vest at June 30, 20:1 8,850,32 $10.4¢ 3.9¢ $6,696,87!
Vested and exercisable at June 30, z 6,786,64! $ 9.8¢ 3.43 $6,642,47!

@ The expecte-to-vest options are the result of applying the-vesting forfeiture assumption to total outstandipgions.
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The following table summarizes the total intringédue, the cash received and the actual tax beofedit options exercised during fiscal
years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectiv

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010

Intrinsic value $1,197 $25,79¢ $8,001
Cash receive 4,697 16,967 1,64(C
Tax benefil 511 9,612 2,12¢

As of June 30, 2012, there was $16.2 million cdltoinrecognized compensation expense related tested stock options which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof 2.55 years.

Restricted Stock Unit Activity
The following table summarizes the restricted stack activity under the Plans from June 30, 2G10une 30, 2012:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Grant Contractual Life Intrinsic
Date Value
Shares Fair Value (in years) (in thousands
Outstanding at June 30, 2010 — $ — — $ —
Granted 453,62( 14.3:
Vested — —
Forfeited (48,860 14.6:
Outstanding at June 30, 20 404,76( $ 14.2¢ 2.1% $ 5,254
Granted 214,74¢ 11.37
Vested (99,477 10.9:
Forfeited (140,48) 13.6¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 379,55! $ 13.7¢ 1.98 $ 3,51t

As of June 30, 2012, there was $4.2 million ofltataecognized compensation expense related toatest stock units which is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average peri@®l6i years.

12. Stockholders’ Equity
Initial Public Offering of Common Stock

In February 2010, the Company completed its infiigtblic offering (“IPO”), whereby it sold 10,000,0@hares of common stock at a
price of $15.00 per share. The Company receive® $13illion net of offering costs of $13.3 millioln conjunction with the closing of the
IPO, all of the Company’s outstanding shares ofvedtible preferred stock automatically convertecaamne-for-one basis into
21,176,533 shares of common stock.

Stock Repurchases

On November 3, 2011, the Board of Directors auttestia stock repurchase program allowing the Compangpurchase up to $50.0
million of its outstanding shares of its commoncktol he repurchase program expires in November 2R&Rurchases under this program may
take place in the open market or in privately nisget!
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transactions and may be made under a Rule 10b&rnl Phere is no guarantee as to the exact numistraoés that will be repurchased by the
Company, and the Company may discontinue repurstetsany time. The amount authorized by the Compamard of directors excludes
broker commissions.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had repurchasedgnegate of 4,753,919 shares of its common stndkr this repurchase program
at a weighted average price of $9.47 per shara fotal of $45.0 million and the remaining amouwitable for the repurchase of the
Company’s common stock was $5.0 million, all of eihivas used for repurchases in July 2012.

The Company repurchased 79,800 shares of its adisgacommon stock at a total cost of $0.7 milléord an average cost of $8.96 per
share in fiscal year 2010. These shares were atabtor as treasury stock in fiscal year 2010.

Retirement of Treasury Stock

During the fiscal year ended 2012, the Companye@b,802,571 shares of treasury stock. Thesedesinares are now included in the
Company’s pool of authorized but unissued sharke.r€tired treasury stock was initially recordethgshe cost method and had a carrying
value of approximately $51.7 million at June 30120The Company’s accounting policy upon the forretitement of treasury stock is to
deduct its par value from common stock, reducetemdil paid-in capital by the amount recorded idiidnal paid-in capital when the stock
was originally issued and any remaining amount @sdaiction from retained earnings.

13. Related Party Transactions

Katrina Boydon, the sister of Bronwyn Syiek, then@@any’s President and Director, serves as the Coy'p&ice President of Content
and Compliance. In fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2BH) Boydon received a base salary of $214,0003 80 and $193,000 per year,
respectively, and a bonus payout of $60,000, $&9z01 $67,000, respectively. In fiscal years 2041?2010, Ms. Boydon was granted options
to purchase an aggregate of 40,000 shares andX&h@@es, respectively, of the Company’s commoekstds. Boydons fiscal year 2013 ba
salary is $220,000 per year, and she has a fiszal3013 target bonus of $80,000.

From March 2009 through January 2012, Rian Valéméi,son of Doug Valenti, the Company’s Chief ExteeuOfficer and Chairman,
served as a client strategy and development seraoager. In fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, ém Ralenti received a base salary of
$41,000, $62,000 and $54,000 per year, respectigaly a commission payout of $28,000, $32,000 &3090, respectively. In fiscal year
2012 and 2011, Mr. Rian Valenti was granted 1,25ricted stock units and 750 restricted stocksyunéspectively, of the Compasytommor
stock.

In fiscal year 2012, the Company’s president, BromByiek, informed QuinStreet that she desiredddt & company using her own
resources that would develop and offer websitegrsgtocal communities such as parent-teacher &tsmas and other locally-affiliated
groups. The Company had previously explored a amhilisiness opportunity and had concluded thabpipertunity was not consistent with its
business direction and did not address a suffigiémtge market to justify further investment. Acdimgly, the Company had discontinued its
investment in this business opportunity in fisoady2011. During the time that the Company coneiiéhis business opportunity and testec
market with a product offering, Ms. Syiek, withimetscope of her employment by QuinStreet, gaingdioeknow-how about the community-
based website business. In January 2012, Ms. Syprkposal to pursue the business opportunity dogeif was presented to the Company’s
Board of Directors for their consideration undex @ompany’s Related Person Transactions Policy Btitaed of Directors, with Mr. Valenti
and Ms. Syiek abstaining, concluded that Ms. Syigkbposal did not
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present a conflict of interest and directed manageno negotiate agreements to document the amagrge On August 23, 2012 the Company,
Ms. Syiek and TownB Corporation, a company founaed substantially owned by Ms. Syiek, entered atdgcense and Investment
Agreement pursuant to which QuinStreet provided MBwvith a license to Ms. Syiek’s community-basedsgite business know-how and
QuinStreet will receive a 15% ownership interestawnB, preemptive rights to maintain its ownersleigel and a right of first refusal in the
event that Ms. Syiek chooses to sell her shar@®anB should be sold. Other than the know-how togid/s. Syiek, no other Company
intellectual property has been licensed to TownB®er Syiek. The Company believes that both the khow licensed, and the minority
interest and associated rights in TownB that thengany will receive, have a nominal fair market \ealu

14. Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as componentseritarprise about which separate financial infororats available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision makerdecision making group, in deciding how to allocasources and in assessing performance.
The Company’s chief operating decision maker islitief executive officer. The Company’s chief extamiofficer reviews financial
information presented on a consolidated basis,rapaaied by information about operating segmentduding net sales and operating income
before depreciation, amortization and stock-basegpensation expense.

The Company determined its operating segments M8, which derives revenue from fees earned thindhg delivery of qualified
leads, clicks and, to a lesser extent, impressam$ DSS, which derives revenue from the salerettiselling services through a hosted
solution. The Company’s reportable and operatingreants consist of DMS and DSS. The accounting ieslicf the two reportable and
operating segments are the same as those desiriNede 2.

The Company evaluates the performance of its dpgraegments based on operating income before dapiom, amortization and stock-
based compensation expense.

The Company does not allocate all of its assetis alepreciation and amortization expense, st@dell compensation expense, interest
income, interest expense and income tax expensedment. Accordingly, the Company does not repar $nformation.

Summarized information by segment was as followghousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2012 2011 2010
Net revenue by segmel
DMS $369,02! $401,70¢ $333,09(
DSS 1,44¢ 1,31¢ 1,74¢
Total net revenu 370,46¢ 403,02: 334,83!
Segment operating income before depreciation, aratidn, and stock-based
compensation expens
DMS 71,84( 89,59( 70,42:
DSS 80¢ 721 95¢€
Total segment operating income before depreciatiomrtization, and stock-based
compensation expen: 72,64¢ 90,311 71,37¢
Depreciation and amortizatic (31,150 (27,272) (18,79
Stock-based compensation expel (12,996 (13,950 (13,37)
Total operating incom $ 28,50: $ 49,08¢ $ 39,211
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The following tables set forth net revenue and imgd assets by geographic area (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2012 2011 2010
Net revenue
United State: $369,08: $401,67: $334,13:
International 1,387 1,34¢ 704
Total net revenu $370,46¢ $403,02: $334,83!
June 30 June 30
2012 2011
Property and equipment, ni
United State: 8,49: $8,641
International 262 234
Total property and equipment, r $8,75¢ $8,87¢

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants occdunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Clgécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officeyaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of June@(®.2ZI'he term “disclosure controls and proceduras defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 nasraled (the “Exchange Act”), means controls anérgpinocedures of a company that are
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reportedwvitbitime periods specified in the SEC’s rules famohs. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controlsigrocedures designed to ensure that informatiguired to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchafgeis accumulated and communicated to the companginagement, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, as apprate to allow timely decisions regarding reqdidésclosure. Management recognizes that
any controls and procedures, no matter how weldesl and operated, can provide only reasonableasse of achieving their objectives and
management necessarily applies its judgment iruatialy the cost-benefit relationship of possibletonls and procedures. Based on the
evaluation of our disclosure controls and proceslaseof June 30, 2012, our Chief Executive Offaaaat Chief Financial Officer concluded
that, as of such date, our disclosure controlspaiadedures were effective at the reasonable asseitavel.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finarad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnagidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Ouerinél control over financial reporting is designegrovide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of consolidated financial statements faemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Our internal cdrtver financial reporting includes those polics®l procedures that:

() pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleetttansactions and dispositions of its
assets,
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(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactionsecorded as necessary to permit preparatioansolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteouating principles, and that receipts and expenekt are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of our managemeshténectors, and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prémeior timely detection of any unauthorized acdign, use or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on thealwlated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of internal control effectivenes$unire periods are subject to the risk that cdatneay become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliancélite policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management has assessed the effectivenegsiotémal control over financial reporting as ohd 30, 2012. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteriargebfothe Committee of Sponsoring OrganizationthefTreadway Commission (“COSQO”)
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Basedlts evaluation, our management has concludedthranternal control over financial
reporting was effective as of June 30, 2012.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@l reporting as of June 30, 2012 has been albitdPricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which appears in this anmapbrt on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control ovwsairicial reporting identified in connection with tixealuation required by Rule 13a-15
(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occudheddng the three months ended June 30, 2012 Hsatrfaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govarnce

The information required by this item concerningedtors is incorporated herein by reference froenstbctions to be titled “Election of
Class Il Directors” and “Board of Directors” in odefinitive proxy statement to be filed with thecsrities and Exchange Commission in
connection with our 2012 annual meeting of stoctbrd (the “Proxy Statement”). The Proxy Statemgetxpected to be filed no later than
120 days after the end of our fiscal year endee By 2012.

Information regarding executive officers requirgditem 401 of Regulation S-K is furnished in a sepadisclosure in Part | of this
report, under the caption “Executive Officers af fRegistrant,” because we will not furnish suclviinfation in our definitive proxy statement
prepared in accordance with Schedule 14A.

The information required by this item with respecSection 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorpatdterein by reference from the
section to be titled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Owsiep Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsBttat applies to all of our employees, officémsl(ding our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal aoanting officer or controller, or persons perforgisimilar functions), agents and representat
including directors and consultants. We will disgduture amendments to our Code of Business ComadcEthics, or waivers of such
provisions, applicable to any principal executiviicer, principal financial officer, principal acaating officer or controller, or persons
performing similar functions or our directorsvatw.quinstreet.com

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections to be titled “Report of then@a@nsation Committee”, “Board of
Directors” and “Executive Compensation” in our Br@tatement and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners @anagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections to be titled “Executive Comgation” and “Stock Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in owxrStatement and is incorporated herein by refaren

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsdairector Independence

The information required by this item will be indied in the section to be titled “Stock OwnershifCeftain Beneficial Owners and
Management” and “Board of Directors” in the Proxat®8ment and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be setth in the section to be titled “Ratification diet Selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as our Independent Registered Public Accourfing” in our Proxy Statement and is incorporateddn by reference.

93



Table of Contents

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) We have filed the following documents are jdthis Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiinm 58
Consolidated Balance She: 59
Consolidated Statements of Operati 60
Consolidated Statements of Convertible PreferrediStStockholder’ Equity and Comprehensive Incor 61
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl 62
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 63
2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedule is filsla part of this report:
Schedule I1: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivables anésaéturns (in thousands):
Balance at Charged tc
the expenses/ Write-offs Balance a
beginning of against the Net of the end ol
the year revenue Receivable the year
Fiscal year 2010 $ 3,50¢ $ 268 $ (1,019 $ 2,75¢
Fiscal year 201 $ 2,75¢ $ 1,15¢ $ (1,199 $ 2,72¢
Fiscal year 201 $ 2,728 $ 2,18t $ (2,109 $ 2,807

Note: Additions to the allowance for doubtful acotsiare charged to expense. Additions to the ataedor sales credits are charged
against revenue.

All other schedules are omitted because they areegaired or the required information is shownha financial statements or notes
thereto.
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(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No.

2.10

3.10
3.20
4.1
4.20

10.1®+
10.2® +

10.3W+
10.40 +
10.5@ +
10.6@ +

10.7@+
10.8*+

10.9%+

10.1013)+
10.11a4+

10.1215+

10.13an+
10.1412+
10.15@

10.16* +
10.17®)

Description of Exhibit

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 5, 2@1énd among QuinStreet, Inc., Car Insurance.com, @ar
Insurance Agency, Inc., Car Insurance Holdings., IBarinsurance.com, Inc., Lloyd Register 1V, Lidgdgister IIl, David
Fitzgerald, Timothy Register, Randy Horowitz anitkEiPace

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat
Amended and Restated Bylav
Form of QuinStreet, In's Common Stock Certificat

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agmeteime and between QuinStreet, Inc., Douglas Vakemd the
investors listed on Schedule 1 thereto, dated Mgy2Q03.

QuinStreet, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive PI.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notinder 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-executifécer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notinder 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive c#fs).
Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for r-employee directors
QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive PI.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-execubifecer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive a#fis).

Forms of Senior Management Restricted Stock UrilfRGrant Notice and Agreement under 2010 Equitgihtive Plan
(for executive officers)

Forms of Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Grant Notioel &greement under 2010 Equity Incentive Plan ffmn-executive
officer employees)

QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 N-Employee Director Stock Award Plan

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notmelfitial Grants under the 2010 Non-Employee Dives Stock
Award Plan.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant NotmeAnnual Grants under the 2010 MEmployee Director Stock
Award Plan.

Form of Incremental Bonus Ple
Annual Incentive Plar

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit ant Tean Agreement, by and among QuinStreet, Ihe.Jénder:
thereto and Comerica Bank as Administrative Agesie $ead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, Bank of AozeN.A. as
Syndication Agent, and Union Bank, N.A. as Docuragah Agent dated as of November 4, 2C

Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and betw®uinStreet, Inc. and each of its directors amtt@tive officers

Office Lease Metro Center, dated as of Februar204(, between the registrant and CA-Metro Centmited
Partnership
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.180) Assurance of Voluntary Compliance dated June 2622y and among QuinStreet, Inc. and the Attorig@gseral of the
States of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Delawarerdido Idaho, lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Massachusgehlississippi,
Missouri, Nevada, New York, North Carolina, Ohiae@on, South Carolina, Tennessee and West Vir¢
10.19* License and Investment Agreement by and among QeeatsInc., Bronwyn Syiek and TownB CorporatiotedbAugust 23
2012.
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
24.1* Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference togigmature page of this Annual Report on Forr-K).
31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Q8treet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Saxi-Oxley Act.
31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of qutreet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sax{-Oxley Act.
32.1* Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive ©ii and Chief Financial Office
101.INS** XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunh
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

*

*%

=+
(Y]

(@)

®

Q)

®)

(6)

™

®)

©)

Filed herewith
Furnished herewitt
Indicates management contract or compensatory

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Registration Statementonm S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on November 19, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Reagibn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, In’'s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on F£-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Qtie&, Inc’'s Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on F£-1 (SEC File
No. 33:-163228) filed on January 26, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia8t, Inc.’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q (SE@MRilo. 001-34628) filed on May 12,
2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to QuieStr Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statetnoa Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to QuieStr Inc’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on F¥-1 (SEC File No. 33-
163228) filed on December 22, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Current Report on Forrf 8EC File No. 001-34628) filed
on November 8, 201.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia8t, Inc.’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q (SE@Mlo. 001-34628) filed on
November 8, 2011
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(10)

(11

(12

(13)

14

(15)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia8t, Inc’s Current Report on Forn-K (SEC File No. 00-34628) filed on June 2’
2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Quie&, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (SEC Hile. 001-34628) filed on August
30, 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Quie&, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statat on Form S-1 (SEC File No.
33:-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Quia8t, Inc’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fg-1 (SEC File No
33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Quia8t, Inc’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fg-1 (SEC File No
33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20t

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Qtie&, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stagat on Form S-1 (SEC File No.
33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20t
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredolp authorized, on August 23, 2012.

QuinStreet, Inc
By: /s/ Douglas Valeni

Douglas Valenti
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears belastittbes and appoints Douglas
Valenti and Kenneth Hahn, and each of them, atridsand lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, iithpower of substitution and re-
substitution, for him in any and all capacitiessign any and all amendments to this Annual Remoform 10-K and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto, and other documents in connedtierewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comimishereby ratifying and confirming
that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agenthjsosubstitute or substitutes, may lawfully do auge to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Douglas Valent Chairman of the Board and Ch August 23, 201:
Douglas Valent Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Kenneth Hah Chief Financial Officer (Principe August 23, 201:
Kenneth Hahn Financial Officer and Principal Accounting

Officer) and Chief Operating Offict

/s/ Bronwyn Syiel President and Directt August 23, 201!
Bronwyn Syiek

/s/ William Bradley Director August 23, 201!
William Bradley

/s/ John G. McDonal Director August 23, 201!
John G. McDonalt

/s| Gregory Sanc Director August 23, 201!
Gregory Sand

/s| James Simor Director August 23, 201!
James Simon

/s/ Glenn Solomo Director August 23, 201!
Glenn Solomot

/s/ Dana Stalder Director August 23, 2012
Dana Stalde
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Exhibit
No.

2.10

3.10
3.20
4.1
4.20

10.1®+
10.2® +

10.3W+
10.40 +
10.5@ +
10.6@ +

10.7@+
10.8*+

10.9%+

10.1013)+
10.11a4+

10.1215+

10.13an+
10.1412+
10.15@

10.16* +
10.17®)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibit

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 5, 2@1énd among QuinStreet, Inc., Car Insurance.com, @ar
Insurance Agency, Inc., Car Insurance Holdings., IBarinsurance.com, Inc., Lloyd Register 1V, Lidgdgister IIl, David
Fitzgerald, Timothy Register, Randy Horowitz anitkEiPace

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat
Amended and Restated Bylav
Form of QuinStreet, In's Common Stock Certificat

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agmeteime and between QuinStreet, Inc., Douglas Vakemd the
investors listed on Schedule 1 thereto, dated Mgy2Q03.

QuinStreet, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive PI.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notinder 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-executifécer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notinder 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive c#fs).
Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for r-employee directors
QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive PI.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-execubifecer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive a#fis).

Forms of Senior Management Restricted Stock UrilfRGrant Notice and Agreement under 2010 Equitgihtive Plan
(for executive officers)

Forms of Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Grant Notioel &greement under 2010 Equity Incentive Plan ffmn-executive
officer employees)

QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 N-Employee Director Stock Award Plan

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notmelfitial Grants under the 2010 Non-Employee Dives Stock
Award Plan.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant NotmeAnnual Grants under the 2010 MEmployee Director Stock
Award Plan.

Form of Incremental Bonus Ple
Annual Incentive Plar

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit ant Tean Agreement, by and among QuinStreet, Ihe.Jénder:
thereto and Comerica Bank as Administrative Agesie $ead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, Bank of AozeN.A. as
Syndication Agent, and Union Bank, N.A. as Docuragah Agent dated as of November 4, 2C

Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and betw®uinStreet, Inc. and each of its directors amtt@tive officers

Office Lease Metro Center, dated as of Februar204(, between the registrant and CA-Metro Centmited
Partnership
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.180) Assurance of Voluntary Compliance dated June 2622y and among QuinStreet, Inc. and the Attorig@gseral of the
States of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Delawarerdido Idaho, lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Massachusgehlississippi,
Missouri, Nevada, New York, North Carolina, Ohiae@on, South Carolina, Tennessee and West Vir¢
10.19* License and Investment Agreement by and among QeeatsInc., Bronwyn Syiek and TownB CorporatiotedbAugust 23
2012.
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
24.1* Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference togigmature page of this Annual Report on Forr-K).
31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Q8treet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Saxi-Oxley Act.
31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of qutreet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sax{-Oxley Act.
32.1* Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive ©ii and Chief Financial Office
101.INS** XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunh
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

*

*%

=+
(Y]

(@)

®

Q)

®)

(6)

™

®)

©)

Filed herewith
Furnished herewitt
Indicates management contract or compensatory

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Registration Statementonm S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on November 19, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Reagibn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, In’'s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on F£-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Qtie&, Inc’'s Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on F£-1 (SEC File
No. 33:-163228) filed on January 26, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia8t, Inc.’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q (SE@MRilo. 001-34628) filed on May 12,
2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to QuieStr Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statetnoa Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to QuieStr Inc’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on F¥-1 (SEC File No. 33-
163228) filed on December 22, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the same numberediexbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Current Report on Forrf 8EC File No. 001-34628) filed
on November 8, 201.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia8t, Inc.’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q (SE@Mlo. 001-34628) filed on
November 8, 2011
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Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia8t, Inc’s Current Report on Forn-K (SEC File No. 00-34628) filed on June 2’
2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Quie&, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (SEC Hile. 001-34628) filed on August
30, 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Quie&, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statat on Form S-1 (SEC File No.
33:-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Quia8t, Inc’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fg-1 (SEC File No
33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Quia8t, Inc’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fg-1 (SEC File No
33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20t

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Qtie&, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stagat on Form S-1 (SEC File No.
33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20t
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Exhibit 10.8

Q UIN STREET , I NC..
SENIOR M ANAGEMENT R ESTRICTED STOCK U NIT (RSU) GRANT N OTICE
2010 EQUITY | NCENTIVE P LAN

QuinStreet, Inc. (the Company”), pursuant to its 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (thelan "), hereby grants to you as the Participant named
below a Restricted Stock Unit Award with respectite number of shares of the Company’s Common Stetforth below. This Restricted
Stock Unit Award is subject to all of the terms anwhditions as set forth herein, in the Restri@éatk Unit Agreement, the Plan and the Plan
Prospectus, all of which are attached hereto armjporated herein in their entirety.

Participant:

Date of Grant:

Vesting Commencement Da

No. of Shares Subject to Awal

Vesting Schedule:  Subject to accelerated vesting under specifiedigistances as provided in the Restricted Stock &hdtthe Plan, th
Restricted Stock Unit Award shall become vesteidistallments over four years as follov

. 25% of the Restricted Stock Unit Award will vest thee first anniversary of the Vesting Commencenizate;
and

. 6.25% of the Restricted Stock Unit Award will vesiarterly thereafter for the next 12 quart

No Monetary Payment Required. You are not required to make any monetary payitegher than applicable Tax Obligations (as defiime
the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement)) as a conditioreceiving the Restricted Stock Unit Award bares of Common Stock issued upon
vesting and settlement of the Restricted Stock Bwiard.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgements:The Participant acknowledges receipt of, and undeds and agrees to, this Restricted Stock Unit
(RSU) Grant Notice, the Restricted Stock Unit Agneat, the Plan Prospectus, and the Plan. Participeher acknowledges that as of the
Date of Grant, this Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) i@ndotice, the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, Rfteen Prospectus, and the Plan set forth
the entire understanding between Participant aacCthmpany regarding this Award.

A TTACHMENTS : Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, 201@QiBgincentive Plan, 2010 Equity Incentive Plan $prectus



Q UIN STREET , I NC.
2010 EQUITY | NCENTIVE P LAN

R ESTRICTED STOCK U NIT A GREEMENT
(SENIOR M ANAGEMENT )

Pursuant to the Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Graotidé (“ Grant Notice”) and this Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement (this ‘Agreement’), QuinStreet, Inc. (the Company’) has granted you a Restricted Stock Unit Award
under its 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (thBlan ") representing the right to receive the numbestadres of the
Company’s Common Stock indicated in the Grant Motino the terms and conditions set forth hereiniatide Grant
Notice. Defined terms not explicitly defined inghAgreement but defined in the Plan shall havesgime definitions &
in the Plan.

The details of your Restricted Stock Unit Award asefollows:

1. VESTING. Subject to the limitations contained herein dr&gotential vesting acceleration provisions
forth in Section 9 hereof, your Restricted StocktWward will vest as provided in your Grant Notjggovided that
vesting will cease upon the termination of your @arous Service. Immediately upon termination ofiy@ontinuous
Service for any reason, any unvested portion oRégtricted Stock Unit Award shall be forfeitedvatit consideratio

2. CONVERSION | NTO SHARES . Shares of Common Stock will be issued on thdiegble vesting date
(or, to the extent not administratively feasible saon as practicable thereafter). As a condibasuth issuance, you
shall have satisfied your Tax Obligations as sjetiin this Agreement and shall have completediesigand returned
any documents and taken any additional actionthtea€Company deems appropriate to enable it to gglisimthe
delivery of such shares. In no event will the Comphle obligated to issue a fractional share.

3. TAX T REATMENT .

(@) Regardless of any actions taken by the Cagnpeou will be ultimately responsible for any
withholding tax liabilities, whether as a resultfefleral, state or other law and whether for thgrent and
satisfaction of any income tax, social security, fzayroll tax, or payment on account of other &lated to
withholding obligations that arise by reason of Restricted Stock Unit Award, incurred in connectwith the
Restricted Stock Unit Award becoming vested and @om Stock being issued, or otherwise incurred in
connection with the Restricted Stock Unit Awardli@ctively, “ Tax Obligations”).

(b) Unless otherwise determined by the Companigisole discretion, and subject to applicable la
the Company shall require you to satisfy the Takdgakions (as defined below) by the Company dedggcti
from the shares of Common Stock otherwise deliMeretbyou in settlement of applicable portion of th
Restricted Stock Unit Award on the vesting dateiaber of whole shares having a fair market valge (a
determined by the Company) as of the date on whieTax Obligations arise not



excess of the amount of such Tax Obligations detednby the applicable minimum statutory withhofglin
rates. The Company may in its sole discretion peyou to elect an alternative method of satisfyogr Tax
Obligations with notice to the Company, which magiude the following if specified by the Companydahe
Company may with notice to you require any of thiofving methods): (i) by payment by you to the Gmany
in cash or by check an amount equal to the miniraomount of taxes that the Company concludes itgaired
to withhold under applicable law; or (ii) by thdeséy you of a number of shares of Common Stockadha
issued on the applicable vesting date under th&iBesl Stock Unit Award, which the Company deteres is
sufficient to generate an amount that meets theQlagations plus additional shares to accountdanding
and market fluctuations, and payment of such takiwlding to the Company, and such shares mayldeaso
part of a block trade with other Participants. Yaueby authorize the Company to withhold such tax
withholding amount from any amounts owing to youhte Company and to take any action necessary in
accordance with this paragraph.

(c) The Restricted Stock Unit Award is intendedjualify for the short-term deferral exception to
Section 409A of the Code described in the regulatiromulgated thereunder, and therefore shares of
Common Stock will be issued within2 2 / months after taxable year in which the applicable portibthe
Restricted Stock Unit Award is no longer subjecateubstantial risk of forfeiture.

4. SECURITIES L AW C OMPLIANCE . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary conéal herein, the
Company shall not be obligated to deliver any Comi@tock during any period when the Company detegmihat the
conversion of any portion of the Restricted StocktAward or the delivery of shares hereunder waiddate any
federal, state or other applicable laws and/or restye shares subject to any restrictive legendsdbaletermined by
the Company’s counsel, is necessary to comply satturities or other regulatory requirements.

5. RESTRICTIONS ON T RANSFER OF A WARDS . You understand and agree that the Restricteck&init
Award may not be sold, given, transferred, assigpktiged or otherwise hypothecated.

6. CAPITALIZATION A DJUSTMENTS. The number of shares of Common Stock subjegbtn Restricted
Stock Unit Award may be adjusted from time to tifmeCapitalization Adjustments.

7. NO STOCKHOLDER R IGHTS . You will have no voting or other rights as tbempany’s other
stockholders with respect to the shares of ComntockSunderlying the Restricted Stock Unit Awardilissuance of
such shares.

8. DIVIDEND E QUIVALENT U NITS. Unless otherwise determined by the Compens&amnmittee of the
Company’s Board of Directors in its sole discretigou shall not have any rights to dividends oidbwnd equivalents
in the event that the Company pays a cash divitehadlders of Common Stock generally.

RSU Award Agt- Sr Mgmt 3 Last Updated: July 27, 20



9. INVOLUNTARY T ERMINATION F OLLOWING A C HANGE | N C ONTROL .

(@) If aChange in Control occurs and as ofyithin six months after, the effective time of such
Change in Control your Continuous Service termigaige to an involuntary termination (not includoleath o
Disability) without Cause or due to a voluntarymé@ration which is a Resignation for Good Reasordé&imed
below), then, as of the date of termination of @ardus Service, twenty-five percent (25%) of thetipo of
your Restricted Stock Unit Award subject to vestihgt is unvested on the effective date of suahiteation
will vest immediately upon such termination and tlested shares, less shares withheld for taxelshavil
promptly released to you.

(b) *“Resignation for Good Reaschmeans that you voluntarily terminate employmeéigraany of
the following are undertaken without your expressten consent:

() the assignment to you of any duties or resfalities that results in a significant
diminution in your employment role in the Compamyimeffect immediately prior to the effective date
of the Change in Contrgirovided, howevethat mere changes in your title or reporting relaghips
alone shall not constitute a basis for Resigndtoitood Reason;

(i) agreater than five percent (5%) aggregatikiction by the Company in your annual base
salary, as in effect on the effective date of theui@e in Control or as increased thereafimyided,
howeverthat if there are across-the-board proportiondtagaeductions for all officers, management-
level and other salaried employees due to the ¢iaanondition of the Company, a greater than ten
percent (10%) aggregate reduction by the Compaggun annual base salary will be required;

(i) any failure by the Company to continuegfifect any benefit plan or program, including
fringe benefits, incentive plans and plans witlpees to the receipt of securities of the Compamy, i
which you are participating immediately prior t@ thffective date of the Change in Control (hereeraf
referred to as “Benefit Plans”), or the taking ofaction by the Company that would adversely affec
your participation in or reduce your benefits untiher Benefit Plangrovided, howeverthat a basis for
Resignation for Good Reason shall not exist untiisrdlause (c) following a Change in Control if the
Company offers a range of benefit plans and progrtat, taken as a whole, is comparable to the
Benefit Plans; or

(iv) anon-temporary relocation of your businefige to a location more than fifty (50) miles
from the location at which you perform duties ashaf effective date of the Change in Control, ekcep
for required travel by you on the Company'’s bussitesan extent substantially consistent with your
business travel obligations prior to the Chang€antrol.

RSU Award Agt- Sr Mgmt 4 Last Updated: July 27, 20



(c) If any payment or benefit you would receptesuant to a Change in Control from the Company o
otherwise (“Payment’) would (i) constitute a “parachute payment” witthe meaning of Section 280G of the
Code, and (ii) but for this sentence, be subjethé¢ocexcise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the (tiae"
Excise Tax’), then such Payment shall be equal to the RedAceount. The “Reduced Amount” shall be
either (x) the largest portion of the Payment thatild result in no portion of the Payment beingjeatto the
Excise Tax or (y) the largest portion, up to anduding the total, of the Payment, whichever ampafier
taking into account all applicable federal, statd bocal employment taxes, income taxes, and tlesEX ax
(all computed at the highest applicable margint)raesults in your receipt, on an aftax-basis, of the great
amount of the Payment notwithstanding that allaans portion of the Payment may be subject to thedex
Tax. If a reduction in payments or benefits constig “parachute payments” is necessary so thaP#yment
eqguals the Reduced Amount, reduction shall occthi@rfollowing order: reduction of cash payments;
cancellation of accelerated vesting of Stock Awardduction of employee benefits. In the event that
acceleration of vesting of Stock Award compensaisai be reduced, such acceleration of vestint bha
cancelled in the reverse order of the date of gragour Stock Awards i(e., earliest granted Stock Award
cancelled last).

The accounting firm engaged by the Company for gdraidit purposes as of the day prior to the éffedate
of the Change in Control shall perform the foregosalculations. If the accounting firm so engaggdhe Company is
serving as accountant or auditor for the individeality or group effecting the Change in Conttioé Company shall
appoint a nationally recognized accounting firnmtake the determinations required hereunder. Thepaagnshall be:
all expenses with respect to the determinationsuay accounting firm required to be made hereunder.

The accounting firm engaged to make the deternunathereunder shall provide its calculations, togetvith
detailed supporting documentation, to you and tbe@any within fifteen (15) calendar days afterdla¢e on which
your right to a Payment is triggered (if requesdethat time by you or the Company) or such otimee t&as requested by
you or the Company. If the accounting firm deteresithat no Excise Tax is payable with respectRayament, either
before or after the application of the Reduced Amipia shall furnish you and the Company with amam reasonably
acceptable to you that no Excise Tax will be imploséh respect to such Payment. Any good faith meitgations of
the accounting firm made hereunder shall be fimiakling and conclusive upon you and the Company.

10. AWARD NOT A SERVICE C ONTRACT . Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is not an eayphent or
service contract, and nothing in your RestricteatEUnit Award shall be deemed to create in any whgitsoever any
obligation on your part to continue in the empldyhee Company or an Affiliate, or of the Companyaor Affiliate to
continue your employment. In addition, nothing ouy Restricted Stock Unit Award shall obligate @@mpany or an
Affiliate, their respective stockholders, Boarddifectors, Officers or Employees to continue aglationship that you
might have as a Director or Consultant for the Canypor an Affiliate.

11. NOTICES . Any notices provided for in your Restricted it Award or the Plan shall be given in
writing and shall be deemed effectively given upeceipt or, in the case of notices delivered byl mathe Company
to you, five (5) days after deposit in the Unitadt&s mail, postage prepaid, addressed to yowe dashaddress you
provided to the Company.

RSU Award Agt— Sr Mgmt 5 Last Updated: July 27, 20



12. GOVERNING P LAN D OCUMENT . Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is subjecttbthe provisions of
the Plan, the provisions of which are hereby maparaof your Restricted Stock Unit Award, andustifier subject to
all interpretations, amendments, rules and reguiatiwhich may from time to time be promulgated addpted

pursuant to the Plan. In the event of any confletiveen the provisions of your Restricted Stockt Bmiard and those
of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall calntr

RSU Award Agt— Sr Mgmt 6 Last Updated: July 27, 20



Exhibit 10.9

Q UIN STREET , I NC..
R ESTRICTED STOCK U NIT (RSU) GRANT N OTICE
2010 EQUITY | NCENTIVE P LAN

QuinStreet, Inc. (the Company”), pursuant to its 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (thelan "), hereby grants to you as the Participant named
below a Restricted Stock Unit Award with respectite number of shares of the Company’s Common Stetforth below. This Restricted
Stock Unit Award is subject to all of the terms anwhditions as set forth herein, in the Restri@éatk Unit Agreement, the Plan and the Plan
Prospectus, all of which are attached hereto armjporated herein in their entirety.

Participant:

Date of Grant:

Vesting Commencement Da

No. of Shares Subject to Awal

Vesting Schedule The Restricted Stock Unit Award shall beeovested in installments over four years as fatow

. 25% of the Restricted Stock Unit Award will vest thie first anniversary of the Vesting Commencen
Date; anc

. 6.25% of the Restricted Stock Unit Award will vesiarterly thereafter for the next 12 quart

No Monetary Payment Required. You are not required to make any monetary payitegher than applicable Tax Obligations (as defiime
the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement)) as a conditioreceiving the Restricted Stock Unit Award bares of Common Stock issued upon
vesting and settlement of the Restricted Stock Bwiard.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgements:The Participant acknowledges receipt of, and undeds and agrees to, this Restricted Stock Unit
(RSU) Grant Notice, the Restricted Stock Unit Agneat, the Plan Prospectus, and the Plan. Participeher acknowledges that as of the
Date of Grant, this Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) i@ndotice, the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, Rfteen Prospectus, and the Plan set forth
the entire understanding between Participant amcCthmpany regarding this Award.

A TTACHMENTS : Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, 2010iBglincentive Plan, 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Rrastus



Q UIN STREET , I NC.
2010 EQUITY | NCENTIVE P LAN

R ESTRICTED STOCK U NIT A GREEMENT

Pursuant to the Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Gramtidé (“ Grant Notice”) and this Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement (this ‘Agreement’), QuinStreet, Inc. (the Company’) has granted you a Restricted Stock Unit Award
under its 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (thBlan ") representing the right to receive the numbestadres of the
Company’s Common Stock indicated in the Grant Motin the terms and conditions set forth hereiniatide Grant
Notice. Defined terms not explicitly defined inghAgreement but defined in the Plan shall havesgime definitions &
in the Plan.

The details of your Restricted Stock Unit Award asgfollows:

1. VESTING. Subject to the limitations contained hereiryryBestricted Stock Unit Award will vest as
provided in your Grant Notice, provided that vegtwill cease upon the termination of your Continsi@ervice.
Immediately upon termination of your Continuous\v&= for any reason, any unvested portion of thetfR@ed Stock
Unit Award shall be forfeited without consideration

2. C ONVERSION | NTO SHARES . Shares of Common Stock will be issued on thiegble vesting date
(or, to the extent not administratively feasible saon as practicable thereafter). As a condibasuth issuance, you
shall have satisfied your Tax Obligations as sjetiin this Agreement and shall have completediesigand returned
any documents and taken any additional actionttee€Company deems appropriate to enable it to golisimthe
delivery of such shares. In no event will the Comphle obligated to issue a fractional share.

3. TAX T REATMENT .

(@) Regardless of any actions taken by the Cagnpeou will be ultimately responsible for any
withholding tax liabilities, whether as a resultfefleral, state or other law and whether for thgrent and
satisfaction of any income tax, social security, fayroll tax, or payment on account of other &lated to
withholding obligations that arise by reason of Restricted Stock Unit Award, incurred in connectwith the
Restricted Stock Unit Award becoming vested and @om Stock being issued, or otherwise incurred in
connection with the Restricted Stock Unit Awardligctively, “ Tax Obligations”).

(b) Unless otherwise determined by the Companisisole discretion, and subject to applicable la
the Company shall require you to satisfy the Takdgakions (as defined below) by the Company dedggcti
from the shares of Common Stock otherwise deliverttbyou in settlement of applicable portion o th
Restricted Stock Unit Award on the vesting dateiaber of whole shares having a fair market valge (a
determined by the Company) as of the date on whieTax Obligations arise not in excess of the arhoti
such Tax Obligations determined by the applicahl@mum



statutory withholding rates. The Company may irsdke discretion permit you to elect an alternathethod o
satisfying your Tax Obligations with notice to tBempany, which may include the following if speediby
the Company (and the Company may with notice torgouire any of the following methods): (i) by pagmt
by you to the Company in cash or by check an amegual to the minimum amount of taxes that the Gamyg
concludes it is required to withhold under applledaw; or (ii) by the sale by you of a number bages of
Common Stock that are issued on the applicabléngedate under the Restricted Stock Unit Award,chitthe
Company determines is sufficient to generate anuatnihat meets the Tax Obligations plus additi@halres t
account for rounding and market fluctuations, aagnpent of such tax withholding to the Company, sinch
shares may be sold as part of a block trade witbrd®articipants. You hereby authorize the Company
withhold such tax withholding amount from any amisuowing to you to the Company and to take anyoacti
necessary in accordance with this paragraph.

(c) The Restricted Stock Unit Award is intendedjualify for the short-term deferral exception to
Section 409A of the Code described in the regulatipromulgated thereunder, and therefore shares of
Common Stock will be issued within2 2 / months after taxable year in which the applicable portibthe
Restricted Stock Unit Award is no longer subjecateubstantial risk of forfeiture.

4. SECURITIES L Aw C OMPLIANCE . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary conéai herein, the
Company shall not be obligated to deliver any Comi@tock during any period when the Company detezmithat the
conversion of any portion of the Restricted StocktAward or the delivery of shares hereunder waiddate any
federal, state or other applicable laws and/or restye shares subject to any restrictive legendsdbaletermined by
the Company’s counsel, is necessary to comply sétturities or other regulatory requirements.

5. R ESTRICTIONS ON T RANSFER OF A WARDS . You understand and agree that the RestricieckSinit
Award may not be sold, given, transferred, assigpktiged or otherwise hypothecated.

6. C APITALIZATION A DJUSTMENTS. The number of shares of Common Stock subjegbtw Restricted
Stock Unit Award may be adjusted from time to tifmeCapitalization Adjustments.

7. N OSTOCKHOLDER R IGHTS . You will have no voting or other rights as then@pany’s other
stockholders with respect to the shares of ComntockSunderlying the Restricted Stock Unit Awardilissuance of
such shares.

8. DIVIDEND E QUIVALENT U NITS . Unless otherwise determined by the Compens&anmittee of the
Company’s Board of Directors in its sole discretipou shall not have any rights to dividends oidbnd equivalents
in the event that the Company pays a cash dividehadlders of Common Stock generally.

9. A WARD NOT A SERVICE C ONTRACT . Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is not an eayphent or
service contract, and nothing in your RestricteatEUnit Award shall be

3



deemed to create in any way whatsoever any oldigatn your part to continue in the employ of ther(pany or an
Affiliate, or of the Company or an Affiliate to conue your employment. In addition, nothing in y&estricted Stock
Unit Award shall obligate the Company or an Affieatheir respective stockholders, Boards of Does;tOfficers or
Employees to continue any relationship that youhiigave as a Director or Consultant for the Compargn Affiliate.

10. N OTICES . Any notices provided for in your Restricted Staéhit Award or the Plan shall be given in
writing and shall be deemed effectively given upeceipt or, in the case of notices delivered byl imathe Company
to you, five (5) days after deposit in the Unitddt&s mail, postage prepaid, addressed to yowe dashaddress you
provided to the Company.

11. G OVERNING PLAN D OCUMENT . Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is subjecatbthe provisions of
the Plan, the provisions of which are hereby maparaof your Restricted Stock Unit Award, andustifier subject to
all interpretations, amendments, rules and reguiatiwhich may from time to time be promulgated addpted
pursuant to the Plan. In the event of any confletiveen the provisions of your Restricted Stockt Bmiard and those
of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall calntr



Exhibit 10.18
LICENSE AND INVESTMENT AGREEMENT

This License and Investment Agreement (tihegg¥eement”) dated as of the last date signed as set fortthersignature page hereto (
Effective Date”) between QuinStreet, Inc., a Delaware corporaffoQuinStreet "), TownB Corporation, a Delaware corporationf@wnB ")
and Bronwyn Syiek (Ms. Syiek”) (each a “Party " and collectively the ‘Parties”).

WHEREAS, QuinStreet owns findsmithGROUPS-8G "), a technology that web-enables online commusiftee “FSG Business);

WHEREAS, TownB desires to obtain and QuinStreetdtased to grant to TownB a license to the Know-Hasvdefined below) for use
by TownB in its current and future businesses priljnén the field of online communities (collectilye” TownB’s Business’); and

WHEREAS, Bronwyn Syiek, QuinStreet's President amdember of QuinStreet’s board of directors, isiagpal of TownB and has
disclosed her interest in TownB and its BusinesQumStreet.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideratinaluding the mutual promises set forth hereiing, receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, tei€s agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
D EFINITIONS

Section 1.01Certain Definitions The following terms, as used herein, have thiefiohg meanings:

“ Confidential Information ” means any non-public, confidential or proprietarformation relating to a disclosing party, whetbe not
technical in nature, including any information tisatlesignated by the disclosing party as Confidehtformation at the time of its disclosure,
either by a written or visual confidentiality des#ion, or orally. Notwithstanding the foregoingztnfidential Information ” does not includ
information, technical data or know-how which:i§)in the public domain at the time of disclosurdbecomes available thereafter to the public
without restriction, and in either case not assalteof the act or omission of the receiving pafty;is rightfully obtained by the receiving party
from a third party without restriction as to disslwe; (iii) is lawfully in the possession of thee@ving party at the time of disclosure by the
disclosing party and not otherwise subject to ret&tn on disclosure; (iv) is approved for disclosiy prior written authorization of the
disclosing party; or (v) is developed independeatigd separately by a Party without use of the dssol party’s Confidential Information.

“ Know-How " means all trade secrets, methods, proceduresulas, processes and general knowledge of Ms. $glated to the FSG
Business, in each case: (i) solely to the extead oy FSG in the development or operation of amygfahe FSG Business; (ii) which are held
in the unaided memory of Ms. Syiek; and (iii) whimte owned or licensable by QuinStreet or anyiaféilof QuinStreet at the effective date of
this Agreement



ARTICLE 2
G RANT OF L ICENSE

Section 2.01License. QuinStreet hereby grants to TownB a perpetudlj; finid-up, irrevocable, non-exclusive, non-trarable and
non-sublicensable worldwide license to use the Kivtiow in connection with the development and operatf TownB’s Business (the “
License”) subject to the terms and conditions herein; ffed that TownB may sublicense the Knélew to the extent reasonably necessal
conduct TownB’s Business and at all times consistét the scope of the License.

Section 2.02AcknowledgementQuinStreet acknowledges and agrees that to tiemteif any) that Ms. Syiek and/or TownB commen
using any of the Know-How prior to the EffectivetBaQuinStreet hereby consents to any such preuoder the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. Ms. Syiek and TownB acknowledge andeatirat to the extent (if any) that either of thesediany of the Know-How prior to the
Effective Date, any such use shall be on the temmasconditions of this Agreement as if this Agreatiead been in effect when such use
commenced.

Section 2.03Reservation of Right.ownB acknowledges that (i) the License is the diclinse granted to TownB with respect to the
Know-How and (ii) without limitation to the precewj sub-clause, no other licenses whatsoever haredranted, expressly, or by implication
or estoppel, by the provisions of this Agreemamtiuding any license to Internet domains, trademac&pyright or other intellectual property
rights embodied in any software, technology or talegnedia that is owned by QuinStreet. Any andights in and to the Know-How
possessed by QuinStreet and not expressly gramfBonB are reserved and retained by QuinStreetiriBoshall not, and shall not permit its
employees, agents or representatives to, allowtldary party to use or have access to any Know-Hreept to the extent reasonably necessary
for the furtherance of TownB’s Business and atiales consistent with the scope of the License.

ARTICLE 3
C ONSIDERATION

Section 3.01Consideration In consideration of the License, on or beforetSmper 6, 2012, TownB shall issue or cause todresterre:
to QuinStreet shares of its voting common stockesgnting a 15 percent ownership interest of TolseE®ed on the number of TownB'’s fully
diluted shares of capital stock outstanding asiefdate of issuance or transfer).

Section 3.02 Transfers by Ms. Syiek.

(a) For so long as QuinStreet owns capital stockafnB, Ms. Syiek agrees that, if she propose&Hlicos otherwise transfer to a third
party any of her shares of TownB’s capital stodkeothan with respect to a Permitted Transfer &imed below), she shall, first deliver to
QuinStreet a written notice (aStockholder Notice”) stating in good faith the terms and conditiofishe proposed sale or transfer, including,
without limitation, the nature of the offer or tsder, the consideration to be paid, and the nardeaddress of each prospective purchaser
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or transferee. Within fifteen (15) business daysrateceipt of such Stockholder Notice, QuinStedetll have the first right, but not the
obligation, to elect by written notice to Ms. SyigkQuinStreet Notice”) to purchase all (but not less than all) of tharges of TownB’s capital
stock subject to the Stockholder Notice, upon tteepand terms of payment and other terms and tiondidesignated in the Stockholder
Notice (* ROFR Shares”). In the event that QuinStreet elects to purcltaeeROFR Shares hereunder, the sale and purchdse ROFR
Shares shall be closed between the Parties nafaterthirty (30) calendar days following the dat¢he QuinStreet Notice. For purposes of
Agreement, a Permitted Transfer " by Ms. Syiek is a transfer made for bona fideagsplanning purposes to Ms. Syiek’s ancestors,
descendants, siblings or spouse or to trusts ébémefit of such persons or Ms. Syiek (eachParmitted Transferee”); provided that the
Permitted Transferee shall furnish QuinStreet aomriB with a written agreement to be bound by andgg with all provisions of this
Agreement as if such person or trust was Ms. Syiek.

(b) If QuinStreet has declined to exercise its trigifirst refusal described in Section 3.02(a),jri@ireet shall have the right, exercisable
upon written notice to Ms. Syiek within fifteen (1&ays after receipt of the Stockholder Noticepaaticipate in such sale of the Shares on ¢
rata basis on the same terms and conditions as gatdorth in the Stockholder Notice. To the ekt@uninStreet exercises such right of
participation, the number of Shares that Ms. Symaly sell in the transaction shall be correspongingtiuced.

(c) If any transaction in connection with which@tioe is required pursuant to this Section 3.02gies for the payment of non-cash
consideration, QuinStreet may pay the consideratiaash equal to QuinStreet’s good faith detertioneof the present fair market value of
the non-cash consideration to be provided by thiehaser or transferee in the transaction.

(d) If QuinStreet elects not to purchase the RORRr&s subject to any notice pursuant to Sectic®(&80Ms. Syiek may, subject to
Section 3.02(b), consummate the transaction cortgetbby such notice within sixty (60) days follogithe earlier of (i) the date on which
QuinStreet provides written notice of such electiohto purchase or (ii) the expiration of the dgdble election period as provided herein,
whichever is earlier; provided however that thasiection is made in all material respects at tiee@nd terms designated in the Stockholder
Notice.

Section 3.03ransactions Involving TownB.

() For so long as QuinStreet owns capital stockaefnB and has not sold any of its interest, Tovagfgees that, if TownB proposes to
issue additional shares of its capital stock, TowhBIl provide written notice of the same to Quia8t to ensure that QuinStreet has the
opportunity to invest in the TownB issuances stoaraintain its 15%, or lower at QuinStreet’s sdikcretion, ownership interest in TownB,
on the same terms and conditions of the proposedme. QuinStreet shall advise TownB in writingoawhether it wishes to invest in such
issuance within fifteen (15) business days of suatice from TownB. To the extent that QuinStreeted to not invest in the proposed issue
TownB shall have six (6) months from the end ofribéce period to close the proposed stock issudhGewnB does not close within this
period, QuinStreet shall be offered another oppituto invest in the issuance to
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maintain its ownership percentage. This Sectiors dmet apply to issuance of the initial founder'args to Ms. Syiek or to Kimarie Matthews
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement oas#s to employees or other service providers iha&xge for bona fide services to TownB
under a duly adopted stock incentive plan of TownB.

(b) For so long as QuinStreet owns capital stockafnB, TownB agrees that, if TownB proposes t@®emtto an agreement or series of
related agreements to transfer all or substantéllgf TownB’s assets or to sell shares of itsitsdygtock constituting greater than 50% of the
then total outstanding voting securities of TowaB' TownB Transaction "), TownB shall within two (2) business days of el@hining to
make such issuance or transfer, deliver to QuieSaevritten notice (a TownB Transaction Notice”) stating in good faith the terms and
conditions of the sale or transfer, including, withlimitation, the nature of the sale or transfiee, consideration to be paid, and the name and
address of each prospective purchaser or transféfiglain fifteen (15) business days after receiipguch TownB Transaction Notice,
QuinStreet shall have the first right, but not thdigation, to elect by written notice to TownB@uinStreet Notice”) to purchase all (but not
less than all) of such shares of TownB'’s capitatistor such assets subject to the TownB Transabtaiite upon the price and terms of
payment designated in the TownB Transaction Notitéhe event that QuinStreet elects to purchask shares or assets hereunder, the sale
and purchase of such shares or assets shall lddesween the Parties no later than thirty (3@nchar days following the date of the
QuinStreet Notice.

(c) If any transaction in connection with which@tine is required pursuant to Section 3.03 provideshe payment of non-cash
consideration, QuinStreet may pay the consideratiaash equal to QuinStreet’s good faith detertioneof the present fair market value of
the non-cash consideration to be provided by thieh@aser or transferee in the transaction.

(d) If QuinStreet elects not to purchase the sharessets subject to any notice pursuant to Se8ti@3(b), as the case may be, then,
TownB may consummate the transaction contemplatestibh notice within sixty (60) days following tkarlier of (i) the date on which
QuinStreet provides written notice of such electiohto purchase or (ii) the expiration of the éggdble election period as provided herein,
whichever is earlier; provided however that thaseection is made in all material respects at tiee@nd terms designated in the TownB
Transaction Notice.

(e) The foregoing provisions of this Section 3.B®l(ding all rights of first refusal hereunderafiterminate upon the closing date of
initial underwritten public offering of TownB segties pursuant to an effective registration statetmder the Securities Act of 1933 (as
amended)(the Public Offering ).

Section 3.04 Drag-along Right.

(a) In the event that a TownB Transaction involipthe proposed sale or other Transfer of alluystantially all of the assets of TownB,
or the proposed sale or other Transfer, whethelitggt purchase, merger or otherwise, of all orssaritially all of the outstanding shares of
capital stock of TownB in one or more related teanti®ns to, or (ii) the approval of such a tranisactvith, a bona fide third party purchaser or
acquirer who in the good faith
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judgment of QuinStreet is not a direct competitbQainStreet (such Transfer or transactio* Company Sale,” and such purchaser or
acquirer, the ‘Proposed Purchaser’), then, to the extent QuinStreet elects not tereise its rights of first refusal pursuant to 8#t8.03 to
purchase such shares or assets, TownB or thedrangfstockholders, as the case may be (colldgtiv&ransferring Stockholders”) shall
have the right to require that QuinStreet tranafieof its shares of capital stock of TownB to tiposed Purchaser for, or otherwise vote in
favor of the Company Sale with the Transferringc8lmlders, at the same price per share and otherigshe same terms and conditions a
Transferring Stockholders with the same classaiflks{“ Drag-Along Right ). The Drag-Along Right shall in no way limit Quitreet’s rights
pursuant to Section 3.03.

(b) Subject to Section 3.03, the closing of any @any Sale shall be held at the principal office¥ @fvnB or at such other location as
TownB and the Proposed Purchaser shall agree gotldking date set forth in the Company Sale Nofdté¢he closing of any Company Sale,
(a) QuinStreet shall deliver all of its shares ofvhB capital stock to the Proposed Purchaser osahee terms and conditions as the other
TownB stockholders with the same class of stocH, (& the Proposed Purchaser shall deliver to QueeSthe purchase price for its shares of
TownB capital stock.

(c) QuinStreet shall execute any customary agretmeertificates, instruments, or other documestthea Proposed Purchaser may
reasonably request in connection with and custorfmrthe Company Sale; provided, however, thatsush obligation shall be no more
burdensome in substance for QuinStreet than folo#msr Transferring Stockholder, and provided fertihowever, that in no circumstances
will QuinStreet be required to accept or assumeliaility to the Proposed Purchaser for any amaunmxcess of the purchase price paid to
QuinStreet for its TownB capital stock in conneotigith the Company Sale.

(d) For purposes hereof, “Transfer” collectivelyane any sale or other transfer of shares of thigatapock or assets of TownB in a
Company Sale, whether by sale or exchange or bgener consolidation or corporate reorganizationtber form of acquisition of TownB or
its capital stock.

(e) The foregoing provisions of this Section 3.8dlkbe applicable to any purchaser or transfefegp shares of the capital stock of
TownB issued to QuinStreet, and as a conditiomgfsauch purchase or transfer, QuinStreet shalliredgloe proposed purchaser or transfere
agree to become a party to and be bound by thespwas of this Section 3.04.

(H The foregoing provisions of this Section 3.@4c{uding all drag-along rights hereunder) shaiitimate upon the closing date of the
Public Offering of TownB securities.

Section 3.05Equitable Relief Each of the Parties acknowledge that its or headh of this Section may cause irreparable hartineto
other Parties which may not be compensable by rmopdamages, and, accordingly, in the event ofadir of this Section 3 by a Party, the
other Party or Parties shall be entitled to, inital to any other remedies that such Party ori®arhay have at law or in equity as a result of
any breach of this Section, injunctive relief reqg the breaching Party to comply with the apgiegprovisions of this Section 3.
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ARTICLE 4
R EPRESENTATIONS ANDW ARRANTIES

Section 4.01 Mutual Representations and WarrantiEach party represents and warrants to the othéy fheat: (a) it is duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under itsgdiction of organization and has the right to eimiéo this Agreement; (b) complete and
accurate copies of TownB’s governing documents teen provided, or prior to the issuance of theeshtd QuinStreet, will be provided to
QuinStreet; and (c) the execution, delivery andguarance of this Agreement and the consummatighefransactions contemplated hereby
are within the corporate powers of such party agetbeen duly authorized by all necessary corpaetten on the part of such party, and
constitute a valid and binding agreement of suctypa

Section 4.02Investor Representation®uinStreet represents and warrants that (i)dhisaccredited investor” under U.S. and state
securities laws; and (ii) it is acquiring its shefer investment for its own account and not withieaw to, or for sale or resale in connection
with, any distribution of the security; and Quin&it understands that the shares are not registacethay not be resold or transferred except in
compliance with U.S. and state securities laws.

SECTION 4.03No Other WarrantiesTHE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES PROVIDED IN THISRTICLE 4 ARE THE
ONLY WARRANTIES PROVIDED BY QUINSTREET IN RELATIONTO THE KNOW-HOW. QUINSTREET DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIELC
GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF CONDITION, QUALITY,
PERFORMANCE, SATISFACTORY QUALITY, FITNESS FOR A RYICULAR PURPOSE AND NON INFRINGEMENT.

ARTICLE 5
T ERMINATION

Section 5.01Term.This Agreement is effective as of the date heredf@ntinues in full force and effect unless terabéa by the parties
in accordance with this Article (theTerm ”).

Section 5.02Termination by Either Party Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to toaitrary, any Party (lon-defaulting
party ") may, by written notice to the other Party or it (the “defaulting party ”), terminate this Agreement if any of the followjievents
occurs:

(a) If the defaulting party is in material breadtaay provision of this Agreement and such breaahait cured within 15 days after
the first party gives such other party written netof such breach detailing the same; or

(b) If the defaulting party (i) becomes insolveadmits in writing its inability to pay its debts ey mature, makes an assignment
for the benefit of creditors, or becomes subjeditect control of a trustee, receiver or similatherity, or (ii) becomes subject to any
bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding under fedestake or foreign statutes which is not rescindedigmissed or stayed within sixty
(60) days of the commencement of such proceeding.
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Section 5.03Effect of Termination Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreemehée provisions of Article 2, Article 4, Article 6
and Article 7 shall survive termination.

ARTICLE 6
C ONFIDENTIALITY

Section 6.01Confidential InformationTownB and Ms. Syiek shall retain any Confidentigbrmation of QuinStreet it receives in
connection with this Agreement in the strictestfa®ence (on a need to know basis) and shall naials such confidential information to any
person without QuinStreet’s express written consgther than on a need-to-know basis to an emp|@agent or professional advisor of
TownB or an affiliate thereof. Notwithstanding amiyitg to the contrary herein, the obligation to naiimthe confidentiality of Confidential
Information shall not apply to the extent that T&wr Ms. Syiek is required to disclose such conftag information pursuant to law or a
legally enforceable order of, or a request foriinfation from, a court or judicial body or governrterauthority;providedthat TownB or
Ms. Syiek, as the case may be, provides writteit@dd QuinStreet to enable QuinStreet to seeloteptive order or an injunction.

ARTICLE 7
M ISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.01Notices. All notices, requests and other communicatiorsnty Party hereunder shall be in writing (includfagsimile
transmission) and shall be given,

if to QuinStreet, to:

950 Tower Lane, & floor
Foster City, CA 94404
Attention: Legal Department
Telephone: 650-578-7700
Facsimile: 650-350-1423

if to TownB or Ms. Syiek, to:

TownB Corporation

c/o Bronwyn Syiek

111 Baywood Avenue
Hillsborough, California 94010
Telephone: 415-606-6106
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Section 7.02Limitation of Liability. OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENTHE KNOW-HOW IS
PROVIDED “AS IS” WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMISSIBLE PURSUANT TO APPLICABLE LAW, INCLUDING BT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSER®NON4INFRINGEMENT. QUINSTREET SHALL NOT BE LIABLE
FOR ANY DAMAGES RELATED TO OR ARISING FROM TOWNB'&SE OF THE KNOW-HOW.

Section 7.03Amendments and Waiver&) Any provision of this Agreement may be amehdewaived if, and only if, such amendment
or waiver is in writing and signed, in the caseanfamendment, by all Parties hereto or, in the chaevaiver, by the Party or Parties against
whom the waiver is to be effective.

(b) No failure or delay by any Party in exercisangy right, power or privilege hereunder shall opeees a waiver thereof nor shall any
single or partial exercise thereof preclude angotr further exercise thereof or the exercisengf@ther right, power or privilege. The rights
and remedies herein provided shall be cumulaticerem exclusive of any rights or remedies providgdaw.

Section 7.04Expenses Each Party shall bear its own costs and expénsaged in connection with the preparation, negfain, and
entering into of this Agreement and performancisobbligations under this Agreement.

Section 7.05 TaxesTownB shall indemnify the QuinStreet, within 10 dafter demand therefor, for any taxes, dutiesesevariffs or
charges of any kind (including withholding or valadded taxes) imposed by any U.S. or foreign natjatate, local or other governmental
entity (collectively, “Taxes”) arising as a result of the grant of the Licens¢he Know-How to TownB hereunder or the origiissuance to
QuinStreet of the shares as consideration therefogther or not such Taxes were correctly or lggatbosed or asserted by the relevant
governmental entity. An official governmental clctite as to the amount of such payment or ligbdilivered to TownB by QuinStreet shall
be conclusive absent fraud or manifest error. énetbent TownB wishes to contest the tax liabil@uinStreet shall provide reasonable
cooperation in connection with the same. The foirgggdemnity shall be limited to the grant of theense hereunder and shall not be
applicable to any transaction involving the stoclsecurities of TownB (other than the original esce of shares to QuinStreet in considere
for the License of the Know-How) or any other degi between the parties, including but not limitethe exercise of any right of first refusal
or drag-along rights.

Section 7.06No Beneficiaries This Agreement is for the sole benefit of thetiearhereto and, except as otherwise contemplatesm
nothing herein expressed or implied shall give@®cbnstrued to give any person, other than theéeRdrereto, any legal or equitable rights
hereunder.
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Section 7.07 Governing LawThis Agreement shall be governed by and constmied¢ordance with the law of the State of Califayni
without regard to the conflicts of law rules of bstate.

Section 7.08 AssignmentNeither this Agreement nor any rights under thise®gnent may be assigned, sublicensed (except assskp
permitted hereunder) or otherwise transferred by or Ms. Syiek, including by operation of law,tdut the prior written consent of
QuinStreet, and this Agreement shall benefit antibding upon the parties hereto, their respedégal representatives, successors and
assigns.

Section 7.09Counterparts This Agreement may be signed in any number ohtaparts, each of which shall be deemed an otigina
with the same effect as if the signatures theratbteereto were upon the same instrument. This Ageeé shall become effective when each
Party hereto shall have received a counterparofisigned by all of the other Parties hereto.

Section 7.10Entire Agreement This Agreement constitutes the entire agreenraotng the Parties hereto with respect to the subject
matter hereof, and supersedes all other prior aggats or undertakings with respect thereto, botttesrand oral.

Section 7.11Construction. Headings are for ease of reference only and sballorm a part of this Agreement. This Agreemnteas been
negotiated by the Parties and their respective sglland will be interpreted fairly in accordancehwits terms and without any strict
construction in favor of or against either Party.

Section 7.12Severability. If any provision of this Agreement conflicts wigloverning law or if any provision is held to bdlnuoid or
otherwise ineffective or invalid by a court of coatent jurisdiction, (a) such provision shall berded to be restated to reflect as nearly as
possible the original intentions of the partieadtordance with applicable law, and (b) the remaiérms, provisions, covenants and
restrictions of this Agreement shall remain in folice and effect.

Section 7.13Further AssurancesEach of the Parties covenants and agrees onfludlitsielf, its successors, and its assigns, witho
further consideration, to prepare, execute, ackedge, file, record, publish, and deliver such othstruments, documents and statements, anc
to take such other action as may be required byolargasonably necessary to effectively carry beatgurposes of this Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be executed and delivered dseoflate first above written.
QUINSTREET, INC.

By: /s/ Kenneth M. Siege
Name: Kenneth M. Sieg
Title: SVP & General Couns
Date Signed: August 22, 20.

TOWNB CORPORATION

By: /s/ Bronwyn Syiel
Name: Bronwyn Syie
Title: Presiden
Date Signed: August 23, 20

Bronwyn Syiek

/s/ Bronwyn Syiek
Date Signed: August 23, 2C
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-BB6272, 333-168322, and 333-
165534) of QuinStreet, Inc. of our report dated Bat?2, 2012 relating to the consolidated finansiatements, financial statement schedule
and the effectiveness of internal control overfiitial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
August 23, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Douglas Valenti, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiQuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financédarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentédsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the company’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s interr@ntrol over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmihmittee of the company’s board of directors @nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refigancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 23, 2012

/s/ Douglas Valenti

Douglas Valent

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Kenneth Hahn, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiQuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financédarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentédsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the company’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s interr@ntrol over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmihmittee of the company’s board of directors @nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refigancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 23, 2012

/s/ Kenneth Hahn

Kenneth Haht

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
and Chief Operating Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being submdtte connection with the report on Form 10-K of Qiireet, Inc. (the “Report”) for the
purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rulel115}(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (thechange Act”) and Section 1350 of
Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

Douglas Valenti, the Chief Executive Officer andniketh Hahn, the Chief Financial Officer and Chigle@ting Officer of QuinStreet,
Inc., each certifies that, to the best of his krexge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
QuinStreet, Inc..

Date: August 23, 2012

/s/ Douglas Valenti
Name: Douglas Valen
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

/s! Kenneth Hah
Name: Kenneth Hah
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Offic




